
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Please ask for: Mrs Katey Johns, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 307815 E: katey.johns@plymouth.gov.uk 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 
Date:    Wednesday 28 March 2012 
Time:   2 pm 
Venue: Warspite Room, Council House 
 
Members: 
Councillor  James, Chair 
Councillor  Nicholson, Vice Chair 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Mrs Bowyer, Browne, Coker, Lowry, McDonald, Stark, Thompson, 
Wildy and one vacancy. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date: 20-3-2012 

Public Document Pack



 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Board Members and to note the attendance of substitutes in accordance 
with the Constitution. 

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
  
 The Management Board will be asked to agree the minutes of the meeting held on 29 

February 2012. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
5. LEADER AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE    
  
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will receive an update from the Leader 

and Chief Executive on current Council and City issues. 
  
6. CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY OF BUDGET 

PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE PLAN 2012/13   
(Pages 7 - 20) 

  
 The Board will consider Cabinet’s response to the recommendations arising from 

scrutiny of the budget priorities and Corporate Plan 2012/13. 
  
7. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT   (Pages 21 - 70) 
  
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will consider the third monitoring report 

for 2011/12 as submitted to Cabinet on 7 February 2012. 
  
8. REVENUES AND BENEFITS ACTION PLAN   (Pages 71 - 82) 
  
 The Board will consider the action plan for the Revenues and Benefits service as agreed 

at its meeting on 29 February 2012. 
  
9. DEVONPORT REGENERATION COMPANY 

PARTNERSHIP (DRCP) SUCCESSION STRATEGY - 
REVIEW OF SUCCESSION ARRANGEMENTS   

(To Follow) 

  
 To receive a briefing paper reviewing the succession arrangements put in place following 

the demise of the Devonport Regeneration Company Partnership. 



 
  
10. CALL-INS    
  
 Members will be advised of any executive decisions that have been called in. 
  
11. TRACKING DECISIONS   (Pages 83 - 92) 
  
 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will monitor progress on previous 

decisions. 
  
12. FORWARD PLAN   (Pages 93 - 96) 
  
 To receive new items from the Forward Plan with a view to identifying items for scrutiny. 
  
13. TASK AND FINISH UPDATES / REPORTS    
  
 To receive for consideration any Task and Finish Group reports or updates on Task and 

Finish groups currently in progress – 

• Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults           (Pages 97 – 110) 
• Lord Mayoralty Function            (To Follow) 

14. RECOMMENDATIONS   (Pages 111 - 112) 
  
 To receive and consider recommendations from panels, Cabinet or Council. 
  
15. WORK PROGRAMMES   (Pages 113 - 124) 
  
 To consider and approve work programmes for each of the Panels, to include a progress 

update from each of the Chairs. 
  
16. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) … of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 

 
AGENDA 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
����
��	����	�����	������
���
	��
����������
���������

����������	
����
��	����	�����	������
�
�

��
	��
����������
���������
�

����� !"�
�
����������	
��
��	��	��
	������	
����������	������	���
	������	
�����������	���	���������	���	����
��	�����
�	���������	����������
	���	����������	
��������� �	���
��	!����	!�����	��"����#�	������	$�������	��#	%��#��	
	
�����&�
�	���	���
��
'	����������	���������	��#	��	"	(�
���
��	��)���
#	
*
��
�
�����+
�	
	
����	��	���
�#���
'		�������	��
�	���������	"��
����	���	(�����
�	,�����
���
��	
$
������&�	��#	���
���	������
	��������	*
+
��
�	��#	�
�
����	�
�+��
	����&
��	-
�
�	
��
��	!
�#	.����
��	/��
�	
�����	"
��������	�������	.����
�	��#	*���	
��������	
"
��������	�������	.����
��		
	
$�
	�

���&	�����
#	��	0��	��#	������
#	��	1�23���	
	
�����������	
�
�������
������������
������
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������
�������������
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
�����������
�������
�
����������������������	
	

���� #���$ !�� !����%$&�'&(#$����
	
4�	��
	���
��
	��	����������	����������	��
	�����	���&��	�����������	���	�	���
)������	
	
�&�

#	����	����������	������	��+��&	�

�	������
#	��	����������	$�������	��#	�
���#
#	
��	����������	!����	��	�������
#	���
)�����	���	��
	������
	��	����	�

���&�	
	

���� )�&*#�#!$� �����$ !����!���
	
$�
�
	�
�
	��	#
����������	��	���
�
��	��#
	��	�����#���
	����	��
	��#
	��	���#����	
	

���� &(#$�+��,�-� !��,�$ ������
	
$�
�
	�
�
	��	��
��	��	�����5�	��&
��	�����
����

���� &#**'$ ����
	
$�
�
	�
�
	��	����)���	���	�����#
������	��	����	�

���&��

���� !#�.�# )��$ $�(�-��,�������!�'�$��#&!����!(�����!�,&!,���$ �
��%� ,���# )��� ��$!�/�&,�!��������%$&��/�&#�($����# )�
$ &�����# )�&��)$!������
	
����������	
��
�	�����#��
#	��
	����	��#	������	6����	�
����	��	��
	74�����	��	��
	
�
��������
	��	*
+
��
�	��#	�
�
�����	������
�	�
�+��
��	�����
��	��#	4����
�	��#	

Agenda Item 3Page 1



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#$�%���
����#&'#	

��
#�����5	��#	���
�
#	�	+��
	��	������	��	���	����
	���	��#	�

�	��+��+
#�	�
��
��	�
�
	
�#+��
#	����	8	
	

�� 	 ��
	�����	����	��#	������	&����	��#	����
#	�
��	��&
��
�	�+
�	��
	
�����
	��	��
	���	#���	��#	�����
#	��
	�
+�
�	���������	��	8	
	

•� ��
	������	��	��
	�
��������
	��	�
�+��
	�
��������
	��#	�����	
�����
9	
	

•� ��
	������	��	��
	�
��������
	��	��
	
:�
��
��
	��	������
��	
��#	����
����&	���
�	��	*
+
��
	��#	�
�
���	���
�9	
	

�� 	 ��
	����	��#	������	&����	�
�
	������	�
����
#	��	����&
��	#����&	
��
	���
	+�����	��	��
	��
��	��#
�	�
+�
�9	
	

�� 	 ��
	 �
+�
�	 �#
�����
#	 �	 ����
�	 ��	 ��
��	 ��	 ����
��	 ��#	 ��
�
	 �
�
	
�����#
#	 ��	��
	 ���#��&�	��	��
	�
����	��#	�##�
��
#	��	��
	������
#	
�
����
�#�������	���
+
��	���
	����	���	�
;���
#	��	
����
	����	
�
�
+���	 �������&	 ���������	 �
�
	 
��������
#	 ��#	 ��������
#	 ��#	 �����	
�����
	�������
#	��	�����+
�	

	
�
��
��	��	��
	����#	����
#	�	����
�	��	��&��������	����
���	����	�
&��#	��	��
	���#��&�	��	
��
	�
����	��#	��&���&��
#	����	8	
	

�# 	 ��
	����
�	��	����#��
#	�����	��#	���
�����	����	������&	���
�	��	�#���	
������	���
	���	�����
�����
9	
	

�
 	 ��
	����	��	�	�������&	��������	������	��
	�
�+��
	���	���#��
������	
����&9	
	

�� 	 �����	&��#��&	����
�	#
��������
#	�	����	������	��
	<����	*
�����
�	
#
�����
��	��	���
	������
�	��#	=��	�
������������
�	�����#	��+
	�

�	
�&�

#	�����	��	��
	�
��������
9	
	

�& 	 ��
	 �������&	�
����
	 �
�����	����#	 �##	 ��&��������	 ��
����
�	 ��	 ��	
���
�#�	��
����
#	#
�����
��	����	�
��
#	��	�+
����
	��#	�&
���	�����	
��	�����
�
	���	
:�����&	�������#�	

	
4�	��#
�	��	�
����#	��	��
	����
���	����
#	�������	��
�	���������	"��
����	���	(�����
�	
���
��	��#	,�����
���
��	���	��+��
#	��	��#��
	��
	����#�	�
��
��	�
�
	�#+��
#	����	8	
	

�� 	 ��
	���	��	��
	�
��������
	���	��	�
����
	��+��&�	��	>?�	��#	�����+
	
��
	�
�+��
	��������
�	�����	��#	������	�
�
	�����	�������
#	��	��
	����	
��#	��
	����
��	��	��
	�
��������
9	
	

�� 	 ��
�
	��#	�

�	�	���&
	������&	��	0@33	���
�	��	��
	�
�
����	�
�+��
	��	
��+
��
�	�����	��#	���	�

�	��
��
#	��	A339	
	

�= 	 ��
	 ����
�	 �
&��#��&	 �����	 �������&�	 ���
	 ��	 ����
��	 ������	 ��#	
����#��
#	�����	�
�
	����&��	����	 ����
�	����	�
�
	���&
�
#	 ��	 ��
	

Page 2



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#$�%���
����#&'#	

�
�+��
	������	-����	
	
�
��
��	����
��
#	����	��
�	�
�
	�
�����
#	��	�
��	����	��
	�
�+��
	��#	��	������	-���	
���	����	����	�����#	��+
	�

�	���������
#	��	��
	����	��#	������	&�����	
	
�
��
��	��	��
	����#	�&�

#	8	
	

�? 	 ��	��
�#	�
����
�#�����	*??	�������
#	������	��
	�
����	��	����	��	
��������	�	�������
	������&	��
	�
����
�#�����	��	��
	�
�
��	<
����	
��#	�#���	������	���
	$���	��#	(�����	6����	��	���
&���#��&	
����
����
	�#����9	
	

�0 	 ����	��	��&��	��	�? 	���+
	��#	��
	����
�	��	����#��
#	������	��	
�##�������	�
����
�#�����	��	�����#
#	��	��
	<
����	��#	�#���	������	
���
	$���	��#	(�����	6����	�
����	��	���
&���#��&	����
����
	�#����	
��������&	������������	��	�	#
#����
#	����
	���
	��	
����
	������
��	��	
���&	#��
����	�����&�	��	��
	�#���	������	���
	#
�����
��9	
	

�1 	 ��	�
����
�#	��	�����
�	���	��	��
	�
����
�#������	�������
#	
������	��
	�
�����	���=
��	��	��
	��
�#�
��	��	�? 	���+
�	��#	��
	
�����#������	��	�	��
������	������	��
	�
����
�#������	��	�
��
��	��
	
����	���������	�
��&	����
#	�����9	
	

�2 	 ����	 �
&��#	 ��	 �1 	 ���+
�	 ��&���������	 ��	 ��
	 ��
������	 ��	 ��
	
�
����
�#������	 ��	 #
�
&��
#	 ��	 -
�
	 ��
��	 !
�#	 .����
�	 ��	
������������	����	����������	
��
��	������	����������	������	���
)�����	
��#	����������	��������9	
	

�B 	 ��
	�
����	��	��
�#
#	��	����	�����
	2�1	���
	�����	.��
�+������	�?
 	
�
�#�	7��
	�
�+��
	��#	�	��&�	����
�	��	����#��
#	������	��	�����	A3	��	
��
	 #��	 ��	 ��
	 ���
	 +����	 ����	 �	 ��:����	 ����	 ������&	 ���
	 ��	 0?	
�����
��	��	��
	�#���	������	���
	C	-����	��	����
��	$
���59	
	

�@ 	 ��	 �����#
	 ��	 �##�������	 �
����
�#�����	 ��	 �����
��	 ����	 ��
	
�����������	 ��#	 ����
�
�������	 ��	 ��
	 ������	 -���	 �
	 ����
�
��
#	
����	���
#���
	
��
��9	
	

�D 	 ��
	������	-���	��	�������
#	��	��
	�
:�	�

���&	��	��
	.+
�+�
�	��#	
��������	����&
�
��	����#	��	0A	�����	03?0	���	�����
�	��������9	
		

�A 	 ����	 �
�
+���	 �����
�	 �
��
��	 ��#	 .����
��	 ��
	 ��+��
#	 ��	 ���
�#	
�

���&�		��	��
	.+
�+�
�	��#	��������	����&
�
��	����#	��
�	����	
��#	������	&����	�
�����	��
	�
��&	#������
#9	
	

�E 	 ��	�����	���	��
	�����������	��#	�����
��	��+��+
#	��	��
	����	��#	������	
&�����	

	
�4�	�
�����
	��	����������	
��
�	��
�
����&	��
	����	��#	������	&����	�
����	��	���	�&�

#	
����	����������	�����	����#	��
�	����	��
	�����	���	����	��
�� 	
	

Page 3



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#$�%���
����#&'#	

�	�� ����� ���!��$ )��� )� !�#)%$���+�������!���
	
(����
�	��	�����
	A1�	��
	����#	��#	�
�	����������	��	�����#
�	�	�
�����
	��	��
	���#��&�	
��#	�
����
�#������	��	��
	4�#
�
�#
��	�#+��
�5�	�
�����	
		
$�
	����#	�&�

#	��
	�
�����
	��	��
	���#��&�	��	��
	4�#
�
�#
��	�#+��
�5�	�
����	��	
��������	�
��������
�	
	

���� )�*�-#!�)�#,!(��$!0���
	
(����
�	��	�����
�	A1	��#	ED�	��
	����#	#������
#	#
�
&����&	���������	��	��
	����#5�	!
�#	
.����
��	��	������������	����	������	���
)�����	��#	����������	�
�#	�
��
��	��	�
�����
	��	
�
����
�#�����	��:	��	��
	4�#
�
�#
��	�#+��
�5�	�
����	��	��������	�
��������
�	
	
4�	���	����
��
#	����	�
��
��	�������&	�
������	�
�
	���	��
:���
�	��#	��	�	�
����	
�
��
��	�
�
	���
�	�����
	��	���
�#	�������&	�
������	#�
	��	���
�	�������
����	
	
�
��
��	��	��
	����#	�&�

#	8	
	

�? 	 ����	��	��#
�	��	
:�
#��
	��
	#
������)�����&	����
��	�����#
	��	��
	
������	�����
��	�

���&	����
���	�����+��	��	����	���&����
	
�
���
#	����
��	�
	#
�
&��
#	��	��
	����#5�	!
�#	.����
��	��	
������������	����	������	���
)�����	��#	����������	�
�#	�
��
��	
%���	���&����
	�
���
#	����
��	�����#
�	���	��
	���	�����
#	��	8	
	

•� -��=
��	4���������	"����
���	C	%���	-��&����
	*
;�
���9	
•� $���	��#	(�����	6����	*
�����9	
•� -��
�	*
����
�#������9	
•� (�����#	-���	��
��9	

	
�0 	 ���	�����
	��������	�������&	�����#	�
	#������
#	����	���	��������	������	

�����	��	�������&	�
��&	�����&
#9	
	

�1 	 ����	��	�����
	��������	�������&	�
������	�����#	�
	��&����
#	����	���
	
��
:�������	 ��	 �����	 �
��
��	 ����	 ���
�	 �������
���	 ��
	 ������	 ��	
���
�#	�������&	�
�������	

	

���� �$ ,!�����

	
4�	���	�&�

#	����	��
	�����
�	��	��
	?	(
������	03?0	��
	�����+
#�	���=
��	��	��
	
��
�#�
��	��	�����
	E3	��	�����#
	��
	��������&	�##�������	��)���
#	�
��
�
�����+
�	8	
	

•� *�����#	�����	8	-�������	�����
�	��	����
��
9	
	

•� ��
���	%��#	8	
��	�
���
	-���9	
	

•� �	�����
�	�������
#	�
��
�
�����+
	����	�����	%
��	$F�	��#	
-���	,:
����+
�	

	

Page 4



�����
����������
�
��� ����������!�����"���������#$�%���
����#&'#	


�
�� �1���!��,�$ ������
	
$�
�
	�
�
	��	��
��	��	
:
���	�����
���	
	
	
	

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Final 7.2.12  Not protectively marked 1

CABINET  
7 February 2012  

 

Agenda Item 6Page 7



 

 

 

1

Cabinet Response to recommendations made by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board  

following Budget Scrutiny 2012 - 2013 

 

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R1 That the future provision of funding for police 
community support officers should be included 
in police base budgets. 

 

GJ/CM Agreed - recommendation to be made to Police Authority 

R2 A position statement from police on 
identification of any potential areas for 
collaboration with Council for shared services 
in Plymouth to be sought. 

 

IB/AB Agreed - include with shared service planning response R43 below 

R3 Commitment required from Police to 
appropriate resourcing to meet crime and 
community safety targets in the city reflecting 
the city’s status as the major urban centre 
within the force area.  

 

Leader/GJ/CB Agreed - recommendation to be made to Police Authority 

R4 That any proposals for a possible increase in 
the police precept and the impact on council 
services during a council tax freeze should be 
monitored and reported to the Cabinet / 
Board. 

 

 

IB/AB Agreed - precept will be agreed at Police Authority meeting on 17 February 

P
age 8



 

 

 

2

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R5 Additional clarification is sought regarding 
multi agency funding of the Children and 
Young People’s Plan. 

 

SL/CB Agreed 

R6 Plans to increase take-up of free school meals, 
with in year targets be submitted to the 
Children and Young People’s scrutiny panel. 

 

SL/CB Agreed 

R7 Department to provide additional detail on 
schools infrastructure plan to include impact 
of Academy transition on the Council’s PFI 
liabilities, and actions being taken to address 
this. 

 

SL/CB Agreed, although for capital items as yet unfunded see R8 below 

R8 Schools capital spending priorities beyond       
those in the funded capital programme are 
published. 

 

SL/CB Not agreed – capital programme will include only funded items 

R9 Cabinet member to supply evidence of a 
coordinated cross Council response to the 
issue of Child Poverty and worklessness 
amongst young people, with clear 
accountability and delivery arrangements at 
Council and Partnership level and SMART 
targets for review during the coming year. 

 

SL/CB Agreed – to be included in the work programme of the Members’ working 
group on Child Poverty 

P
age 9



 

 

 

3

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R10 A review of the Common Assessment 
Framework be undertaken to ensure that it is 
fit for purpose in the new economic 
environment 

 

SL/CB An update on the Common Assessment Framework will be provided 

R11 A report is prepared for the Management 
Board outlining how Children’s services, 
Plymouth Community Healthcare, Adult Social 
Care and Plymouth Community Homes are 
jointly providing aligned and coordinated 
locality based services that are understood 
and accessible to customers 

 

SL/CB Agreed 

R12 Cabinet assurance is sought that plans are in 
place to ensure a smooth and seamless 
transition for children in care to adult social 
care. 

 

SL/CB Agreed – joint commissioning arrangements in new People directorate will 
address 

R13 To provide Health and Adult Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel with an update of 
the results of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and its use in the development of 
the Health and Wellbeing strategy. 

 

GM/CB Agreed – agenda item for March meeting of Panel 

R14 Information to be provided into the impact of 
the Adult Social Care transformation 
programme on the adult care sector. 

GM/CB Agreed – work already undertaken 

P
age 10



 

 

 

4

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R15 Ensure that the Health and Wellbeing Board 
has appropriate and effective representation 
from the community and voluntary sector. 

 

GM/CB Will be raised with Health and Wellbeing Development Group for 
consideration when Shadow Board in put in place in April/May 2012 

R16 That further details of the Adult Social Care 
transformation plan were to be incorporated 
into the corporate plan. 

 

GM/CB Included at high level – further detail more appropriate in Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy when published later in 2012-13 

R17 The Adult Social Care service should 
undertake demand forecasting on which to 
inform the allocation of budget and resources. 
The production of the information should be 
monitored by the adult social care overview 
and scrutiny panel. 

 

GM/CB Work already being undertaken 

R18 The budget to support young carers in the city 
should sit within adult social care. 

 

GM/CB Agreed – will be addressed as joint commissioning arrangements for children 
and adults are put in place 

R19 That the growth board consider the impact of 
changes to health provision on the health 
workforce and consider future health 
workforce development in the city. 

  

TF/AP As R14 above 

R20 A report is produced detailing the 
demographic impact of Plymouth’s ageing 
population. 

GM/CB Agreed 

P
age 11



 

 

 

5

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R21 Proposals are brought forward to 
demonstrate how capacity is being built and 
liabilities offset to enable a viable Community 
Assets Transfer programme 

 

IB/AB Community asset transfer principles already agreed 

R22 Clarification is sought on how the Growth 
Fund will be maximised and ringfenced to 
economic development 

 

TF/AP Cabinet decision of March 2011 regarding Growth Fund in place, subject to 
review 

R23 Detailed monitoring of worklessness targets 
and outcomes by project and work area is 
published regularly 
 

TF/AP Agreed - worklessness plan under development 

R24 Undertake a risk assessment of the localisation 
of non-domestic rates detailing likely impact 
on the Council’s medium term financial plan. 

 

IB/AB Agreed - will be undertaken as government proposals regarding transition 
arrangements are clear 

R25 Cabinet member to supply evidence of a 
coordinated cross Council response to the 
issue of worklessness, with clear accountability 
and delivery arrangements at Council and 
Partnership level and SMART targets for 
review during the coming year. 

 

TF/AP As R23 above 

R26 Details are published of the indicative 
Transport Capital Programme (£11.94m) 

 

KW/AP Agreed – will be produced as details are available 

P
age 12



 

 

 

6

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R27 Bus Punctuality Improvement Plan is published, 
with details of punctuality and targets by 
route/geography. 

 

KW/AP Agreed 

R28 

 

Update on progress in investment 
commitments made by GoAhead around the 
sale of Citybus be provided. 
 

KW/AP Agreed 

R29 Demonstrate how the strategic parking review 
will support retail growth within the city. 

 

KW/AP Agreed 

R30  Impact on car parking and CCTV control 
room of future redevelopment of Mayflower 
East/West car parks be assessed and mitigated. 

 

KW/AP Agreed – as plans are developed 

R31 Demonstrate how the Market Recovery Plan 
identifies priorities for delivery in the coming 
year and expected outcomes. 

 

TF/AP Agreed 

R32 Impact of community infrastructure levy (CIL) 
is assessed on economic development 
objectives. 

 

 

 

TF/AP Agreed 

P
age 13



 

 

 

7

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R33 Impact of Localism Act – ensure modelling is 
undertaken to test the capacity of the planning 
service to respond to the changing legislative 
environment, particularly to support 
neighbourhood planning forums. 

 

TF/AP Agreed 

R34 Amend the capital programme to reflect the 
fact that £4m won’t be spent on MRF in 
2012/13. 

 

IB/AB Agreed 

R35 Provide strategy for potential allocation of the 
night time levy. 

 

GJ/CB Agreed – as legislation is clarified and details worked up 

R36 Produce a Recycling Strategy and Action Plan. 
 

ML/AP Contained within Waste Management Strategy  

R37 The Council to allocate additional resources 
over and above the grant allocation to major 
adaptations to ensure that the promoting 
independence agenda is fully supported. 

 

GM/CB Will be considered against other funding priorities 

R38 An impact assessment is carried out and 
published of the likely impact of housing 
benefit and other relevant welfare reforms on 
both homelessness and existing tenancies, with 
an action plan demonstrating how the impact 
on key vulnerable groups is being addressed. 
 

TF/CB Agreed 

P
age 14



 

 

 

8

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R39 Resources are made available to improve on 
the current rate of 500 per year of the 18000 
properties with category one hazards that are 
being addressed. 

 

TF/CB Not agreed – current risk based arrangements appropriate given other calls 
on housing related resources 

R40 Proposals are consulted on regarding the 
nature of local schemes for Council Tax 
benefit and the Social Fund. 

 

IB/AB Agreed 

R41 How is the Council as a whole addressing the 
issue of troubled families? 

 

SL/GJ/CB Agreed - details will be provided as proposals developed 

R42 Provide the projected savings for post 12/13 
co-location with Health at Windsor House. 

 

GM/CB Agreed – details will be provided as they are quantified 

R43 Provide a shared services plan that defines 
principles and definitions of shared services, 
with expected outcomes for the Council, 
proposed principle and secondary partners, 
Member and officer leads and accountabilities. 
Propose milestones and projected outcomes 
for the coming year and beyond. 

 

 

 

IB/AB Agreed 

P
age 15



 

 

 

9

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R44 Bring forward Transaction Centre integration 
proposals for addition integration of services 
for the coming year, with projected efficiency 
savings. 

 

IB/AB Agreed 

R45 Ensure capital priorities are clearly linked to 
city priorities. 

 

IB/AP Agreed 

R46 Publish plans to reduce IT applications across 
the Council, with projected targets and 
financial savings. 

 

RB/AB Agreed 

R47 Bring forward proposals as to how as yet 
unfunded capital investment priorities can be 
considered prior to funding becoming 
available. 

 

IB/AP Not agreed as R8 above 

R48 Identify contingency plans if no partner 
investment is available for the Civic Centre 
following tender exercise during 2012-13. 

 

IB/AB Agreed, will be developed as necessary 

R49 What targets are being set for key staff 
engagement measures for the coming year, 
and how are they to be met? 

 

IB/AB Agreed, information will be provided when agreed 

P
age 16



 

 

 

10

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R50 A review is undertaken into the procurement, 
shared services and location risk assessment 
arrangements of the data centre. 

 

RB/AB Agreed 

R51 What are the SMART targets by service area 
for sickness in the coming year and how are 
managers going to be held accountable for 
delivering them? 

 

IB/AB Agreed – as R49 above 

R52 Publish a Workforce Development with 
resource requirements and measurable 
outcomes. 
 

IB/AB Agreed 

R53 The business case for a fully transactional 
website to be published and made available for 
consultation. 

 

RB/AB Agreed 

R54 The libraries review to be made available for 
pre-decision scrutiny and further engagement 
work is undertaken with the community and 
voluntary sector regarding the development of 
libraries as community hubs. 

 

 

 

GJ/AB Agreed 

P
age 17



 

 

 

11

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R55 Undertake a risk assessment of customer 
services ability to deal with increased demand 
and contacts during welfare reform 
implementation. 

 

RB/AB Agreed 

R56 Scrutiny management Board to receive 
proposals on changes to committee and 
scrutiny structure. 

 

SR/AB Agreed 

R57 Identification of mitigation to offset impact of 
lack of statutory legal aid representation for 
priority groups. 

 

SR/AB Agreed – work already undertaken 

R58 

 

An appropriately funded plan be put in place 
to mitigate the likely impact on voter numbers 
of the proposed electoral reforms. 

 

SR/AB Identification of potential impacts will be undertaken 

R59 Any decision to use the Life Centre for the 
count at the local elections is informed by cost 
and value for money implications. 

 

SR/AB Agreed 

R60 Ensure the city’s long term priorities clearly 
reflect the more turbulent economic climate 
we are moving through and that the medium 
term focus on key areas of delivery is clearly 
drawn out in the Corporate Plan. 

VP/BK Corporate Plan amended – further work will be undertaken during the year 
through business planning process 

P
age 18



 

 

 

12

 Recommendation Cabinet/CMT 
lead 

Cabinet Response 

 

R61 Investigate the best ways of joining up our 
various priority areas of delivery through an 
overall programme. 

 

VP/BK As R60 above 

R62 Provide risk mitigation around red delivery 
plans in 2012-13. 

 

Identified 
Cabinet 
members and 
directors 

Agreed 

 

 

 

 

P
age 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



1  

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Performance and Finance Report (including Capital 

Programme update) 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    7 February 2012 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Bowyer and Councillor Ricketts 

CMT Member:   CMT 

Author: David Northey, Head of Finance 

 Patrick Hartop, Policy and Performance Officer 

Contact:    Tel: (01752) (30)4942 
    e-mail:david.northey@plymouth.gov.uk 

patrick.hartop@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:    fin/djn01/12 

Key Decision:   No 

Part: I    
 
Executive Summary: 
  
This report is the third monitoring report for 2011/12 and outlines the performance and finance 
monitoring position of the Council as at the end of December 2011.  
 
The primary purpose of this report is to detail how the Council is delivering against its key 
indicators in terms of performance, and its financial measures using its capital and revenue 
resources. It is deliberately strategic in focussing on key areas of performance, expenditure, and 
risk, and includes under each Departmental Business section a balanced scorecard detailing key 
issues.  
 
With effect from 1 January 2012, the Council restructured its Directorates to move from five to 
three, with a corresponding reduction in Directors. However, for comparison purposes, this 
report continues to monitor against the “old” five directorate model. This report also introduces 
the Council’s newly designed Scorecards. 
 
Performance summary 
 
Performance indicators used in this report represent Plymouth City Council’s contribution to 
delivering the citywide priorities of Growth, Aspiration, Inequalities and Value for Communities.  
 
The overall performance position, as per the previous quarter, continues to have no highly 
critical issues. In fact, it should be noted that 54% (last quarter 45%) of our performance 
indicators monitored in year are on track, with a further 34% (last quarter 31%) just off track. 
Therefore, despite the difficult circumstances we are currently facing, we can report 88% of our 
performance indicators are there or there about on target.  
 
Examples of positive outcomes include: 
 

• Planning application performance continues to rise with 82% of major developments 
determined in time 

Agenda Item 7Page 21



2  

 
•  British Art Show was a great success with 75,000 visitors which was in excess of 

anticipated numbers 
 

• Homelessness prevention target being achieved, although homeless numbers continue to 
add pressure to demand  
 

 
Areas requiring close scrutiny are: 

 
• Domestic burglary has increased by 28.9% (196 more crimes) compared to same period 

last year 
 

• The cumulative average time to process new Housing and Council Tax Benefit claims is 
currently 27.7 days against an annual target of 20 days. Performance has slightly improved 
since the first quarter when it stood at 28.9 days.  
  

• Q3 NEET’s figure is 6.7% (0.1% higher than the same period last year), against a target of 
5.30%. However, lower than national figure of 9.5% 
 

• Self-Directed Support; this is a critical personalisation indicator and we are not 
forecasting we will meet our end-of-year target of 60%. As at the end of the December 
quarter we are at 30%. 
 

It must be remembered that the performance of the authority cannot be viewed in isolation from 
what is happening to the global economy, and the knock-on effect to the local Plymouth 
economy. Consumer confidence remains at its lowest for the past few years; the UK economy is 
dependent on the success of its European trading partners; much now depends on the success of 
the agreement drawn up by European Leaders to bail out failing national economies and underpin 
the future of the Euro.  One immediate and obvious impact of the current economic issues could 
see a further increase in the number of benefit claims. Despite strains on local businesses, which 
we could expect to result in pressure on rate payments, we have not seen an impact on our 
income collection rates.  
 
Finance summary - Revenue 
 
The Council is forecasting a revenue over spend at year end of £0.454m (previous report an 
over spend of £0.569m) against a net revenue budget of £208.237m. This equates to a net spend 
of £208.691m which is a variance of 0.2%, and a small improvement of £0.115m in the quarter. 
 
The main adverse variation relates to Community Services, forecasting an over spend of 
£1.072m, an adverse movement of £0.317m in the three months from September 2011, and 
represents 0.98% of the £107.8m budget.  This reflects increases in supported living packages 
across the Adult Social Care service, with some continuing healthcare funded cases becoming the 
Council responsibility in the Learning Disability Service. Environmental Services are now 
reporting an overspend of £0.529m  at Quarter 3 mainly due to removing the anticipated income 
projection of £0.398m for landfill rebate; whilst action still continues to secure this rebate it will 
not be received in 2011/12 
 
Children and Young People have consolidated the reported savings in quarter two; they are now 
forecasting an under spend of £0.751m, a positive movement in the quarter of £0.585m. 
 
 
 

Page 22



3  

Children’s Social Care is reporting a favourable variance of £0.423m reflecting an increased 
under spend within the quarter. Learner and Family Support are reporting a favourable variance 
of £0.110m, with the pressure on transport having been managed down. Lifelong Learning 
reports an under spend of £0.203m 
 
Details can be found in the C&YP section of this report. 
 
Finance summary – Revenue Delivery Plans 
 
Good progress has again been made against the £15.197m revenue delivery plans set for 
2011/12, with just under 95% rated either Green or Amber. RAG rated delivery plans are 
detailed within the report. 
 
Finance summary - Capital 
 
In the quarterly report for September 2011, the 2011/12 Capital Programme stood at £85.679m.  
Following approval of new schemes, re-profiling and variations at Full Council in December 2011, 
the capital programme for 2011/12 was £87.005m however the latest forecast at 20th January 
2012, is now £78.661m. 
 
       
 
Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015:   
 
This quarterly report is fundamentally linked to delivering the priorities within the Council’s 
Corporate Plan.  Allocating limited resources to key priorities will maximise the benefits to the 
residents of Plymouth. 
          
 
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Robust and accurate financial monitoring underpins the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Forecast is updated regularly based on on-going 
monitoring information. 
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management 
and Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
The reducing revenue and capital resources across the public sector has been identified as a key 
risk within our Strategic Risk register. Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken on the 
Delivery Plans that underpin the 2011 12 budget. 
 

 
 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
That Cabinet:- 
 
 
 

Page 23



4  

1. Approve the variations to capital spend and re-profiling as detailed in Table 6. 
 

2. Recommend to Full Council the new capital schemes for investment as detailed in Table 7 
amounting to £0.056m in 2011/12 and £2.026m for future years. 
 

3. Approve the budget virements as detailed in Table 9 of the report 
 
4. Approve the potential draw down on the Waste Reserve for 2011/12, subject to the 

2011/12 Outturn position. 
 
5. Approve the potential draw down on the Pension Reserve for 2011/12, subject to the 

2011/12 Outturn position. 
 
6. Approve the funding of the Council’s element of the CRC Levy for 2011/12. 

 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Actions are recommended in response to specific variances in either performance and / or 
finances identifed throughout the report. 

 
Background papers: 
 

• Sustainable Community Strategy 
• 2011 Plymouth City Council Corporate Plan 
• 2011/12 Budget Setting papers published in December 2010 
• Joint Performance and Finance Report – November 2011 

 

 
Sign off:   

 
Fin MC111

2.06 
Leg TH3

0/1/
12 

HR MG Corp 
Prop 

n/a IT n/a Strat 
Proc 

n/a 

Originating SMT Member M Coe 

Page 24



5  

Plymouth City Council  
Performance and Finance Monitoring – 2011/12 

Quarter 3 to 31 December 2011 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 With diminishing financial resources, it is fundamentally important that the Council 

maintains a clear focus on delivering progress against the identified corporate and city 
priorities.  
 

1.2 A challenging set of revenue budget delivery plans have been approved for 2011/ 12 in 
order to deliver a balanced budget. Capital grants have been significantly reduced 
heightening the importance of clear prioritisation of spend linked to delivering tangible 
outcomes. 
 

1.3 Performance and Finance information, and associated Delivery Plans, are owned by 
Directors and their Management Teams. Much progress has been made in recent years to 
ensure that cross cutting priorities are delivered and that finance is allocated to areas of 
most importance to the public (e.g. protecting the delivery of front line services) 
 

1.4 This report outlines the progress against key performance indicators, forecasts the year 
end revenue position, provides details of progress against delivery plans and recommends 
updates to the council’s capital programme and revenue reserves. This is the third 
quarterly report of the year, and the period of this report covers April to the end of 
December 2011.   

 
1.5 A revised scorecard has been included within each Directorate report which focuses on 

exception reporting and identifying remedial action to be taken where necessary.  
 
1.6 This report contains the following sections and Appendices:- 
  

Section ‘A’ – Executive Summary - Performance  
 
Section ‘B’ – Executive Summary - Finance 
•     Revenue    
• Income  
• Capital 

 
Section ‘C’ – Executive Summary – Human Resources 

 
Section ‘D’ – Departmental Performance & Finance Report 
•      Department scorecards 
•      Department Budget Delivery Plans 
•      Department Risk items 
•      Departmental Medium Term Issues 
•      Corporate Items and Cross Cutting Issues 
 
Section ‘E’ - Concluding Remarks 
 
Appendices 
• Appendix A – Finance Monitoring Summary Graph. 
•  Appendix B – Capital 
•  Appendix C – Departmental Delivery Plans 

Page 25



6  

SECTION A - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY PERFORMANCE 
 

2. Performance Management arrangements 
 

2.1  The performance indicators used in this report represent Plymouth City Council’s 
contribution to delivering the citywide priorities of Growth, Aspiration, Inequalities and 
Value for Communities. The indicators are arranged over 3 levels and are defined as 
follows; 

Level 1 - is a small basket of strategic indicators that track progress towards achieving 
Plymouth’s long term vision. Targets are set for the next ten years. Example: Increase Life 
Expectancy 
 
Level 2 - are high level outcome indicators that support delivery of Level 1. In many 
cases the indicators need to be delivered in partnership. Targets are set on a 3 year 
rolling basis.  Example:  Housing decency - Number of Category 1 Hazards removed   
 
Level 3 - are single agency indicators that either support Levels 1 and 2 or are business 
critical to the organisation. Targets are set on a 3 year rolling basis. Example: % people 
from health deprived neighbourhoods accessing Sports Development activities 
 
 

2.2   A performance summary is provided for departments in a scorecard format along with 
budget variances. The narrative within the scorecard provides a high level overview with 
a focus on explaining corrective action where required. The scorecards use a RAG (red, 
amber, green) traffic light system to indicate current performance. There are instances 
where indicators, baselines and targets are still being finalized; these are coloured white. 
Grey indicates that the Directorate does not monitor indicators at this level. Explanation 
of the scorecard rules are outlined below. 

  
 

 
RAG Rating key - Budgets  
 0% - 0.8% overspend / 0% - 1.8% under spend   0.8% - 0.99% overspend / 1.8% - 

1.99% under spend 
 1% or more overspend / 2% or more under spend   

 
RAG Rating key -Measures – an average of all measures that sit within Departments 
 Indicators are on track   Overall rating is up to 15% off target  

 
Overall rating is more than 15% off target  

 No data available. Baseline data and 
targets are yet to be agreed  

  
No indicators set for this service  
  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



7  

3rd quarter performance headlines 
 
Table 1- Quarter 3 Corporate Scorecard 

 

Budget £000's
Forecast 
£000's

Dif -/+

208,237 208,691 0.22%

Budget 
£000's

Forecast 
£000's

Diff -/+
Delivered 
£000's

On Schedule 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Level 3

49,184 48,433 -1.53% 3,280 550 60 A

18,340 18,502 0.88% 240 450 100 G

1,314 1,553 18.19% 600 0 0

28,996 28,727 -0.93% 3,480 1,776 120 A

107,821 108,894 1.00% 3,286 320 535 A

2,582 2,582 0.00% 200 200 0

No Indicators

Directorate Summary - Quarter 3 Report

Summary

Finance Performance HR

Finance - Monitoring Position Delivery Plans Year End Forecast % of Sickness Absence

Development and Regeneration
A 6.92

Directorate Overall RAG  (Red/Amber/Green)

Green AMBER AMBER RED

9.6

Delivery Plans Performance Rating (Forecast) HR

Children & Young People A

QTR3 - Departmental Summary

Level 2 12 month rolling average (Target 6 
Days)

Finance Monitoring  - Departmental Forecast

Corporate Items

Chief Executive No Indicators 6.53

Corporate Support G

A 11.95

7.85

Community Services

0.24% 0.00% -0.41%
0.29% 0.23%

0.22%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

Outturn
2008/09

Outturn
2009/10

Outturn
2010/11

Oct
2011/12
Forecast

Nov
2011/12
Forecast

Dec
2011/12
Forecast

% - Council Overall Forecast Position 

10.968
9.71

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

April June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

% Sickness Levels

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

09/10 10/11 Oct Nov Dec

% Performance forecast

£815

£3,296

£11,086

Delivery Plans £000's

 
 
 
2.3   Some of the key points raised in the scorecard narrative are:  

 
Community Services  
 

2.4   Overall performance for the directorate is predicted to be rated amber by the end of the 
financial year and has been affected by the increase in domestic burglaries, lower than 
anticipated take up of Personal Budgets and lower museum attendances.   

 
2.5 Almost 66% of delivery plan savings have been achieved so far with a further 22% on 

schedule to deliver by the end of the financial year.   
 

2.6   Community Services has the highest sickness levels for the Council, though these have 
continued to reduce throughout the year. 
 
Children and Young People’s Services  
 

2.7   At least 70% of CYPs performance indicators are in the top or middle quartiles when 
compared nationally. 

  
2.8   The local forecast is that the directorate predicts to achieve an amber rating for 

performance at the end of the financial year. However, this is due to a set of very 
challenging targets.   

  
2.9 Sickness is above the target of an average of 6 days (FTE) per year, but the directorate 

has seen a decrease by more than 2 days since the beginning of the financial year.  
 
 
 

Page 27



8  

 
 
 
 

Corporate Support  
 

2.10 The directorate reports a favourable variation against budget and has 65% of its 
delivery plans achieved with a further 33% on schedule to achieve by the end of the 
financial year.   

 
 

Development and Regeneration  
 
2.11 The directorate predicts an amber rating for its financial position at the end of the 

financial year 
 
2.12 Delivery plans are mostly achieved or on track to achieve. 
 
2.13 Along with Chief Executive's, Development & Regeneration have the lowest average 

sickness across the council.  
 
Chief Executive 
 

2.14 The directorate is on target to achieve its budget by the end of the financial year.   
 
2.15 50% of its delivery plan savings have been achieved with the remaining 50% on schedule 

to deliver by the end of the financial year.   
 
2.16 This directorate along with Development and Regeneration has the lowest sickness levels 

(though above the 6 days target) for the whole council. 
 

Corporate Items 
 

2.17 The department is forecasting an over spend of £0.240m, as explained in the report, but 
will achieve its budget Delivery Plan target by the end of the financial year. 

 
2.18 Sickness absences continue with a downward trend towards the Council’s target of 6 

days per FTE.  A comparison of sickness absence, for a rolling 12 months, at the end of 
December 2011, compared with the end of December 2010 shows that sickness has 
decreased by 3.45 days from 13.16 days to 9.71 days per FTE.  New policies and 
procedures, as well as a focus on employee health are contributing to this favourable 
trend.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



9  

 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION B - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – FINANCE 
 

3. General Fund Revenue Budget  
 

3.1 Council approved a net revenue budget of £208.237m for 2011/12 at its meeting on 28 
February 2011. At the end of June 2011, a revenue overspend of £1.294m (0.6%) was 
forecast. At the end of September 2011, this forecast overspend had reduced to £0.569m 
(0.3%). At the end of this quarter, to the end of December 2011, we are reporting a 
further improvement to an over spend of £0.454m Table 2 below shows the forecast 
year end position across departments.  

 
 Table 2 End of year revenue forecasts 
 

 
 
3.2  Further details of the variations are outlined in the individual Directors reports in Section 

D of this report.  
 

3.3 Delivery Plan Update 
 

In setting the budget for 2011/12, departmental delivery plans totalling £15.197m were 
agreed in order to achieve a balanced budget. Overall, significant progress has been made 
across the majority of these plans. The Red / Amber / Green (RAG) rating applied in this 
report have been robustly challenged 
 
Inevitably, throughout the year, original Delivery Plans will change due to changes in 
circumstances. Some will overachieve whereas others will not generate the savings target 

Page 29



10  

anticipated. Where such variations occur, initially it is the responsibility of the sponsoring 
department to develop and implement alternative budget delivery plans and actions. 
Major variations to delivery plans will be reported within individual departmental sections. 
 
Only where there is no planned remedial action to address a non performing delivery 
plan will a forecasted overspend be reported. However, overspends can also occur in the 
event of unforeseen budget pressures such as a significant increase in service demand or 
loss of income stream. Similarly, underspends are identified where ‘over’ delivery of plans 
have been achieved, (or forecasted), surplus income achieved or a reduction in service 
demand identified. 
 
Table 3 below summarises the progress against the 2011/12 revenue budget delivery 
plans by department.  
 
Table 3 – Delivery Plan Summary  
 

DIRECTORATE 
Total    
Delivery    
Plans 

     Red       Amber     Green 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE 3,890 60 550 3,280 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 
4,141 535 320 3,286 

DEVELOPMENT & 
REGENERATION 790 100 450 240 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 
5,376 120 1,776 3,480 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
400 0 200 200 

CORPORATE ITEMS 
600 0 0 600 

Total Delivery Plans 
15,197 815 3,296         11,086 

% Total Delivery Plans 100.0% 5.4% 21.7%          72.9% 
 
Overall, progress against this challenging agenda is encouraging, with just under 95% of 
plans rated as Green or Amber status. A detailed breakdown, by department can be seen 
at Appendix C. 
 
We must continue to work on achieving all of the delivery plans for the current year, not 
only to achieve our budget for the year, but also because the majority of the current 
plans roll forward and underpin the budgets for the coming two years. 
 
Cabinet Members must also continue to challenge all Directors. 
 

4 Income Summary  
 
4.1 As previous reported, continuing to improve income collection rates remains a challenge 

within the current economic environment. Whereas significant progress has been made in 
improving the in- year Council Tax collection target and Sundry Debtors target in recent 

Page 30



11  

years, such improvement becomes more difficult to sustain each year. However, we 
remain ambitious and constantly review alternative, more effective ways of joining up and 
collecting income owed to the Council. 

 
4.2  Progress made against 2011/12 income collection targets as at 31 December 2011 is 

shown in table 4 below: 
 

Table 4 – Income Collection performance 
 

Type of 
debt 

 
 

Budgeted 
income 
2011/12 

Year to date 
Target % 
2011/12 

Year to date 
Actual % 
2011/12 

 
 

Achieved 
% 

2010/11 

 
Year end 
Target 
 % 

2011/12 
Council 
Tax £93m 82.10 81.54  

96.1 97.00 

NNDR £86m 87.31 86.19  
97.3 98.00 

Sundry 
Debt £61m 95.00 93.06 92.5 95.00 

 

4.3 We are confident, given the current performance of collection rates for both Council Tax 
and NNDR that the year-end target will be achieved.  However, Sundry Debtor 
collection rates are currently (marginally) below the ambitious improvement targets set at 
95%. We will continue to explore opportunities for increasing this collection rate such as, 
wherever possible, encouraging pre-payment for goods and services. 

 
5.   Capital Programme 
 
5.1  In the quarterly report for September 2011, the 2011/12 Capital Programme stood at 

£85.679m.  Following approval of new schemes, re-profiling and variations at Full Council 
in December 2011, the capital programme for 2011/12 was £87.005m however the latest 
forecast at 20th January 2012, is now £78.661m.  

 
The additional schemes, not included as part of the quarter 2 monitoring report but 
approved at the December Full Council, are shown in Table 5.  
 

 
Table 5 – Additional Schemes Approved at December Council Meetings 
 
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 Schemes Approved at December Councils 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 
26 1,274 - - Data Centre 

1,300 - - - Capitalised Road Maintenance 
     

1,326 1,274    0    0 Total of Additional Schemes Approved 

 
 
5.2 Due to timing around the delivery of capital spend, and variations due to project slippage, 

changes in priorities, contractor performance, ability to achieve capital receipt etc. we are 

Page 31



12  

now reporting the following changes to the timing of capital spend over the next four 
financial years:    

 
 
 
Table 6 – Recommended Re-profiling and Variations to Capital Spend  
 
 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Re-Profiling / Other Variations 
£000 £000 £000 £000  
(2,041) 2041 - - Corporate Accommodation Strategy - Re-profiling 

to take into account changes to work plans. 
(535) 535 - - Autistic Spectrum Disorder - Reprofiling of 

expenditure on project following delays in planning 
and feasibility. 

(1,093) 1,093 - - Mercury Abatement – Reprofiling to reflect more 
realistic delivery dates. 

(1,087) 1,087 - - SAP Replacement – Updated cashflow information 
from project officer. 

- (3,800) 3,800  Materials Recycling Facility – Reprofiling with 
updated information from project officer. 

662 (657) (5) - Plymouth Life Centre - Re-profiling of budget from 
12/13 to 11/12 for risk items that will be expended 
in this financial year. 

(4,350) 4,176 327 191 Other Re-profiling – Details in Appendix B 
44 1,097 3,928 4,853 Variations & Virements – Details in Appendix B 

(8,400) 5,572 8,050 5,044 Total Re-Profiling / Other Variations 
 
 

5.3  The Capital Delivery Board has recently considered, and prioritised, a number of other 
new capital investment projects that deliver outcomes against corporate priorities. These 
schemes will be presented for approval at the next Full Council meeting in February 2012.  

 
Table 7 – New Scheme for recommendation to Full Council (Feb 2012) 
 

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 Scheme to be Approved at February Council 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 

- 80 320 500 
Plymouth Natural Networks – Increased green 
space in the city to match the additional housing as 
per the Growth Agenda 

- 790 - - Gypsy and Travellers Site – Site at Broadley Park 
- 51 285 - Southway Community Football Hub 
56 - - - Mt Edgcumbe – Purchase of Marquee 

  56  921  605  500 Total of new Schemes for approval Feb 2012 

 
 
5.4 The Capital Programme is always subject to variations, due to a number of different 

factors and these are reviewed each month. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



13  

 
 
 
  
 
 

 
             £000 

Programme following approvals at Full Council December 11         87,005 
  
Re-profiling for approval at February Cabinet (Table 6)  
 

(8,444) 

Variations / Virements for approval at February Cabinet (Table 6) 44 
New Schemes for approval at February Council (Table 7) 56 
  
Revised (Latest Forecast)      78,661 

 
 
Capital Expenditure to Date 

 
5.5  To date, we have accrued actual spend of £50.448m which equates to 64% spend against 

the revised estimated annual spend of £78.661m.  Departments are confident that they 
will be able to deliver the vast majority of the approved capital programme in year 
however further amendments will be considered by the Capital Delivery Board, 
submitted to Cabinet and recommended to Full Council, as appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
Capital Receipts 
 
5.6 There has been pressure on the council’s ability to generate capital receipts over the last 

couple of years due to falling property and land prices.  The current Medium Term capital 
programme assumes generation of £35.2m receipts up to, and including, 2014/15.  

 
5.7 The capital receipts now available to fund the programme (RAG rated) from the disposal 

of land and buildings are as follows: 
  
Capital Receipt to date      19.970 
2011/12 Estimated to be Rec’d        1.156 
2012/13 Estimated Receipts        6.888 
2013/14 Estimated Receipts        4.569 
2014/15 Estimated Receipts        1.781 
  
Total     34.364 

 
 
 

Recommendations:  
 
1. Cabinet approve the re-profiling and variations to capital spend as detailed in 

Table 6. 
 

2. Cabinet recommend to Full Council the new capital schemes for investment as 
detailed in Table 7 amounting to £0.056m in 2011/12 and £2.026m for future 
years. 

Page 33



14  

5.8 The Council uses capital receipts as part of its funding streams however the timing of 
when the capital receipts are paid into the Council does not always match up with when 
we wish to apply them to schemes. This mismatch on timing between capital receipts 
generated and capital receipts requirement has been flagged up consistently in previous 
reports.  As such, any temporary shortfall of required capital receipts will need to be 
funded by short-term unsupported borrowing that would be financed from the Capital 
Finance Reserve or the working balance, until such time as additional capital receipts are 
generated. 

 
Capital Medium Term Forecast 

 
5.9 Projecting forward the above changes across the next three financial years provides an 

initial capital programme as detailed in Table 8.  This is the programme based on known 
projects and funding streams. The council will remain proactive at optimising external 
grant funding wherever possible in order to continue significant capital investment in the 
city. The Council has adopted a four year Capital MTFF aligning it with the number of 
years over which the revenue MTFF is based. The programme will grow in future years 
when we receive more certainty around future funding streams. 

 
Table 8 – Capital Medium Term Forecast & Funding 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                        
Funding Source  

2011/12 
£000 

2012/13 
£000 

2013/14 
£000 

2014/15 
£000 

Total 
£000 

Capital Receipts 20,126 9,955 5,077 0 35,158 
Unsupported Borrowing 19,528 5,195 0 0 24,723 
Supported Borrowing 277 47 0 0 324 
Grants & Contributions 33,574 33,177 23,472 13,294 103,517 
S106 / Tariff 1,857 957 51 1,250 4,115 
Revenue & Funds 3,299 1,390 198 337 5,224 
Total 78,661 50,721 28,798 14,881 173,061 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

2011/12 
Revised 
£000 

2012/13 
Revised 
£000 

2013/14 
Revised 
£000 

2014/15 
Revised 
£000 

Total 
£000 

  Children’s Services 
 15,727 25,431 15,987 5,948 63,093 

  Community Services 26,951 9,012 1,155 1,062 38,180 
  Corporate Support  
 7,662 6,547 521 0 14,730 

  Development & 
  Regeneration 28,321 9,731 11,135 7,871 57,058 

  78,661 50,721 28,798 14,881 173,061 

Page 34



15  

 
 

SECTION C – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

 
6. Human Resources Key Messages 
 
 
6.1  The annual basic salary bill for the Council establishment is around £84million.  Each 

year the Council’s budget includes a savings target of 3% for ‘vacancy savings’ which is 
naturally achieved from vacant positions and natural turnover of staff. 

 
 
6.2   Key facts and figures are; 
 
 

• At the end of December 2011, there were 4248 employees (3351 FTE), a reduction 
to headcount of 516 employees (348.3FTE) from December 2010. 

 
• Corporately a threshold of 5% of the total wage bill has been set, to monitor the use 

of agency staffing.  Agency Spend is currently 5.36% of the monthly wage bill in 
December 2011. 

 
• Sickness – there have been improvements throughout the council at reporting 

absences providing much better management information.  A rigorous target of 6 
working days per FTE per year has been set.  At the end of December 2011, the 
average sickness level was 9.71 days per FTE, for the last rolling 12 months.  This is a 
3.45 days’ reduction from December 2010.  There is a corporate drive to significantly 
reduce this level and HR is working closely with departments to consistently address 
proactive management of absence.  

 
 
6.3  The Council aims to reduce the direct and in-direct costs of the workforce through: 
 

• Natural turnover 
• Planned retirements / use of temporary contracts 
• Recruitment controls and improving redeployment opportunities 
• Reducing the overheads of the workforce (direct and indirect) 
• Negotiated workforce reductions 
• Modernisation and workforce re-modelling 
• Maintaining capacity and improving productivity (which will also require some 

investment from the Council in skills, training and support) 
• Reducing the overall size of the workforce 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



16  

 
 
Redundancies and Voluntary Release: 
 

6.4 During this financial year until 31December 2011, 61 people have been made redundant 
and left the Authority. 

 
In the last 12 months to 31 December 2011 81 people have been made redundant and 
left the Authority. 

 
We have successfully redeployed 40 people at risk of redundancy this financial year.  This 
equates to 45% of people being successfully redeployed. 

 
We have successfully redeployed 61 people at risk of redundancy in the last 12 months to 
31 Dec 11.  

 
 
6.5 The voluntary release scheme has allowed 85 people to  leave  the Authority before the 

end of the year. 
 
 

New Local Terms and Conditions 
 

 
6.6 The new local terms and conditions are now being implemented in accordance with the 

implementation timetable.    
 
 
Senior Management Review 
 
 

6.7 The three new directorates came into effect on 1 January 2012.   The Appointments 
Panel will make appointments to the Assistant Director level during January 2012, to take 
effect from 1 March 2012. 

 
 

Page 36



17  

SECTION D – DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE & FINANCE REPORT 
  
7    Children & Young People’s Services 
 
7.1. Scorecard - General Fund Revenue Forecast is an underspend £0.751m   
 

Budget 
000's

Forecast 
000's

Dif -/+

£49,184 £48,433 -2.60%

Budget 
£000's

Forecast 
£000's

Diff -/+
Delivered 
£000's

On Schedule 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Level 3

£11,575 £11,362 -2.21% A

£9,409 £9,299 -4.79% £320 £230 £60 A

£28,067 £27,644 -1.99% £760 £0 £0 A

£2,200 £320 £0

Social Care G 10.11

No Data No Indicators No HR Data
Director (other Del 
Group)

QTR3 - Departmental Summary

Lifelong Learning No Delivery Plans A

Level 2

HRFinance Monitoring  - Departmental Forecast Delivery Plans Performance Rating (Forecast)

10.42

7.83
Learner and Family 
Support

No Indicators

Directorate Overall RAG  (Red/Amber/Green)

RED GREEN AMBER RED

12 month rolling average (Target 6 
Days)

Finance - Monitoring Position Delivery Plans Year End Forecast

Services for Children and Young People - Quarter 3 Report

Summary

Finance Performance HR

% of Sickness Absence

-0.26%

3.62%

-0.52%
-1.07% -1.48%

-2.60%

-5.0%

-3.0%

-1.0%

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

Outturn
2008/09

Outturn
2009/10

Outturn
2010/11

Oct
2011/12
Forecast

Nov
2011/12
Forecast

Dec
2011/12
Forecast

% - Services for C&YP Overall Forecast Position 

11.71

9.6

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

April June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

% Sickness Levels

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

08/09 09/10 10/11 Oct Nov Dec

% Performance forecast

£60

£550

£3,280

Delivery Plans £000's

 
 

Responsible Officers: Maggie Carter / Colin Moore / Mairead MacNeil 
 

Social Care  
 
Children’s Social Care is reporting a favourable variation of (£0.423m) reflecting an 
increased underspend within the quarter. Residential placements have increased to 20, 
against a target of 13, Independent fostering placements have decreased by 2 to 63 with a 
target of 56. There have also been a number of changes to existing placements across all 
service provision resulting in an overall reduction of (£0.102m). Additional  savings 
relating to employee costs of ( £0.315m) within the quarter due to permanent staffing 
changes, agency cover and the reduction in take up of family group conferencing. Both 
Delivery Plans number 8 Diversion of Children from Care (£0.400m) and 10 ‘Secure 
Placements’ (£0.180m) have been turned green during the quarter and the budget has 
been reduced accordingly. A contribution of £0.650m towards the Carefirst project has 
now been agreed. 
 
Learner and Family Support  
 
A favourable budget forecast for year end of (£0.110 m) excluding the £0.060m red 
delivery plan. Previously reported pressure in transport has been managed down. 
Recruitment delays resulting from the Council's restructure have led to additional in-year 
savings against some planned projects.   
 
The department has some concerns regarding the number of Common Assessments 
being undertaken (CAF). However, as the Localities project begins to take effect it is 

Page 37



18  

anticipated that numbers will increase. The latest performance data released (2010/11) 
indicates that the department has more than 75% of indicators in the top or middle 
quartiles when compared nationally. More challenging targets have been set again for 
2011/12 and it is anticipated that at least 50% of all indicators will achieve their target by 
the end of the year.  
 
Lifelong Learning 
  
A favourable budget forecast position of (£0.203m). There is an on-going potential 
pressure relating to the tax liability of School Improvement Partners which could result in 
an additional payment of £0.100m. The pressure has been offset by the early achievement 
of 2012/13 delivery plans. There are therefore no delivery plans to report. The 
department is currently focusing on the rising levels of young people not in employment, 
education or training (NEET). In order to help reduce NEETs, we are implementing an 
‘Increasing Participation’ Plan partly funded by the DfE through our involvement in 
‘Raising the Participation Age’ trial work. The latest performance data released (2010/11) 
indicates that the department has more than 70% of indicators in the top or middle 
quartiles when compared nationally. Of those measures in the bottom quartile, 
Achievement at Level 4 or above in both English and Maths at KS2 is a concern. An action 
plan is in place to ensure performance improves. More challenging targets have been set 
again for 2011/12 and it is anticipated that at least 50% of all indicators will achieve their 
target by the end of the year. Sickness levels have been gradually reducing over the last 7 
months and are the lowest within the Service.  
 
People Management  
 
The Services’ sickness levels is showing 9.6 and is slightly below the overall council figures 
(9.71), but is still above the Council’s target (6 days). Collaborative action is being taken 
to monitor and manage absences, particularly around long term sickness cases which are 
of particular sensitivity. 

 
7.2  Delivery Plan Update 

 

Children & Young People have a Delivery Plan target of £3.890m for 2011/12. The table 
below shows the summary position by Red Amber and Green rating (RAG).  The detailed 
Delivery plan is contained in Appendix C 
 

Service Red 

£000 

Amber 

£000 

Green 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Learner & Family 
Support 60 230 320 610 

Lifelong Learning 0 0 0 0 

Social Care 0 0 760 760 

Other Delivery 
Groups 0 320 2,200 2,520 

Total CYP 60 550 3,280 3,890 
 
Performance against delivery continues with the Commissioning & Finance programme 
board tracking progress on a monthly basis.   

Page 38



19  

 
 
7.3   Risks and Issues 
 

• The numbers of Children in Care can change quickly and so Diversion from Care 
strategies and related initiatives will continue to be implemented – this will impact on the 
revenue budget and future years’ delivery plans.  

• Looked after Children numbers are monitored on a weekly basis and currently based on 
trends being experienced by other local authorities, there is a risk of increased numbers 
which could result in higher costs in the latter end of the year. Savings currently achieved 
to some extent mask the underlying cost pressures meaning activity still needs to be 
addressed to address underlying trends. 

• Demand for Transport could increase and result in higher costs 
• Capacity to achieve the Delivery Plans continues to be managed through the 

Commissioning and Finance Programme board 
• Changes to grants and funding streams could have an adverse impact on the service 
• Invest to save projects to deliver reductions in current and future costs need to be 

monitored for progress against the targets in the original business cases. 
 
7.4   Invest to Save 
 
 

The department has two invest to save projects. Parent and Child Assessments and 
Intensive Support for Young People with Multiple and Complex Needs. 
 
 
Parent and Child Assessments  
 
 
The Parent and Child Assessment team will be fully staffed by the beginning of February 
2012. The team manager was appointed at the beginning of autumn 2011 and took up her 
post at the beginning of October. She has completed the recruitment of the whole team 
including a temporary administrator, and an assessing social worker. The team have 
places on evidence based assessment training to be undertaken during January 2012. 
 
The Parent and Child Assessment team will become operational in January 2012 and aim 
to have completed three parent and child assessments by the end of March 2012.  
Fostering aim to have approved one further set of carers (as a minimum), in addition to 
the current two sets, who will be available for parent and child fostering by end of March 
2012. This will start to contribute towards the aim of reducing the number of out of city 
placements which will improve the service provided to families and reduce costs. 
 
The initiative is estimated to provide estimated annual savings of £0.135m against 
approved budgets from year 3 onwards, which actually equates to £0.290m savings when 
compared to 2010/11 expenditure levels. Due to timings around staff recruitment and 
actual external placement numbers there are expected to be savings of up to £0.050m in 
2011/12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



20  

 
 
Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) and Complex Needs  
 

The full business case to facilitate supporting children with complex care needs in the 
family home and the local community, placing less reliance on the expensive independent 
residential sector was approved by the Capital Delivery Board with work on the building 
due to commence in February 2012. The operational project team is currently providing 
the planned service from various venues with a view to becoming fully operational within 
the one venue when building work is complete.  
 

7.5 Schools 

 

The Schools DSG position is regularly reported to the Schools Forum.  
 

The latest forecast, as at the end of November 2011, shows a projected underspend of 
£0.363m for DSG funded activities. Pressures relating to insurance costs being borne by a 
smaller number of schools because of Academy transfers and the increased Planned 
Admission Numbers for some schools have been offset by the lower take-up of the early 
years free entitlement, reductions in independent sector placements and the Lifelong 
Learning service restructure 
 

7.6 Medium Term Issues 
 
The level of Schools buy back and Academy business will impact on the level of income 
and the net cost of services. Furthermore, a significant increase in the central government 
top slicing of the overall local authority formula grant, which is then used to fund 
academies, will result in less resources being passed to the council and in particular 
children’s services and schools.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



21  

 
 
 
8. Community Services 

 
8.1 Scorecard - General Fund Revenue Forecast is an overspend of £1.072m  
  

Budget 000's
Forecast 
000's

Dif -/+

£107,820 £108,892 1.32%

Budget 
£000's

Forecast 
£000's

Diff -/+
Delivered 
£000's

On Schedule 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Level 3

£71,903 £72,337 0.60% £1,671 £320 £0 A

£2,550 £2,493 -2.24% £70 £0 £0 A

£9,838 £10,005 1.70% £680 £0 £250 A

£25,508 £26,037 2.07% £865 £0 £285 GEnvironmental Services G 12.76

Safer Communities G 5.29

Culture Sport & Leisure

12 month rolling average (Target 6 
Days)

Finance Monitoring  - Departmental Forecast Delivery Plans Performance Rating (Forecast) HR

Adult Social Care A 13.40

AMBER RED

Directorate Overall RAG  (Red/Amber/Green)

RED AMBER

No indicators 7.45

QTR3 - Departmental Summary

Level 2

Finance - Monitoring Position Delivery Plans Year End Forecast % of Sickness Absence

Community Services - Quarter 3 Report

Summary

Finance Performance HR

1.81%

4.93%

-0.08%
0.91% 1.12%

1.32%

-5.0%

-3.0%

-1.0%

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

Outturn
2008/09

Outturn
2009/10

Outturn
2010/11

Oct
2011/12
Forecast

Nov
2011/12
Forecast

Dec
2011/12
Forecast

% - Community Services Overall Forecast Position 

14.90

11.95

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

April June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

% Sickness Levels

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

08/09 09/10 10/11 Oct Nov Dec

% Performance forecast

£535

£320

£3,286

Delivery Plans £000's

 
 

Responsible Officers: Pam Marsden, James Coulton, Jayne Donovan and Pete Aley 
 

Adult Social Care 
 
The forecast overspend in Adult Social Care has decreased to £0.434m assuming all 
delivery plans are achieved by year end.  Delivery plans are mostly completed or on track 
to be delivered with no red rated plans.  The service continues to focus on scrutinising all 
spend and managing down expensive packages of care.  Progress against budget is 
scrutinised and the level of financial risk is challenged through both the ASC Management 
Team and also the ASC Programme Board.  We are no longer expecting to achieve the 
self direct support/direct payment target at year end but we are expecting to improve on 
last year’s outturn position of 31%.  We are rolling out significant change across the 
service in a managed and phased way.  This approach will have longer term benefits.  
Performance has been affected in the short term as it requires significant culture change 
and not all staff have yet received the necessary induction and training to operate in a 
personalised way.  However, we remain confident that we will achieve the 100% target by 
March 2013.  Sickness in the service, although high, is being actively managed and has 
continued to fall since May 2011, despite the significant change required of the service and 
the restructure which is underway.   
 
On a more positive note delayed transfers of care continue to perform strongly.  Adults 
with Mental Health problems supported to live independently is above target.  Both our 
Learning Disability and our Mental Health additional targets are improving and this is  

 
Culture Sport & Leisure 
 

Page 41



22  

An adverse variation of £0.167m is reported at Quarter 3 which is mainly due to 
delivering the Leisure management project, Plymouth Life Centre early mobilisation costs 
and supporting the operating deficit for the Mayflower Centre. 
 
The number of enquiries to the Tourist Information Centre was below target, but still in 
excess of the same period last year.  
 
Museum visits will not meet the target for 2011/12 due to reduced venue sizes for 
touring exhibitions compared to 2010/11.  The target for this indicator will need to be 
reviewed for next year.  Nevertheless, attendances at the museum are still up. 
 
The British Art Show was a great success with 75,000 visitors which was in excess of 
anticipated numbers.  Trips by schools and other educational establishments were 
particularly successful. 
 
Work continues on the Plymouth Life Centre with planned completion on 27th February 
and the official opening scheduled for late March 2012. 

 
Environmental Services 
 
An overspend of £0.529m is now reported at Quarter 3 mainly due to removing the 
anticipated income projection of £0.398m for landfill rebate; whilst action still continues 
to secure this rebate it will not be received in 2011/12.  
 
A series of events took place during the quarter to encourage more recycling and waste 
minimisation including door-stepping in parts of the city where participation in schemes is 
low, Roadshows, community talks etc.  There have also been promotional events over 
the Christmas period aimed at recycling excess waste including Christmas trees, wrapping 
paper and glass bottles.  
 
Due to the garden waste extension into November an additional 352 tonnes (equivalent 
to 8%) was diverted from landfill.  The percentage of household waste diverted from 
landfill this quarter (NI 192) was 32.7% narrowly missing the target of 33%, but this is a 
normal seasonal variation due to the Christmas shut down and current projections 
indicate that end of year performance will be close to the target.  The amount of waste 
sent to landfill per household during this period (NI191) is better than the quarterly 
target of 162 kg with actual performance at 155.6kg, and remains on course to meet the 
annual target.   

 
Safer Communities 
 
The favourable variation of (£0.057m) is due to staff savings and income. Provision has 
been made within Community Cohesion budgets for anticipated revenue costs associated 
with new Gypsy and Travellers sites and it is anticipated that this provision will be 
required in this financial year. 
 
Serious acquisitive crime is a concern. Domestic burglary has increased by 28.9% (196 
more crimes) compared to same period last year. Theft from vehicle is steady but is also 
showing an increase of 14.9% (109 more crimes). Despite this, we are performing well 
when compared to similar cities. Council crime reduction staff and partners, continue to 
work on tackling these issues focusing on enforcement and crime prevention. 
 

People Management  

 

Page 42



23  

Agency spend is measured as a percentage of our overall monthly spend on wages (salary 
including on-costs plus agency costs).  Agency spend stands at 10.79% of the overall wage 
bill for Community Services against the corporate target of 5%, which is a increase of 
1.84% from the previous month. The department is working hard to reduce this position. 

 
The Council has set a target of 6 working days per FTE.  Sickness levels at the end of 
September are 13.44 working days per FTE for the last rolling 12 months. The council 
wide sickness statistics are 10.18 days per FTE for the last rolling 12 months. The 
department is working hard with HR to address this position. 

 
8.2     Delivery Plan Update 

 
Community Services has Budget Delivery Plans of £4.141m for 2011/12. The table below 
shows the summary position by Red Amber and Green rating (RAG).  The detailed 
Delivery Plan is shown as Appendix C 
  

Service 
Red Amber Green Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Adult Health & Social Care 0 320 1,671 1,991 

Culture, Sport & Leisure 250 0 680 930 

Environmental Services 285 0 615 900 

Safer Communities 0 0 70 70 

Other Delivery Groups 0 0 250 250 

Total 535 320 3,286 4,141 

 
• The Leisure Management contract has been signed earlier than anticipated and although 

there will be no savings in the current year or 2012/13, significant savings of 20% will 
occur over he life of the 10 year contract. 
 

• The programme of Community Asset transfers will not meet the full target in 2011/12, 
although this is partially offset with overachieved savings in restructuring.  
A transfer from the waste reserve will be required in 2011/12 to address targets 
allocated to Environmental Services for waste operations when the budget was setThere 
are a number of significant risks emerging in the Community Services Delivery plan where 
savings and efficiencies are possible but will not materialise until the end of the current or 
the next financial year. 

 
8.3 Risks and Issues 

 

• Maintaining front line services whilst implementing a number of Delivery plans will be 
challenging. 

• Managing expectations of enhanced level of service against the current budget, particular 
in the service area of Waste Collection ,Street Scene and Parks  
 

Page 43



24  

• Achieving Adult Social Care Delivery Plans and associated budget reductions without 
compromising safeguarding issues and ensuring sufficient scope to develop the market 
successfully to meet the requirements of the personalisation agenda. 
 

 
• Growth in demography and increasing levels of long term care needs for high dependency 

within Adult Social Care 
 

• Impact on social care of the Primary Care Trust QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Productivity & 
Prevention) efficiencies and the Health Service Transformation. 
 

• Reductions in ad hoc and SLA income from Plymouth Community Homes 
 
 

 
8.5  Medium Term Issues 
 

• The Council has issued an OJEU notice inviting expressions of interest for the provision of 
Ice and Arena facilities.  This will enable the Council to explore options over the coming 6 
months.  Consequently, there will be an associated £0.800m revenue implication to extend 
existing services at Plymouth Pavilions to September 2012, subject to review depending on 
progress once competitive dialogue commences.  

  
• Municipal Waste Management Strategy (MWMS) identified that waste management costs 

would increase significantly due to the need to procure a waste disposal facility. This needs 
to be compared against the current Waste Management provision of £2.4m 
 

• Gypsy & Travelers permanent site provision 
 

• Downturn in Economy leading to less opportunity to maximise discretionary fees 
    

• The effect of demographic increases on demand led services with stand still budgets. 

Page 44



25  

9. Development and Regeneration 
 

9.1   Scorecard - General Fund Revenue Forecast is an over spend of £0.162m 
 

Budget 
000's

Forecast 
000's

Dif -/+

£18,340 £18,502 0.92%

Budget 
£000's

Forecast 
£000's

Diff -/+
Delivered 
£000's

On Schedule 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Level 3

£1,486 £1,486 0.00% £0 £0 £0 G

£3,692 £3,617 -2.03% £0 £0 £0 G

-£1,314 -£1,185 9.82% £0 £0 £0 G

£14,018 £14,176 1.13% £0 £0 £0 A

£419 £219 -47.73%
£240 £450 £100 No HR DataNo Data

A

Waste Management
Director of Development No Indicators

6.27

8.51

No Indicators

Strategic Housing

Economic Development A

Transport and Highways

No HR DataNo Delivery plans

G

G 3.40

8.55

Level 2 12 month rolling average (Target 6 
Days)

Planning Services

Finance Performance HR
Finance - Monitoring Position Delivery Plans Year End Forecast % of Sickness Absence

Directorate Overall RAG  (Red/Amber/Green)
AMBER AMBER

Performance Rating (Forecast)

AMBER RED
QTR3 - Departmental Summary

Finance Monitoring  - Departmental Forecast Delivery Plans HR

-6.64%

1.10% 0.98% 0.38% 0.74%
0.92%

-7.0%

-5.0%

-3.0%

-1.0%

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

Outturn
2008/09

Outturn
2009/10

Outturn
2010/11

Oct
2011/12
Forecast

Nov
2011/12
Forecast

Dec
2011/12
Forecast

% - Development & Regeneration Overall Forecast 
Position 

10.95

6.92

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

April June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

% Sickness Levels

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

08/09 09/10 10/11 Oct Nov Dec

% Performance forecast

£100

£450

£240

Delivery Plans £000's

 
 
 
Responsible Officers: Clive Perkin/Gill Peele/David Draffan/Paul 
Barnard/Stuart Palmer/Mark Turner    

 
The Department continues to make good progress in supporting and enabling Growth 
within the City. 

 
Development is responsible for 5 long term outcome measures and has almost finalised 
the targets for its basket of Level 2 and 3 indicators, informed by the Economic Review. 

 
Economic Development  
 
Worklessness Plan in place. We have linked with the Jobcentre on the Work Experience 
element of the Get Britain Working scheme, where the council will offer placements for 
those who are 18-24 and have been claiming benefit for over 6 months. These placements 
will last for up to 8 weeks. Plymouth Growth Board has a dedicated sub group to look in 
to the issues around worklessness and what can be done with partners from across the 
city. The council is also a financial partner with the Jobcentre for a scheme run by 
Enterprise Plymouth aimed at moving eligible job seekers closer to work, by working on 
barriers that they may face. These may include development of basic work skills, CV 
writing and voluntary work. 
 
The GAIN portal work begun and due for go live in late March, branding work completed 
and PR contract with DCA producing good results in local and regional media. GAIN is 
poised to be the main delivery body for technology businesses for the Heart of the South 
West and Cornish local enterprise partnerships. 
The South West has been formally designated a Marine Energy Park by the government, 
providing a major boost to Plymouth's marine renewable sector. 
 
The Visitor Plan for Plymouth has been completed and approved by Destination Plymouth 
and Plymouth City Council. The Visitor Plan can be viewed at: www.visitplymouth.co.uk.; 

Page 45



26  

Destination Plymouth has established four Working Groups (Marketing, Events, 
Interpretation and Development) to progress the star projects described in its plan. It has 
also launched the Marine City Festival to be held 8-16 September 2012. This event will be 
supported by an associated City marketing campaign, including a new digital marketing 
programme, designed to reposition Plymouth as the UK’s Marine City. 

 
Planning Services  
 
Planning Services has recently been focusing on the determination of the North Yard 
Energy from Waste plant and several other major planning applications in support of the 
city’s growth agenda.  Planning application performance continues to rise with 82% of 
major developments determined in time, 84% for minor developments and 92% for 
householder developments.  The service continues to develop the Derriford Area Action 
Plan and will shortly publish the proposed Community Infrastructure Levy Charging 
Schedule to replace the Plymouth Development Tariff as the mechanism to fund future 
infrastructure. The service has also been developing a number of bids in relation to 
recently announced Government funding programmes such as Get Britain Building and 
the Growing Places Fund.  

 
Strategic Housing  
 
By end of the December quarter, 123 new affordable homes have been completed. We 
are currently projecting 273 completions for 2011/12 – however, as is normally the case, 
there is the likelihood that there could be some slippage from Q4 into next year, but we 
expect to exceed our target of 200. 
 
By quarter end, we have brought 67 empty private sector homes back into use and are 
projected 75 for 2011/12 – exceeding our target of 65. 

 
Transport 
 
The East End transport scheme was completed on schedule in November and is already 
demonstrating improved punctuality and journey times for bus routes along the corridor.  
Final works on the public realm works will be completed during the final quarter of this 
financial year and will provide further enhancements as a result. 
 
The Rail task force is now preparing a response to the Great Western franchise 
consultation, and work continues to seek a joint response with all other authorities in the 
far SW peninsula to strengthen the issues being raised to the DfT.  
 
Work continues with the Highways Agency to consider improved performance on the 
road network and to potentially seek funding for pinch points along the main A38 
corridor.  
 
Bus punctuality figures will be available at year end. 

 
Strategic Waste  
 
The Energy from Waste project is still to go through planning.  It now has an approval 
from planning committee subject to the signing of the S106.  
 
 
 
 

Page 46



27  

People Management  
 
Sickness levels are at 6.9 working days per FTE for the last rolling 12 months, against a 
council wide target of 6 days. This has decreased from the previous quarter’s 8.87 as a 
result of initiatives led by HR including increasing management and staff awareness. 

 
9.2    Delivery Plan Update  
 

£0.790m (net) of delivery plans were set within the 11/12 revenue budget for 
Development and £0.390m are green with a further £0.300m amber, (more than 87% in 
total)  Progress against the remaining red and amber delivery plans are summarised below 
and shown in detail on Appendix C.  Any plans not delivered will be replaced by 
alternative savings.  

 

Service Red 

£000 

Amber 

£000 

Green 

£000 

Total 

£000 

Strategic Housing 0 0 210 210 

Departmental (Loss of 
New Growth Points 
funding) 

0 0 (1,020) (1,020) 

Departmental (including 
Growth Fund) 0 0 850 850 

Transport 0 300 0 300 

Economic Development 0 150 50 200 

Other Delivery Groups 100 0 50 150 

Total 100 450 240 790 

 
9.3  Risks and Issues 
 

• There are a number of significant risks in the Development Services Delivery plan 
where savings and efficiencies are possible but will not materialise until the end of 
the current or the next financial year. 
 

• The additional Fees and Charges income target will be met from existing savings 
elsewhere in 11/12. The current climate has applied pressure to already 
challenging targets, and further discussion is on-going. 

 
• £0.100m for Printing, Publicity and Advertising have not yet been allocated over 

the departments budgets for these activities; Assistant Directors will slow spend 
in these budgets to support achievement of the Corporate target. 

 
9.4   Medium Term Issues 
 

• There is increasing demand for Housing services brought about by the housing market, 
welfare benefit reforms and the recession. 

 
• There is a significantly increasing demand for homelessness and housing need -with 

the first upturn in no’s of people in temporary accommodation since 2005/6 ,and 28% 
increase in homeless applications from previous years 

Page 47



28  

 
• The Highway asset Management plan is being developed further to ensure that 
future demands on revenue for maintenance of the network are minimised whilst 
maintaining the function of the network. 

 
• Concessionary fares and subsidised bus services are likely to come under greater 
pressure with increasing bus operation costs so are being carefully managed at 
this time. 
 

• In terms of policy the recently launched Growing Places Fund of which £14.2 million has 
been allocated to the Heart of the West LEP, places an onus on councils to 
provide the ‘technical and financial expertise’ to deliver projects which unlock growth and 
the ED service will make an essential contribution to this policy and challenge for 
Plymouth as an authority. 
 

• Community Infrastructure Levy: will replace Section 106 agreements and has 
major resourcing implications for future infrastructure planning and coordination of 
resources to support growth. 

 
• Economic Climate: fragile economy has necessitated radical and innovative approach to 

overcome development viability through Market Recovery Scheme. Planning application 
fee income is still weak as a consequence although applications are rising raising 
workload implications if not managed carefully. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



29  

10. Corporate Support 
 

10.1 Scorecard - General Fund Revenue Forecast is an under spend of £0.269m 
 

Budget 
000's

Forecast 
000's

Dif -/+

£28,996 £28,727 -0.93%

Budget 
£000's

Forecast 
£000's

Diff -/+
Delivered 
£000's

On Schedule 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Level 3

£2,300 £2,176 -5.39% £0 £100 £0 No indicators

£5,048 £5,048 0.00% £80 £430 £0 No indicators

£14,037 £13,887 -1.07% £1,950 £1,246 £0 A

£3,199 £3,204 0.16% £1,100 £0 £70 No indicators

£5,444 £5,444 0.00% £350 £0 £50 G

Corporate Support - Quarter 3 Report

Summary

Finance Performance HR

Finance - Monitoring Position Delivery Plans Year End Forecast % of Sickness Absence

Democracy and Governance No indicators 8.44

Directorate Overall RAG  (Red/Amber/Green)

GREEN AMBER AMBER RED

11.35

Delivery Plans Performance Rating (Forecast) HR

Customer Services and 
Business Transformation No indicators

QTR3 - Departmental Summary

Level 2 12 month rolling average (Target 6 
Days)

Finance Monitoring  - Departmental Forecast

ICT 7.08No indicators

Finance, assets and 
Efficiencies G

No indicators 6.08

7.85

HR

0.41%

-5.49%

-2.08%

0.07%
-0.52%

-0.93%

-7.0%

-5.0%

-3.0%

-1.0%

1.0%

3.0%

5.0%

Outturn
2008/09

Outturn
2009/10

Outturn
2010/11

Oct
2011/12
Forecast

Nov
2011/12
Forecast

Dec
2011/12
Forecast

% - Corporate Support Overall Forecast Position 

11.8

7.85

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

April June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

% Sickness Levels

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

08/09 09/10 10/11 Oct Nov Dec

% Performance forecast

£120

£1,776

£3,480

Delivery Plans £000's

 
 
Responsible Officers:   JP Sanders / Tim Howes / Malcolm Coe / Mark Grimley /    Neville Cannon 
 

Customer Services 
 
Customer Services performed well through December as the new working arrangements 
bedded in. Work volumes were reasonable, but were not as low as usual for December 
as staff geared up for the anticipated busy start to the year. Main Reception was 
freshened up and looked smarter. Work is well underway preparing the department for 
CSE accreditation at the end of January. Absence management continues to be robustly 
managed, and this was reflected in a continuing fall in sickness rates in the team. 
 
Democracy and Governance 
 
Close monitoring and review of all budget heads has enabled the forecasts to be met 
despite the unforeseen budget pressures. An additional benefit has been the ability of the 
Legal service to increase their fee income through shared working/services.  
 
ICT 
 
Availability of the top 14 services remains above target even though there have been 
recent major disruptions due to implementing new Anti-Virus software required as part 
of an exercise to help meet our delivery plan savings. 
 
HR 
 
During the last quarter, employee numbers have reduced by 109 (70.3 FTE) from a 
headcount of 4357 to 4248.  85 employees had left the council through the Voluntary 
Release Scheme by the end of December 2011.  
  

Page 49



30  

A comparison of sickness absence, for a rolling 12 months, at the end of December 2011, 
compared with the end of December 2010 shows that sickness has decreased from 13.16 
days per FTE to 9.71 days, a decrease of 3.45 days per FTE.  This downward trend 
continues towards a target of 6 days. The focus of employee health, together with 
management interventions and targeted programmes for staff continues. 
  
99.7% appraisals completed as at end December – missing just 12 appraisals and only 3.4% 
employees “did not meet expectations” (fell by 0.1 from last year).  Engagement index 
rose from 57% to 62% this year 
 
Finance Assets and Efficiencies 
 
FAE continue to make good progress against the budget delivery plans. Significant savings 
have been made through rationalising accommodation, more efficient external 
procurement and reducing management costs through staff restructures. We are now 
forecasting an underspend of £150k at year end over and above achieving all delivery 
plans. The Revenues and Benefits, Customer Services, Creditors and Incomes restructure 
took effect from 1 November 2011. A service improvement plan has been put in place 
and significant progress made in tackling housing benefits backlogs. Addressing backlog HB 
claims will have a short term negative impact on processing times as we work through 
older cases, however, this trend will be reversed throughout the last quarter of this 
financial year. 
 

 
10.2  Delivery Plan Update 

Corporate Support Services has direct Delivery Plans totalling 2.360m for 2011/12. The 
table below shows the summary position by Red Amber and Green rating (RAG).  The 
detailed Delivery plan is attached as Appendix C 

In addition, the figures include indirect (cross-cutting) Delivery Plans within Corporate 
Support totalling £3.016m to be achieved through savings across the Council.    The plans 
are being driven by Theme groups comprising of cross departmental representatives.  
Examples include delivering the accommodation strategy; strategic procurement; and 
revised Terms & Conditions across the council. 

 

Service Red 

£000 

Amber 

£000 

Green 

£000 

Total 

£000 

FAE 0 1,246 1,650 2,896 

HR 70 0 1,100 1,170 

Customer Services 0 100 300 400 

Democracy & Gov. 0 430 80 510 

ICT 0 0 300 300 

Other 50 0 50 100 

Total 120 1,776 3,480 5,376 

 
There has been slippage in some delivery plans .That said, this is a marked improvement 
on the position reported at the end of the 2nd quarter. Overall, progress is encouraging 
with either some plans being bought forward or alternative actions put in place. 

Page 50



31  

 
Again, there has been a lot of improvement within this area; in particular we are starting 
to see tangible savings from the Procure 2 Pay (P2P) project. 

 
 
10.3  Risks and Issues 

 
• Challenge of improving support services whilst managing down spend and meeting 

delivery plan savings targets; 
 

• Capacity within the department to support the Council’s change agenda and challenging 
financial targets 

 
• Ensuring that expertise is retained throughout the service and redundancy costs are 

minimised 
 

• Accommodation Strategy – risk of not achieving required revenue long term savings 
through delays in obtaining a long term solution for the future of the Civic Centre. 
 

• Any delay in the implementation of the new Customer Relationship Management system 
will delay the move of services into the Customer Service team and subsequent cross 
cutting delivery plan. 

 
 

10.4  Medium Term Issues  
 

HR 
 
The Council is replacing its HR and Payroll systems and has entered into contracts for 
the implementation of these new systems. The proposed ‘go live’ date is July 2012. 
 
Finance, Assets & Efficiencies 
 
Provision has been made in the revenue budget to meet the costs of the routine 
maintenance of the Council’s operational buildings. Improvement works are charged 
to the capital budget. The asset management strategy identifies that there is a significant 
backlog in maintenance obligations. Risks include health and safety issues that may arise 
during the year and the uncertainties over the future of the Civic Centre. 
 
The national economic climate is having an impact on the local authority. This may result 
in reduced collection rates for the Authority. 
 
Democracy & Governance 
 
There are potential pressures for 12/13 and beyond around known and potential 
elections. For example, if a referendum on executive arrangements for the Council is 
“Yes” for a Mayor then there has to be a full election within 6 months, with the costs 
associated with this a pressure to revenue budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



32  

ICT 
 
ICT continues to be under significant pressures working on vital projects such as HR 
Payroll, new way of working roll-out, the building of the new data centre, the designing 
and provisioning of services to facilitate the co-location with Health, and the planning for 
an eventual move out of the Civic Centre. 
 
These are all significant projects that will require careful control and oversight.   Any 
delay due to other emerging priorities could have huge consequential impacts                
. 
 

10.5  Invest to Save  
 

Accommodation Strategy - The project is progressing well with several vacated 
premises generating over £400k savings to date. On-going delays around the future of the 
Civic remain a challenge. 
  
Procurement Category Management – we continue to be engaged with our 
advisors Agilysis and workshops and meetings with key personnel and DMTs are well 
progressed. A budget benefit realisation mechanism has now been approved by CMT. A 
monthly report is now being produced and savings signed off by each Directorate.  
 
 

11.  Chief Executive 
 
11.1 Scorecard - General Fund Revenue Forecast is on budget  
 

Budget 000's
Forecast 
000's

Dif -/+

£2,582 £2,582 0.00%

Budget 
£000's

Forecast 
£000's

Diff -/+
Delivered 
£000's

On Schedule 
£000's

At Risk 
£000's

Level 3

£2,582 £2,582 0.00% £200 £200 £0

Chief Executives - Quarter 3 Report

Summary

Finance Performance HR

Finance - Monitoring Position Delivery Plans Year End Forecast % of Sickness Absence

12 month rolling average (Target 6 
Days)

Directorate Overall RAG  (Red/Amber/Green)

GREEN AMBER AMBER

QTR3 - Departmental Summary

No performance indicators

Chief Executive 6.53No performance indicators

Finance Monitoring  - Departmental Forecast Delivery Plans Performance Rating (Forecast) HR

Level 2

-1.26%

-9.28%
-8.32%

0.00% 0.00%
0.00%

-11.0%
-9.0%
-7.0%
-5.0%
-3.0%
-1.0%
1.0%
3.0%
5.0%

Outturn
2008/09

Outturn
2009/10

Outturn
2010/11

Oct
2011/12
Forecast

Nov
2011/12
Forecast

Dec
2011/12
Forecast

% - Chief Executive's Dept. Overall Forecast Position 

5.48
6.53

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

April June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

% Sickness Levels

£200£200

Delivery Plans £000

 
 
 
Responsible Officers:  Giles Perrit, Richard Longford 
 

Chief Executive 

The overall position in Chief Executives is currently forecasting to come in on budget. 
The Corporate Communications Unit has been working towards achieving the Chief 
Executive’s Department’s element of the Printing, Publicity and Advertising cross-cutting  

 

Page 52



33  

 

Delivery Plan - The mechanism for capturing these savings across the authority has now 
been agreed 

During this period the Department has been leading on budget scrutiny. This has involved 
producing a draft Corporate Plan for 2012/13 and co-ordinating a series of challenge 
sessions with the Corporate Management Team and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board.  

The 2012/13 Budget and Corporate Plan will be agreed at Council on 27th February.  

. 

Performance & Policy 

Performance & Policy units across the Council have been merged into one unit within 
Chief Executives as part of a delivery plan .The implementation date for this new 
structure was 1st September 2011 and therefore the salary savings achieved from this 
process have now been established. 

 
People Management 

  
The Council has set a target of 6 working days per FTE.   
 

Following a spike in sickness earlier in the year days lost to sickness have now reduced to 
6.53 days 0.53 days above the corporate target of 6 days.   

 
11.2  Delivery Plan Update 
 

Chief Executive’s has a total Delivery Plan of £0.4m for 2011/12. There is one direct 
delivery plan for the department and three delivery plans that will be delivered across all 
departments. The table below shows the summary position by Red Amber and Green 
rating (RAG).  The detailed Delivery plan is contained in Appendix C.   

 
Service Red 

£000 
Amber 
£000 

Green 
£000 

Total 
£000 

Performance & Intelligence 0 0 100 100 

Consultation 0 100 0 100 

Corporate Subscriptions 0 0 100 100 

Printing, publicity & Advertising 0 100 0 100 

Total 0 200 200 400 
 

 
11.3   Risks and Issues 

 
• The Directorate is on target to achieve its plans by the end of the year. 

 
 

Page 53



34  

12. Corporate Items and Cross Cutting Issues 
 

Revenue budget forecasted out-turn 
 
12.1  Unlike previous quarterly reports, we are now reporting an over spend of £0.240m. We 

are still awaiting full confirmation of the true impact on the Council of the 2011/12 
Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Tax Levy. This is the first year of this new levy, 
based on our CO2 emissions. Our calculations for the whole estate suggest the charge 
will be circa £0.400m. However, the council will passport £0.160m of this charge to 
schools (£0.120m) and Academies (£0.040m); Hence the net exposure of £0.240m. Both 
schools and academies are aware of their element of this charge. 

 
The Treasury Management Board are now confident we will, despite  a challenging target 
to deliver just under £1m of savings from treasury management, come in on budget.  

 
Capital Financing Budget /Treasury Management 

 
12.2  The Treasury Management Board continues to meet regularly to discuss the actions in 

respect of borrowing and investments in accordance with the approved strategy.  
 

• Debt Rescheduling 
Movements in gilts over in the year have reduced PWLB loan interest rates meaning that 
there have been no opportunities to date to achieve savings from the repayment or 
rescheduling of long-term debt. It is unlikely that in the current climate interest rates will 
move in a favourable direction but PWLB rates continue to be monitored by Council 
officers and our Treasury Management advisors Arlingclose to take any opportunity to 
make revenue savings as and when this occurs. 

 
• Investments 

Council Officers and Arlingclose will monitor credit conditions and further deposits will 
be made in line with the Council’s Treasury Management strategy when conditions are 
appropriate for such investments. 

 
• Reserves 

The calculation of the impairment on Icelandic deposits in 2009/10 allowed for accrued 
interest to be credited to revenue over the next few years. This accrued interest resulted 
in a transfer of £0.324m to the Icelandic Bank reserve in 2010/11 to cover the possibility 
of an increase in impairment. The anticipated repayment of Icelandic bank investments is 
now looking more favourable than 12 months ago and this reserve may not be required. 
 
Icelandic Bank Update    

 
12.3 The Council continues to receive regular dividend payments in respect of its investment 

in Heritable bank with the following dividends received in the period April – January 
2012: 

     Principal  Interest  Total 
        £000      £000   £000 

April 2011       187         10    197 
July 2011       122           6    128 
October 2011       126           6    132 
January 2012       100           5    105 

 
This brings the total amount recovered to date to £2.142m (67.92%) 

 

Page 54



35  

12.4 Investments in Landsbanki (£4m) and Glitnir (£6m) remain subject to court proceedings.  
The Council continues to work with Bevan Brittan solicitors and the LGA continues to 
actively pursue the recovery of its total investments.  
 

 Contingency 
  
12.5  Standard practice is to set a revenue contingency budget which is held within Corporate 

Items.  For 2011/12 this is £0.500m and, at this stage it is assumed that the budget will be 
used in full during the year. We have assumed £0.300m has been allocated to cover the 
predicted shortfall to the current year’s Employer Pension Contributions. Following the 
tri-annual Pension Fund Valuation, the Council’s contribution rates for 2011/12, 2012/13 
and 2014/15 were confirmed. The contribution rates were held at the same rates as for 
the previous three years. However, there was a condition attached which stated the rates 
assumed that total contributions each year would match a minimum monetary value. 

 
 In the past week, we have had an indication that the shortfall in contributions in 2011/12 

is circa £0.300m. At this stage, this has been allocated against the revenue contingency 
budget.   

 
Budget Virements 
 

12.6  The Council’s net budget requirement was set by Council at its meeting on 28 February 
2011 at £208.237m. Amendments to this overall budget can only be made by Full Council. 
During the year there will be several movements in budget allocations across 
services/departments as part of the delivery of the day to day business of the Council. 
Movements in the budget are continually tracked and an audit trail held for budget 
control purposes. In addition, Financial Regulations require all budget virements in excess 
of £100,000 to be approved by Cabinet.   

 
12.7   Cabinet are now requested to approve the budget virements detailed in Table 9. All of 

these virements balance to zero with the overall council net revenue budget remaining at 
£208.237m 

 
Table 9 – Virements over £100k for Cabinet Approval 
 

Virements over £100k 000's 

DIRECTORATE 
Delivery 
Plan Mgt Other 

Total 
virements 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  (5) 0 (5) 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

SERVICES (37) 0 (37) 

CORPORATE ITEMS (0) (721) (721) 

COMMUNITY SERVICES (914) 87 (826) 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 1,019 58 1,077 

DEVELOPMENT & REGENERATION (63) 575 512 

TOTAL 0 0 0 
 

 

Page 55



36  

A brief explanation of these virements is as follows: 
 
Delivery Plan Mgt 

12.9   In the previous quarter’s report, we advised that the Chief Executive’s delivery plan 
contains an action to deliver a new Corporate Policy and Performance service. This 
involves the transfer of functions, budgets and staff from both Children’s Services and 
Community Services business support and strategy units to the Chief Executive 
department. 

 
Other 

12.10   Transfer of the preventing Homelessness Grant from Corporate items to Strategic 
Housing. There has also been a transfer of CIP agreed reserves from Corporate Items to 
Culture, Sport and Leisure, Safer Communities and Finance, Assets & Efficiencies.  
 
Working Balance 

 
12.11  The Council’s working balance stood at £11.518m at 1 April 2011.  This equates to 5.5% 

of the Council’s net revenue spend for 2011/12 and remains in line with the medium term 
financial strategy to maintain a working balance of at least 5%.  

 
Pension Reserve 

 
12.12  The council currently has monies set aside into a Pension Reserve, with a balance of 

£1.080m.  
 
12.13 This reserve was created to ensure we are able to meet future shortfalls in our 

contributions to the Pension Fund. Last week the pension Fund Administrator indicated 
the likely shortfall for 2011/12 to be circa £0.300m.   

 
12.14 If our contribution remain at the same level for the next two years, the period of the last 

tri-annual valuation, we would anticipate further shortfalls for 2012/13 and 2013/14. For 
this outturn report, we have assumed that the 2011/12 is currently able to be covered 
from the Corporate Items contingency budget. If this remains possible for the final 
outturn position, we will not need to call down from the reserve this year. 

 
12.15 We would therefore still carry forward the balance of £1.080m, giving us greater 

protection against future shortfalls. We must be mindful that, as staff numbers reduce, the 
pension contributions are likely to reduce. This will require larger draw-downs from the 
reserve in the future. 

  
Waste Reserve 

 
12.16  The Waste Reserve currently stands at £2.4m and was specifically set aside to manage the 

potential shortfall where operational costs exceeded budget following the closure of 
Chelson Meadow until a new Waste solution would be operational.  There may be a 
requirement in 2011/12 to draw down from the waste reserve to cover the operational 
costs of the waste collection and disposal service due to rising gate fee, landfill tax and 
transport costs. It was anticipated when the current budget was constructed that 2011/12 
would be the year that costs might start to escalate following the closure of Chelson 
Meadow.    

 
12.17 This report assumes the first draw down of £0.800m from this reserve, leaving a net 

balance of £1.600m to carry forward to future years. 
 

Page 56



37  

12.18 Once the year end position is known the financial call on the reserve can be requested 
for approvalThis position will be reviewed as the full outturn result becomes clear.  

 
Corporate Items - other 

 
12.19  The Council has a number of backdated VAT claims lodged with HMRC known as 

‘VAT Fleming’ cases. Four of these have been resolved in recent years. However 
there are 3 outstanding cases still under consideration which the Council continue 
to work with PWC to appeal initial HMRC findings. The Council have just been 
advised that one of these around trade waste has been assessed in the Council’s 
favour, and officers are awaiting further information and clarity to finalise the 
favourable financial outcome for the Council. It is anticipated that the position will 
be clarified within the next month. 

 
12.20 As highlighted in Lifelong Learning section of this report, there is an on-going 

potential tax liability from HMRC in connection with School Improvement Partners. 
This could result in an additional tax payment of £0.100m. For this outturn report, it 
has been assumed that the department can cover the cost by offsetting against 
other forecasted savings. Officers will continue to monitor closely and consider the 
possible requirement to set up a provision to cover.  

  
 
 
 

 
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations 
 
3.  Cabinet approve the budget virements as detailed in Table 9. 
 
4.  Cabinet approve the potential draw down on the Waste Reserve for 2011/12, 

subject to the 2011/12 Outturn position. 
 
5. Cabinet approve the potential draw down on the Pension Reserve for 2011/12, 

subject to the 2011/12 Outturn position. 
 
6.  Approve the funding of the Council’s element of the CRC Levy for 2011/12. 
 
 

Page 57



38  

 
 
 

SECTION E - CONCLUDING REMARKS 
 

  
13.1 2011/12 is year one of our three year budget, in which we need to achieve budget savings 

of £30m by 2013/14. It is imperative that the current year Delivery Plans are achieved in-
year as they roll forward to underpin the budget for the next two years. For 2011/12 the 
council has prioritised reduced funding in order to continue to protect front line priority 
services. 

 
13.2  In total, the council has embarked on over £15m of revenue budget delivery plans for the 

current year. Where possible, we have engaged in cross departmental officer groups to 
generate significant spending reductions in areas such as accommodation, business 
support and procurement. 

  
13.3 Despite reduced funding, the council remains committed to improving services and has 

revised its performance management framework to ensure that key focus is maintained 
on performance measures that contribute most towards the council and wider city’s 
priorities. 

 
13.4  Although there are no critical issues to report on finance this time around, there are 

some areas of variance within individual departments that require close scrutiny. 
 
13.6  Revenue budgets are currently forecasting an end of year over spend of £0.454m. 

Departments will continue to address this overspend as we target an on-budget outturn 
in March 2012. 

 
13.7 During the second quarter, the percentage of Delivery Plans which are rated Green or 

Amber has increased from 89.5% to 94.7%.   
 
13.8  The council still has an ambitious capital investment programme. With the inclusion of 

£19.1m for two academy schools, the projected capital spend over the next four years is 
now in excess of £173m. 

 
13.9  The Indicative Budget for 2012/13 has now been published and been the subject of public 

scrutiny in early January 2012. 
 
13.10 Officers are now working hard to put together the final revenue budgets for 2012/13 to 

2014/15. The final budget will be signed off by Full Council, when the Council Tax will be 
set, 27 February 2012. 

 
13.11 This reports shows we are very close to achieving budget for the current year. We will 

not assume anything as we enter the final quarter and will continue to minimise spend to 
reduce the over spend by the year end.  

Page 58



39  

Appendix A 
 

Page 59



40  

APPENDIX B 
 

Capital Programme – Variations and Re-profiling 
Section 5.2 Table 6 cross-refers  
 
£000 £000 £000 £000 Other Reprofiling for Approval 
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15   

(181) (415) 596 0 Basic Need – Holy Cross (Reported delay, then removed in budget) 

(185) 185 0 0 Basic Need – Mount Wise updated cashflow following letting contract 

(565) 565 0 0 Estover Campus - revised contractors plan (project not delayed) 
(260) 260 0 0 Basic Need - Riverside (PFI) 

(100) 859 109 (324) Basic Need - Salisbury Road brought forward to single phase delivery 
(135) 485 (350)   Basic Need - wave 2 - St Josephs and Holy Cross 

0 (20) (695) 515 Basic Need - Stoke Damerel - project rephased 
0 (175) 175 0 Basic Need - Other 

(388) 388 0 0 Boringdon - Replacement of temporary classrooms minor delay in procurement process 

(250) 250 0 0 St Boniface - practical cooking spaces - school procurement delay  
(590) 590 0 0 Devolved Capital - Estimated schools carry forwards 
(125) 125 0 0 Other CYP Reprofiling 

          

(620) 620 0 0 Vehicle Replacement Ph1 – for vehicles expected to be delivered in April and May 2012 
13 (13) 0 0 Other Community Services Reprofiling 
          

(224) 224 0 0 Accommodation Strategy Ph1 re-profiling 
(150) 150 0 0 Accommodation Strategy Ph2 re-profiling 
103 (103) 0 0 Data Centre fit out 
(125) 125 0 0 Other Corporate Support Reprofiling 

          

(102) (298) 400 0 Saltram Countryside – to ensure that it can be used as match funding to support Plymouth Natural Networks 

(110) 110 0 0 Home Improvement Assistance reprofiled to meet the demand for Disabled Facilities adaptions in 12/13 

358 (358) 0 0 Waste projects – capping and leachate treatments – reprofiled to meet estimated expenditure in 11/12 
(137) 137 0 0 Other Strategic Housing reprofiling 
(346) 346 0 0 Other Transport S106 funded reprofiling 
(231) 139 92 0 Other Development reprofiling 

          
(4,350) 4,176 327 191 Total Reprofiling for Approval 

 
 

Page 60



41  

 
APPENDIX B 

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 Other Variations for Approval 
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15   

0 (240) 533 533 Estimated Devolved Formula Capital (DFC) 
(200) 0 0 0 Basic Need - Weston Mill. Savings achieved 

(140) 0 0 0 High View - Removal of Contingency as project nears completion. 

0 (393)     Tor Bridge Campus (formerly Estover CC). Removal of contingency. 

30 79 2,500 400 Condition Works - additional allocation to meet increase in liability 
0   (169) (305) Basic Need - Holycross 

    (103)   Basic Need - St Josephs - reduced estimate following initial design costings 

    (711)   Basic Need - Stoke Damerel - reduced estimate following initial design costings 

  35 1,125 3,500 Basic Need - Future Waves - provision for wave 3 and 4 delivery 

(59) 88 40 0 Other Variations for Services for Children and Young People 
          
0 605 693 725 Adult Personal Social Care grant 

(139) (50) 0 0 Vehicle Replacement programme – lower costs than originally estimated 

210 0 0 0 PLUSS Building, Clittaford Road – claw-back of original grant used on building. 
          

(69) 65 0 0 Accommodation Strategy Variations 
46 49 20 0 Other Corporate Support Variations 
          

0 (307) 0 0 Reduced reliance on capital receipts to fund Chelson Meadow 

70 0 0 0 Tavistock Road Signals implementation of additional works 
65 0 0 0 North Road East Public Crossing works. 
0 108 0 0 Addition to LTP programme - Marjon bus link 

0 247 0 0 Addition to LTP programme – George Park and Ride access improvements 
  291     Addition to LTP programme – Digital speed cameras 
0 337 0 0 Flood defence works at Arnold Point 

123 0 0 0 Disabled Facilities Grant – additional funding from Central Government 

115 110 0 0 Strategic Housing capitalised salaries to be funded from revenue 
(8) 73 0 0 Other Development Variations 
          
44 1,097 3,928 4,853 Other Variations for Approval 

 
 

Page 61



42  

APPENDIX B 
 
 

£000 £000 £000 £000 2011/12 Virements for Approval 
SCYP Comm Corp Dev   

5 (5) 0 0 Virement re Lipson Vale Recreational Land 
(115) 0 115 0 Virement from Torbridge project 

(31) 0 31 0 
Funding of additional work at Bretonside re 
amalgamation of Pupil Referrals Unit at Martins Gate to 
Corporate Support 

(141) (5) 146 0 Total Virements for Approval 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 62



43  

Balancing the budget : Areas for 
savings, efficiency gains or increase 

Progress Update

Revised

Rag 2011/12 '£000 R/A/G

1a

Transport:  Cease concessionary 
transport from Sept '11 (over calculated in 
error, £280 was never achievable.  New 
plans needed in 2011/12)

G 130
Transport Policy changes re cessation of Concessionary fares implemented from Sept 
2011.  However, these changes have only produced a part year saving of £99k. Full year 
savings in 12/13 £120k

G

1b

Transport:  Review Special School 
routes and develop a more flexible 
approach for Special Educational Needs 
Transport from Sept '11

A 80
Volatile budgets dependant on needs of SEN statements.  Following on from the robust 
review of routes undertaken during the Summer a part year saving for 2011/12 of £70k 
appears achievable.

A

1c Catering: Efficiency savings A 150
Efficiency savings made on labour and food costs.  Additionally the meal selling price 
has been increased to a more realistic level to reduce the amount of subsidy needed.

A

1d Selling services to Academies G 20 Buy back from Academies into the Education Welfare Service G

2 Locality Restructure G 100 Posts deleted from system G

3 Disability Service Restructure G 70 On track - deletion of posts and use of grant G

4
Review staffing requirements in the light 
of changes to statutory Special 
Educational Needs policies

A 0 Restructure of SEN Services planned as part of department restructure G

LEARNER & FAMILY SUPPORT TOTAL: 550

5 Equalities and Diversity reconfiguration G 0

6 Reduce Primary Advisory support G 0

7 Early Years - reduction in staffing G 0

LIFELONG LEARNING TOTAL: 0

8
Recommissioning of placements years 0-
24 in line with  'Diversion of Children From 
Care' PLAN

G 0

Cost and volume contract re-negotiated. In-house fostering recruitment assessments 
continuing. £0.260m market rate savings and £6k savings on existing frameworks.  
Performance scorecard developed to track Diversion of Children from Care strategy and 
this is reviewed each month so remedial action can be implemented as early as possible.

G

8a
2011/12 budget monitoring savings within 
the 16+ service

G 160 Achieved November 2011 G

8b
2011/12 budget monitoring savings within 
the in-house foster care service

G 240 Achieved November 2011 G

8c 2012/13 Children in care placement plan R 0
Diversion of Children from Care strategy and this is reviewed each month so remedial 
action can be implemented as early as possible. There a

R

8d 2012/13 children in care placement plan R 0

Diversion of Children from Care strategy and this is reviewed each month so remedial 
action can be implemented as early as possible. There are a number of foster carers 
being assessed for our in house service.  If the level of care is appropriate  and the 
match is appropriate, the aim is to bring children back to Plymouth from out of city 
placements.  There is also a risk in that number of children in care appear to be 
increasing across the country and the trend is likely to filter down to us as Devon have 
already seen a noticeable increase.

R

9
Staff reductions - Impact of reducing 
services

A 0
Supernumery posts (over establishment) now deleted and agency staff reduced. 
Permanent front-line staff recruitment under offer.  Structures will contract in future years 
as the number of children in care is reduced whilst safeguarding is maintained

A

10
Secure Budget - Trends show that there 
has been a reduction in court ordered 
placements (£150k) Transport (£30k)

G 180
Achieved - No secure placements used. However, the Home Office transfer of financial 
responsibility for young offenders remanded to the local authority may have an impact

G

11
Youth Offending Service - reduce PCC 
Contribution by 10%

G 50 Achieved realigning service - integrating preventative service with youth service G

12
Review and reduce financial support and 
non statutory payments made to Care 
Leavers and review B&B 

G 130 Achieved WEF 1/4/2011 G

13
Integration of various child care services - 
restructuring to deliver efficiencies

A 0 Intensive support service diverting children from care A

CHILDREN SOCIAL CARE TOTAL: 760

 Children & Young People Budget Delivery Plans December 2011                                                                       APPENDIX C

2011/12

Delivery  
Plan 

No action required for 2011/12. However, the 
service will be subject to a number of other DP's 
and a restructure that are being dealt with at DMT 

level

 

Page 63



44  

 Children & Young People Budget Delivery Plans December  '11          APPENDIX C
Savings delivered to Children & Young People by other budget delivery groups:

14

Performance and Intelligence: 
rationalise performance management, 
completion of government returns and 
data analysis across the council. 1/3rd of 
total planned savings applied to Children 
& Young People at this early stage of 
development

A 100 Informal staff consultation completed and restructuring is currently in progress A

15

Administration & Business Support 
Review: Rationalise Business Support & 
Administration across the council. 
Includes savings generated from Care 
First project

A 220 Agreement to hold vacant posts pending formal restructure.  Staff being surveyed. A

16

Printing, Publicity and Advertising: 
challenge the current demand across the 
council and rationalise future publicity & 
advertising activity. Notional saving for 
department based on total council spend.

G 100
Budget reductions agreed and savings identified against cost centres. Actual spend 
curtailed accordingly. Delivery plan now Green and removed from budget.

G

17

Reduction in Senior Management: 
consistent with other departmental plan, 
objective of reducing senior management 
by 20%

G 50
Vacant posts identified for initial discussion and following Union consultation these have 
now been deleted

G

18
School Catering: Charge Schools for 
packed lunch catering arrangement* (Blue 
Collar Group)

R 60
Following confirmation of school lunch grant for 2011-12, work in progress to identify 
details and impact for affected schools.  The required action will not come into place until 
April 2012

R

19 Area Based Grant reduction G 350 G

20 Early Intervention Grant reduction G 1,700 G

SAVINGS FROM OTHER DELIVERY GROUPS: 2,580
TOTAL OF ALL DELIVERY PLANS: CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE:3,890

EIG focus is shifting to prevention.  EIG commitments reviewed and a programme of 
contract award is in place.  Children's plan approved so now the remaining EIG can be 
targeted against priorities.  Tendering and SLA's will be the next steps. Planned savings 
blocks on the EIG will target £2.005m savings which will contribute towards the ABG 
target DP20 above.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



45  

Progress Update

2011/12 Revised

RAG
2011/12         
£000 R/A/G

1 G 342 Reablement business case developed. G

2 G 201 Delivered  G

3 G 200 Delivered  G

4 G 167 Delivered  G

5 G 403 Delivery on track G

6 G 358 On track G

7 A 320
On track for future years, monitoring the 
current year options. 

A

1,991

8 G 140
The delivery plans continue to be worked 
through to achieve the required savings

G

9 G 120
On target saving realised.  Pavilions site 
market test to provide greater clarity on 
achieving future year savings.

G

10 G 370
Library service review is continuing. £380k 
savings on track through staff restructure 
along with other actions within the service.  

G

11 G 50 Savings realised through restructure. G

12 R 0
Not due to commence until 2012/13, but 
research underway

R

25 R 250

Leisure Management contract has begun 
and 20% savings will accrue over the 10 year 
life of the contract (there will be no savings in 
the current year).

R

930

Care Management Services: reviewing of high cost 
packages and alternative service provision

Community Services Delivery Plans December '11                                      APPENDIX C

Balancing the budget : Areas for savings, efficiency 
gains or increase income

Actual 
Value

Day Care: remodelling of services and standardisation of unit 
rates

Enabling and Floating Support: remodelling of services and 
standardisation of unit rates

Domiciliary Care Services: remodel in house provision

Supported Living: remodelling of services and 
standardisation of unit rates

Residential Care - Under 65: remodelling of services and 
standardisation of unit rates

Workforce re-modelling: linked to CareFirst 6 and Charteris 
Business Process Re-design

ADULT SOCIAL CARE TOTAL:

Events, grants and other funds initiatives

Reduction in revenue support grants - Theatre Royal & 
Pavilions 

Library Service: modernisation of service.

Museum: restructure

Transfer of assets: transfer of assets / facilities to local 
community ownership.

CULTURE, SPORTS & LEISURE TOTAL:

Leisure Management Contract

 

Page 65



46  

13 G 100

Community Services Staff included in 
ringfence. Restructure completed. Budgets 
and future DP targets will be transferred to 
the new department

G

14 R 0
Community Services engaged in project 
proposals but no firm savings yet identified.

R

15 G 100 Budgets amended to generate savings G

16 G 70
Post deleted and self financing model 
established. NHS have signed a short term 
SLA.

G

17 G 15
The charges were increased on the 1st April 
2011.

G

18 R 20
Community Asset Transfer will not be 
continued in the current year.

R

19 R 50
Community Asset Transfer will not be 
continued in the current year.

R

20 R 145
Community Asset Transfer will not be 
continued in the current year.

R

21 G 300 Charges were increased on 1st April 2011 G

22 G 300
Completed.  Posts removed from 
establishment by 1 April 2011

G

23 R 70

Annual maintenance was not undertaken 
however,  a long term solution is still needed 
as water features are incurring cleaning 
costs

R

24 A 50 Now achieved G

1,220

4,141

Performance and Intelligence: rationalise performance 
management, completion of government returns and data 
analysis across the council. 1/3rd of total planned savings 
applied to Community Services at this early stage of 
development

Administration & Business Support Review: Rationalise 
Business Support & Administration across the council. 

Playgrounds: Transfer some playgrounds to local community 
ownership

Bowling Greens: Transfer some bowling greens to clubs / 
local community ownership

Printing, Publicity and Advertising: challenge the current 
demand across the council and rationalise future publicity & 
advertising activity. Notional saving for department based on 
total council spend.

Equalities:  Transforming Translate Plymouth to self financing 
model and other reshaping of the service to reflect national 
changes, local priorities & deliver efficiency savings.

Bulky waste: Increase bulky waste collection charge

Management of Toilets: Transfer some public toilets from 
PCC to be maintained by others

Community Services Delivery Plans  December '11                                      APPENDIX C

SAVINGS FROM OTHER DELIVERY GROUP TOTAL:

TOTAL OF PLANS FOR COMMUNITY SERVICES:

Cemeteries & Crematoria: increase fees above the rate of 
inflation

Rationalisation of Environmental Services Structure

City water features: to be delivered by others

Reduction in Senior Management: consistent with other 
departmental plan, objective of reducing senior management 
by 20%

 
 

Page 66



47  

 
2011/12Revis
ed

£000 R/A/G

1
Family Intervention and Anti Social Behaviour: Review and 
rationalise the service to account for a total loss in Revenue Grant £682k

210 G

2
Package of Transport Options: considering options for increased 
income and/or revised service provision. For example, subsidised bus 
fares, shop mobility, car park charges etc.

300 A

3
Loss of Grant Funding:  New Growth Points revenue grant removed 
(£1.02m). Replacement grant funding still requires further clarification

(1,020) G

4
Create a Growth Fund: creating a 'ring fenced' revenue growth fund 
from potential new revenue streams which are currently out to 
consultation and will become live from April 2011.

550 G

NEW Additional income to be achieved through new growth related 
revenue streams e.g. New Homes Bonus

300 G

5
Economic Development: removal of remaining contribution to City 
Development Company.

200 G

NEW Additional income to be achieved through Fees and Charges 100 A

DEVELOPMENT DIRECT PLANS TOTAL: 640

Savings delivered to Development by other budget delivery groups:

6
Administration & Business Support Review: Rationalise Business 
Support & Administration across the council. 

0 A

7
Printing, Publicity and Advertising: challenge the current demand 
across the council and rationalise future publicity & advertising activity. 
Notional saving for department based on total council spend.

100 R

8
Reduction in Senior Management: consistent with other 
departmental plan, objective of reducing senior management by 20%

0 G

9
NEW Reduction in Senior Management: Accelerate implementation 
of senior management restructure

50 A

SAVINGS FROM OTHER DELIVERY GROUPS: 150

TOTAL OF ALL DELIVERY PLANS FOR DEVELOPMENT: 790

Red = no clear project plan / no milestones in place to evidence 
achievability of required revenue savings for 2011/12 and / or no clear 
capacity identified in order to implement the delivery plan.

New Structure implemented on 1st Jan 2012 with Directors 
posts appointed. AD level currently under review.

New Structure implemented on 1st Jan 2012 with Directors 
posts appointed. AD level currently under review.

RAG RATING RULES

Green = clear plans in place / capacity to deliver identified / more than 
50% of financial savings have already been realised

Amber = clear plans in place / capacity to deliver identified / clear 
milestones and project management arrangements identified / evidence of 
significant progress against these milestones

Department has already taken action to reduce service base 
budgets in these areas by £67k. Additional savings will be 
required to achieve this target and when identified during the 
year it is anticipated that the RAG rating will become green

Progress Update

Saving to alleviate pressure achieved through reducing the 
service to fit the resources available in 2011/12, continuing 
to seek external funding, negotiating income from Registered 
Social Landlords £200k and EIG Grant £400k (£268k 
reduction from 2009/10).  No sustainable solution identified 
for 2012/13 onwards.  

The original savings plan has to date achieved : £130k from 
new concessionary fare repayment mechanism; £50k from 
Access Plymouth; £20k from income on S278/38 works. 
The remaining shortfall in savings are still being reviewed.

Already reduced expenditure/staffing to take account of lost 
grant as far as possible without adversely affecting growth 
agenda

New Homes Bonus announced and ring-fenced through 
growth fund  

New Homes Bonus announced and ring-fenced through 
growth fund  

Closure of the CDC delivered ongoing £200k saving, 
however, a CDC Legacy Fund working with the HCA and 
RDA has been created to support economic development 
activity

Development are currently reviewing all income streams from 
fees and charges to identify additional income to meet this. 
Other Growth related spend will be reviewed to ensure this 
plan is delivered.

Department has already taken action to further reduce admin 
support in base budget of £66k.  

Development & Regeneration Delivery Plans December 2011                                                          Appendix C

Balancing the budget : Areas for savings, efficiency gains or 
increase income

Delivery Plan 
Savings

Dec-11

2011/12

 
 

Page 67



48  

Revised

Rag £000 R/A/G

1 Finance:  further refinement of the staff structure G 100
Savings will be achieved in 2011/12 through vacant posts. Modification to the structure 
will be presented to Unions in June / July '11

G

2
Corporate Property:  Management restructure and efficiency 
savings on Facilities Management

G 100
Consultation with the Unions completed in February 2011. 3 Posts were removed in 
June 2011 and the £100k 2011/12 savings have started to be realised.

G

3
Cashiers: Revise and refine the council's approach to cash 
collection 

G 100

Cashiers closed. Combined with plans 4, 5 & 7. We are now midway through the 
restructure process and new structure will be implemented from 1 September, with full 
savings coming on stream once staff are either redeployed or drop out of the PCC 
process.

G

4
Debt Management: better co-ordination of existing processes. 
Challenge the effective use of legal services / balifs etc                         

G 100
Combined with plans 3, 5 & 7. We are now midway through the restructure process and 
new structure will be implemented from 1 September, with full savings coming on stream 
once staff are either redeployed or drop out of the PCC process.

G

5
Income Generation: increase selling of support services 
externally and explore the potential for advertising on corporate 
assets                                                                                                                        

G 50
Combined with plans 3, 4 & 7. We are now midway through the restructure process and 
new structure will be implemented from 1 September, with full savings coming on stream 
once staff are either redeployed or drop out of the PCC process.

G

6
Audit Fee:  Negotiate a reduction in external and internal audit 
scope and associated fees

G 50 Revised fee negotiated. Financial savings have been delivered. No FTE impact. G

24*
Benefits Subsidy: Improvements to Housing Benefits subsidy 
claim to maximise income from benefit overpayments.

G 300
Joint work between finance and revs & bens has reduced our financial liability to DWP in 
respect of 2008/09 and 2009/10 claims. Improved processes to maximise HB subsidy 
claim. This financial saving is achieveable based on current monitoring information.

G

7
Customer Services & Revenues & Benefits:  integration of 
services, including Single Point of Contact & increased use of the 
Council website

G 300
Combined with plans 3, 4 & 5. We are now midway through the restructure process and 
new structure will be implemented from 1 September, with full savings coming on stream 
once staff are either redeployed or drop out of the PCC process.

G

8
Human Resources: staff restructure (relies on e-transactions, 
shared services & investment). To include a review of Trade Union 
Facilities

G 50
5.2 FTE reduction July 2011 further savings to be achieved through SharePoint and a 
new payroll database

G

9
Training & Development: review the provision of training 
throughout the department / council

G 350 Saving target includes ICT training team (£250k).  G

10
Democratic Services:  reduce the level of Civic engagements 
and restructure the democratic support service

A 200
2 posts advertised and filled and Admin Support reorganised which allows deletion of 2 
vacant posts. Consultation to begin on deletion of posts - additional pressures through 
delay in approving new Constitution and Scrutiny structure after June '11

A

11
Legal Services: Restructure the service and reduce support in 
non-critical areas

A 230

Discussion with finance over rationalisation of debt underway but delays have adversely 
impacted on elements of budget savings  Legal Services are therefore revisiting its 
delivery plan to find alternative delivery methods.

A

12
Registration Service: challenge the structure and increase fees 
and charges

G 80
New fees and charges introduced, time lag due to advance bookings. Nationality 
checking being introduced as additional income stream.

G

13
ICT Support: Reduce support provided to departments and 
minimise duplication across the council (will need some ICT 
investment)

G 150
Departmental systems, infrastructure and telephony reviewed for duplication and 
reduced where appropriate. Further projected savings identified with replacement of 
legacy systems with enterprise solutions. 

G

14
ICT direct costs: Reduce licence costs, lease costs, phone 
rentals, licences etc

G 100
Significant savings achieved by improved analysis and robust challenge of existing 
hardware and software licence portfolio.

G

15
Data Quality Project. Reduction in duplication across different 
systems

G 50
Awaiting investment in dynamics and data matching software to be agreed.   The 
savings from this investment will acrue across other departments from operational 
savings.

G

16
Senior Management: Reduce Senior management structure/ 
costs by 20% 

G 0
No plans in place to achieve this saving to date. Assessed as 'Green' (not Red) as no 
requirement for financial savings to be made in 2011

G

16a*
Senior Management: Accelerate implementation of Sen Man 
restructure

G 50
Requirement to bring 2013/14 savings forward to commence in 2011/12. No plans in 
place yet to achieve this saving hence risk assessed as red.

G

CORPORATE SUPPORT DIRECT TOTALS: 2,360  

 Corporate Support Services Delivery Plans December '11                                                                                                                                             Appendix C

2011/12
Progress Update

Balancing the budget : Areas for savings, efficiency gains or increase 
income

Projected 
Savings

Feasibilty & Risk

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



49  

Publicly Cross-Cutting: Savings delivered on behalf of, or reliant on, other departments 2011/12

17
Procurement: Procure To Pay / Buyer roll out. Driving 
efficiencies out of external purchasing

G 850
Buyers now in place for Corporate Support, Community Services, Children's and 
Development - processes revised and updated. Beginning to realise financial savings. 
Savings vs target will be closely monitored throughout the year.

G

17a Corporate Support: Procurement * A 381
Added target as part of the 2011/12 final budget setting process in February 2011.  
Proposed contingency of £400k from 2010/11 end of year adjustments.

A

18
Customer Contact Centre: bring in services from other 
departments into contact centre. Improve service & reduce costs

A 100

Finalising move of remaining car park services for Jan 2012. Outstanding issue is delays 
to full implementation of Microsoft Dynamics CRM which is critical to moving other 
services due to lack of agreement on capital. Customer Service pushing forward 
implementation as best as possible.

A

19
Employee Terms & Conditions: review and revise Terms and 
Conditions across the whole council *

G 700
At least £400k of the £700k savings target at risk due to delay in implementating the 
new Terms and Conditions.  

G

20
Workforce Management: remove duplication with staff based 
within departments

R 70
Staff still within departments - next step requires CMT buy-in to moving resources into 
one co-ordinated organisational team

R

21
Print and Document Services (PADS) - consider options for 
future service delivery and/or increase productivity

G 0
Intending to undertake options appraisal back end of 2011/12. No financial or staff 
savings planned for next financial year

G

A 715 A

A 150 A

23
Business Support: restructure across the Council - anticipated 
savings attributable to Corporate Support

R 50
This plan is aimed at saving significant sums of money across all departments through a 
comprehensive restructure of Business Support. No tanngible plans in place as to how 
this will be achieved - hence assessed as 'Red'

R

CORPORATE SUPPORT INDIRECT TOTAL: 3,016

TOTAL DELIVERY PLANS CORPORATE SUPPORT: 5,376

TOTAL SAVINGS TARGET CORPORATE SUPPORT: 5,221  

SURPLUS/(SHORTFALL) IF ALL PLANS DELIVERED: 155

Vacated several satellite offices generating £350k under phase 1 from actions to date. 
Risk of not achieving £750k in 2011/12 due to delay in selling the Civic. Bringing forward 
Phase 2 asset disposals to mitigate this risk.

 Corporate Support Services Delivery Plans December '11                                                                                                                                             Appendix C

22 Accommodation Strategy                                                                                                                                                                                                  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



50  

Budget Revised

£000 RAG R/A/G

1 100 G

Lots of good work hasbeen carried out  to restructure in order to 
realise this DP within the timescales originally set - this has now been 
successfully been implemented. The DP is still being reported as 
Amber as there is still a slight shortfall in achieveing the targets 
orgininally set, however other ways on delivering these savings are 
being reviewed within the Department.  

G

2 0 G Risk assessment included in PID. Main risks highlighted here G

100

Savings delivered on behalf of, or reliant on, other departments

2 100 G
Although the restructure above addressed this action there is still a 
question over whether this activity is still being carried out within 
Departments, therefore the DP is resported as Red.

A

3 100 G

Departments requested to submit business plans. These indicate a 
substantial saving compared to previous years could be achieved in 
11/12, exceeding budget targets but some departments are yet to 
respond. These savings will not be directly cashable. Final position 
will not be known until year end but will be monitored during the year.

A

4 100 G

Work has been ongoing within Chief Executive's Department to 
change activities and culture in relation to Print, Publicity and 
Advertising. Chief Execs has seen some positive results of this and 
has achieved the full DP target for thir area. 

G

300

400 RAG RATING RULES
Green = clear plans in place / capacity to deliver identified / more than 50% of 
financial savings have already been realised
Amber = clear plans in place / capacity to deliver identified / clear milestones and 
project management arrangements identified / evidence of significant progress 
against these milestones

Red = no clear project plan / no milestones in place to evidence achievability of 
required revenue savings for 2011/12 and / or no clear capacity identified in order to 
implement the delivery plan.

TOTAL OF ALL DELIVERY PLANS FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVES:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECT PLANS TOTAL:

Printing, Publicity and Advertising: challenge the current demand across the 
council and rationalise future publicity & advertising activity. Notional saving for 
department based on reducing 25% of total council spend.

Performance and Intelligence: rationalise performance management, 
completion of government returns and data analysis across the council. 1/3rd of 
total planned savings applied to Chief Executives at this early stage of 
development

Performance and Intelligence: Impact of losing the Performance Reward 
Grant. Overall restructure linked to Item 1 above

CHIEF EXECUTIVE INDIRECT PLANS TOTAL:

Consultation:  Better joined up / rationalised small team of dedicated 
consultation staff. Look at duplication between departments and ensure 
consultation activity is relevant and required

Corporate Subscriptions:  challenging the need for subscriptions to 
professional organisations. Joining up subscriptions and/or removing non 
essential spend.

2011/12

Chief Executive Delivery Plans December '11                                   Appendix C

Balancing the budget : Areas for savings, efficiency gains or increase 
income

Progress Update
Delivery 
Plan 
savings

 

Page 70



20
12

-1
3

G
o

 L
iv

e
Y

ea
r 

E
n

d
6 

m
o

n
th

 
re

vi
ew

R
&

B
K

ey
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

es
L

ea
d

 O
ff

ic
er

N
o

ve
m

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er
Ja

n
u

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g

u
st

S
ep

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y
F

eb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
C

ro
ss

 C
u

tt
in

g
1

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

M
C

1.
1

R
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

1.
2

T
ra

in
in

g 
P

la
ns

1.
3

S
ta

ff 
S

ur
ve

y 
R

es
po

ns
e

1.
4

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y
1.

5
A

bs
en

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
o

n
g

o
in

g
1.

6
S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
 R

ol
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
1.

7
T

ea
m

 L
ea

de
r 

R
ol

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

1.
8

S
pe

ci
al

is
t O

ffi
ce

r 
R

ol
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
1.

9
A

-E
 R

ol
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
1.

10
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
2

IT
 &

 T
el

ep
h

o
n

y
M

C
2.

1
S

el
f S

er
vi

ce
M

C
2.

2
Ly

nc
JM

c
2.

3
IT

 M
od

ul
es

C
C

2.
4

C
T

ax
 R

IS
C

 
J 

M
c

2.
5

C
T

ax
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
t m

od
ul

e
JM

c
2.

6
C

ap
ita

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 M

od
ul

e
A

ll
2.

7
B

ar
co

de
d 

B
ill

s 
(in

cl
 O

pm
nt

 in
v)

JM
c

2.
8

M
ob

ile
 W

or
ki

ng
A

T
2.

9
B

ai
lif

f I
nt

er
fa

ce
JM

c
3

W
o

rk
fl

o
w

C
C

3.
1

S
ca

nn
in

g 
an

d 
In

de
xi

ng
3.

2
P

os
t  

3.
3

C
ou

nt
er

 -
 T

ria
ge

3.
4

T
el

ep
ho

ne
s

3.
5

D
W

P
-P

D
T

 te
am

4
Q

u
al

it
y 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 &
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
C

4.
1

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
IS

A
ll

4.
2

S
ub

si
dy

C
C

4.
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
T

4.
4

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
en

tr
es

JM
c

4.
5

C
rit

ic
al

 D
ia

ry
JM

c
In

iti
at

io
n

4.
6

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 E

xc
el

le
nc

e 
5

W
el

fa
re

 R
ef

o
rm

M
C

5.
1

C
T

ax
 S

up
po

rt
  L

oc
al

is
at

io
n 

(C
T

B
)

dr
af

t
fin

al
bi

ll
5.

2
C

T
ax

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

ef
or

m
s

5.
2

B
us

in
es

s 
R

at
es

 L
oc

al
is

at
io

n
5.

4
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 C
re

di
t

5.
5

S
F

IS
 

H
B

6
C

C
6.

1
H

B
 S

tr
at

eg
y

6.
2

D
H

P
 R

ev
ie

w
6.

3
H

B
 T

ak
e-

up
6.

4
R

is
k 

B
as

ed
 V

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
6.

5
C

rit
ic

al
 B

irt
hd

ay
s

6.
6

A
T

LA
S

 -
 P

ha
se

 2
6.

7
In

te
rv

en
tio

ns
R

is
k 

ba
se

d
R

ev
en

u
es

 
7

C
T

ax
 

JM
C

7.
1

R
ec

ov
er

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

- 
co

lle
ct

io
n

7.
2

D
eb

t R
ec

ov
er

y 
P

ol
ic

y
7.

2
R

ec
ov

er
y/

O
pm

t I
nt

eg
ra

tio
n 

P
la

n
7.

2
W

rit
e-

of
f p

ro
ce

ss
7.

2
B

ai
lif

f C
on

tr
ac

t
7.

2
E

ar
ly

 b
ill

in
g(

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e)
7.

2
D

D
 T

ak
e-

up
m

ai
n 

bi
lli

ng
7.

2
C

om
m

itt
al

s 
7.

2
S

P
D

 R
ev

ie
w

 (
di

sc
/e

xe
m

pt
s)

7.
2

M
ai

n 
B

ill
in

g
7.

2
D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 D
is

co
un

t -
S

ec
tio

n1
3A

8
N

D
R

/V
al

JM
C

8.
1

D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 R

at
e 

R
el

ie
f P

ol
ic

y
8.

2
R

ec
ov

er
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
- 

co
lle

ct
io

n
8.

3
D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 D
is

co
un

t S
ec

tio
n4

4A
8.

4
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f N
N

D
R

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

F
ra

u
d

/V
is

9
A

T
9.

1
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
9.

2
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
9.

3
P

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
P

ol
ic

y
9.

4
R

et
en

tio
n 

P
ol

ic
y

9.
5

C
or

po
ra

te
 F

ra
ud

 S
tr

at
eg

y

Agenda Item 8Page 71



2
0
/
0
3
/
1
2

1
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
- 

K
ey

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

S
ta

rt
C

ri
ti

ca
l D

at
es

S
ta

rt
ed

F
in

is
h

D
ep

en
d

en
cy

1s
t 

L
O

L
in

k 
o

ff
ic

er
R

A
G

P
ro

g
re

ss
1.

1
R

es
tr

u
ct

u
re

 C
h

an
g

es
N

o
v

A
p

r-
12

M
an

 te
am

1.
1.

1
T

ea
m

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

&
 a

llo
ca

tio
n

 
 

1.
1.

2
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
m

ov
es

 
 

1.
1.

3
G

ra
de

 ta
sk

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

 
1.

9.
1

1.
1.

4
W

or
k 

 tr
ay

 c
ha

ng
es

 
1.

1.
5

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f v
ac

an
ci

es
 

1.
1.

6
A

pp
re

nt
ic

es
A

pr
-1

2
 

1.
2

S
ta

ff
 T

ra
in

in
g

 P
la

n
s

N
o

v-
11

o
n

g
o

in
g

M
an

 T
ea

m
1.

2.
1

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 p
rio

rit
y 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
1.

2.
2

D
ev

el
op

 1
2 

m
on

th
 p

la
n 

- 
ge

ne
ric

 o
ffi

ce
rs

N
ov

-1
1

 
 

1.
2.

3
P

ub
lis

h 
pl

an
s

N
ov

-1
1

 
1.

2.
4

R
ev

ie
w

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

on
th

ly
O

ng
oi

ng
 

1.
2.

5
D

ev
el

op
 c

en
tr

al
 s

ki
lls

 a
ud

it 
sp

re
ad

sh
ee

t
O

ng
oi

ng
 

S
ta

ff
 T

ra
in

in
g

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 n

ew
 s

ta
ff

N
ov

-M
ar

 
H

B
 N

ew
 C

la
im

s 
- 

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

ta
x

Ja
n-

D
ec

 
B

A
C

S
M

ar
-1

2
 

R
ec

ov
er

y 
in

te
gr

at
io

n
M

ar
-1

2
 

H
B

 O
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
M

ar
-1

2
 

Ly
nc

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
 s

ys
te

m
A

pr
-1

2
R

ec
ov

er
y 

&
 C

O
A

 -
 H

B
T

B
A

C
O

C
 -

 H
B

T
B

A
C

ap
ita

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 M

od
ul

e
Ju

n-
12

C
T

S
 S

ch
em

e
O

ct
-1

2
A

nn
ua

l -
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

O
ng

oi
ng

1.
3

S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

ey
F

eb
-1

2
A

p
r-

12
M

an
 T

ea
m

1.
3.

1
A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 r

es
po

ns
es

 
1.

3.
2

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
 

1.
3.

3
Im

pl
em

en
tio

n 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

1.
4

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 s
tr

at
eg

y
N

o
v-

11
o

n
g

o
in

g
M

an
 T

ea
m

1.
4.

1
S

ta
ff 

br
ie

fin
gs

 s
es

si
on

s
on

go
in

g
 

1.
4.

2
S

ta
ff 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

gr
ou

p
A

pr
-1

2
1.

4.
3

W
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
br

ie
fin

gs
 n

ot
es

on
go

in
g

 
 

1.
4.

4
T

ea
m

 m
ee

tin
gs

on
go

in
g

 
1.

4.
5

R
&

B
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

st
af

f
 

1.
5

A
b

se
n

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
M

an
 T

ea
m

1.
5.

1
Im

pl
em

en
t M

on
th

ly
 m

an
ag

em
en

t r
ev

ie
w

s 
w

ith
 H

R
on

go
in

g
 

on
go

in
g

1.
5.

2
Im

pl
em

en
t M

on
th

ly
 T

ea
m

 le
ad

er
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

w
ith

 H
R

on
go

in
g 

 
on

go
in

g

1.
6

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 R
o

le
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
N

o
v-

11
M

an
 T

ea
m

1.
6.

1
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 -

 te
am

 b
ui

ld
in

g
Ja

n-
12

 
 

1.
6.

2
In

di
vi

du
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
A

pr
-1

2
1.

2.
5

1.
6.

3
M

on
th

ly
 o

ne
 to

 o
ne

's
 

1.
6.

4
A

pp
ra

is
al

s
F

eb
/A

ug
 

1.
7

T
ea

m
 L

ea
d

er
 R

o
le

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

N
o

v-
11

M
an

 T
ea

m
1.

7.
1

C
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 &
 L

&
D

 s
es

si
on

s
M

ar
-1

2
 

1.
7.

2
R

ol
es

 a
nd

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
1.

7.
3

In
di

vi
du

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

A
pr

1.
2.

5
1.

7.
4

M
on

th
ly

 o
ne

 to
 o

ne
's

 
1.

7.
5

A
pp

ra
is

al
s

F
eb

/A
ug

 

1.
8

S
p

ec
ia

lis
t 

O
ff

ic
er

 R
o

le
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
N

o
v-

11
M

an
 T

ea
m

1.
8.

1
R

ol
e 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s

 
1.

8.
2

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s

 
1.

8.
3

R
ep

or
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t a

re
as

 
1.

8.
4

In
di

vi
du

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

A
pr

-1
2

1.
2.

5,
  1

.1
0

1.
8.

5
C

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

to
 s

ta
ff

 
1.

8.
6

M
on

th
ly

 o
ne

 to
 o

ne
's

 
1.

8.
7

A
pp

ra
is

al
s

F
eb

/A
ug

 

1.
9

A
-E

 R
o

le
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
N

o
v-

11
M

an
 T

ea
m

1.
9.

1
W

or
k 

ta
sk

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

A
-E

 
 

 
1.

9.
2

C
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
to

 s
ta

ff
 

 
1.

9.
3

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 ta
sk

s 
ch

an
ge

s
 

1.
9.

4
W

or
k 

tr
ay

s 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 w
or

k 
 

 
1.

9.
5

C
oa

ch
in

g 
an

d 
m

en
to

rin
g 

G
ra

de
 E

 
1.

9.
6

In
di

vi
du

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

A
pr

-1
2

1.
2.

5,
 1

.1
0

1.
9.

7
B

i-m
on

th
ly

 o
ne

 to
 o

ne
's

 
1.

9.
8

A
pp

ra
is

al
s

F
eb

/A
ug

 

1.
10

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

D
ec

-1
1

M
an

 T
ea

m
1.

10
.1

O
ffi

ce
 c

le
an

 u
p

 
 

1.
10

.2
C

ub
lic

es
 c

ha
ng

es
 

 
1.

10
.3

C
am

er
as

 in
 c

ub
ic

le
s

 

1.
10

.4
O

ffi
ce

 R
ed

ec
or

at
io

n
 

D
ec

11
 -

 M
an

ag
em

en
t w

or
ks

ho
p 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

H
R

 a
nd

 L
&

D
  F

eb
12

O
ne

 to
 o

ne
s 

an
d 

ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
 u

nd
er

w
ay

.  
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ar
ea

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

pl
an

s 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
  M

ar
12

 -
 M

an
ag

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f r
ol

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
cr

os
s 

w
or

ki
ng

N
o

v1
1 

- S
ta

ff 
br

ie
fin

gs
 h

el
d 

on
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
ns

, a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

m
ov

es
 a

nd
 te

am
s.

   
Ja

n
12

S
ta

ff 
br

ie
fin

gs
 h

el
d 

- 
up

da
te

 o
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 w

or
k 

le
ve

ls
, a

nd
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t -
 D

W
P

 w
or

k 
an

d 
w

or
ks

tr
ea

m
s 

ar
ou

nd
 w

or
kf

lo
w

.  
F

eb
12

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
 -

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 b
ei

ng
 b

ui
lt 

in
to

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
s.

Ja
n

12
 -

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
 -

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
in

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
to

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
pl

an
s.

  F
eb

12
 -

 m
os

t o
f s

ta
ff 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 n
ow

 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 p

la
ns

.  
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

p 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

fte
r 

m
ai

n 
bi

lli
ng

.

O
ct

11
 -

 s
ta

ff 
br

ie
fin

g 
he

ld
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n,

 tr
ai

ni
ng

, t
ea

m
s 

et
c.

  P
la

ns
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

an
d 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
- 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 a

nd
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

to
 te

am
 a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

 N
o

v1
1 

- 
G

o 
liv

e 
-T

ra
ns

iti
on

 o
f s

ta
ff 

in
to

 R
ev

s 
an

d 
B

en
s 

- 
S

ta
ff 

m
ov

ed
 in

to
 n

ew
 te

am
, t

ra
in

in
g 

st
ar

te
d 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 m

an
ag

ed
.  

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
on

 
gr

ad
in

g 
ta

sk
s 

an
d 

w
or

k 
st

ar
te

d 
on

 w
or

kt
ra

y 
ch

an
ge

s.
  D

ec
11

 C
ha

ng
es

 to
 C

ta
x 

w
or

kt
ra

ys
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.  
Ja

n1
2 

V
ac

an
ci

es
 

in
 r

ed
ep

lo
ym

en
t -

 n
o 

ta
ke

-u
p.

  F
eb

12
 -

 R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

n 
ho

ld
 u

nt
il 

af
te

r 
m

ai
n 

bi
lli

ng
.

N
o

v 
11

 -
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
ns

 s
ta

rt
ed

.  
T

ra
in

in
g 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 fo
r 

al
l n

ew
 s

ta
ff 

in
to

 R
ev

s 
an

d 
B

en
s.

   
  D

ec
11

 -
 F

in
al

 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

gr
ou

p 
of

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 n

ow
 m

ov
ed

 in
to

 d
ep

t -
 C

ta
x 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
ng

oi
ng

.  
 P

la
ns

 d
ra

w
n 

up
 fo

r 
H

B
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

in
 o

th
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 1
2 

m
on

th
s.

  J
an

12
 -

 C
ta

x 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

ng
oi

ng
, s

om
e 

st
af

f n
ow

 tr
ia

lli
ng

 o
n 

te
le

ph
on

es
 w

ith
 g

ra
de

 E
 s

up
po

rt
.  

F
irs

t g
ro

up
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
C

ta
x 

st
af

f h
av

e 
st

ar
te

d 
H

B
 tr

ai
ni

ng
.  

  F
eb

12
 -

 G
ro

up
 2

 H
B

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
  C

ta
x 

- 
go

in
g 

w
el

l a
nd

 m
os

t s
ta

ff 
no

w
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
te

le
ph

on
es

 w
ith

 a
 te

ch
ni

ca
l e

xp
er

t s
up

po
rt

in
g.

  
M

ar
12

 -
 A

pp
re

nt
ic

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

- 
du

e 
to

 s
ta

rt
 la

te
 M

ar
  

D
ec

11
 -

 M
on

th
ly

 m
ee

tin
g 

bo
ok

ed
 w

ith
 H

R
 b

ot
h 

at
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 a

nd
 te

am
 le

ad
er

 le
ve

l. F
eb

11
 -

 te
am

 le
ad

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
el

l -
 b

et
te

r 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
ar

ou
nd

 a
bs

en
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t b

ei
ng

 d
el

iv
er

ed
. C

ap
ab

ili
ty

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
 

M
ar

12
 O

ng
oi

ng
 c

as
e 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s.

  L
on

g 
te

rm
 a

bs
en

ce
 -

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

N
o

v1
1 

- 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 s
et

 u
p 

- 
of

fic
e 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
  S

ta
ff 

te
am

s 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

   
Ja

n
12

C
ub

ic
le

s 
on

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 a
lte

re
d 

to
 m

ax
im

is
e 

cu
st

om
er

 c
ap

ac
ity

 (
2 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
ub

ic
le

s)
.  

G
en

er
al

 o
ffi

ce
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 !s

t a
nd

 G
rd

 fl
oo

r.
   

M
ar

12
F

ur
th

er
 o

ffi
ce

 c
le

ar
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ai
nt

in
g 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

N
o

v1
1 

- s
ta

ff 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 h
el

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
N

ov
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ta

sk
s 

fo
r 

D
/E

 s
pl

it.
  I

nt
ro

du
ct

or
y 

ge
t t

o 
kn

ow
 y

ou
 o

ne
 to

 o
ne

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

  I
de

nt
ifi

ed
, c

oa
ch

in
g/

m
en

to
rin

g,
 tr

ai
ni

ng
, c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 n

ew
 r

el
ea

se
 te

st
in

g,
 w

or
ks

tr
ea

m
 tr

ia
ls

 fo
r 

E
 g

ra
de

s.
  

Ja
n

12
 C

ha
ng

es
 to

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

w
or

k 
tr

ay
s 

co
m

pl
et

e.
  F

eb
12

 -
 w

or
k 

on
go

in
g 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
on

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

ta
sk

s 
fo

r 
C

/B
  

M
ar

12
 -

 T
ra

in
in

g 
on

 s
pe

ci
fic

 ta
sk

s 
on

go
in

g 
m

ar
 -

 O
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

co
ac

hi
ng

 a
nd

 m
en

to
rin

g 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d

D
ec

11
 -

 W
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

r 
to

 d
ef

in
e 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 F

eb
12

 - 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

ro
le

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
of

 o
ut

pu
ts

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
n 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
  M

ar
12

 -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f r
ol

e 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

in
 A

pr
il

F
eb

12
In

iti
al

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
to

 te
am

 le
ad

er
s 

co
m

pl
et

e 
- 

te
am

 w
or

k 
sh

op
s 

bo
ok

ed
 M

ar
-A

pr
 -

 O
ne

 to
 o

ne
 a

nd
 a

pp
ra

is
al

s 
bo

ok
ed

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
w

ay
  M

ar
12

T
ea

m
 le

ad
er

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 d

ea
ly

ed
 u

nt
il 

A
pr

12
 d

ue
 to

 C
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 w
or

kl
oa

ds

Page 72



2
IT

/T
el

ep
h

o
n

y 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
S

ta
rt

C
ri

ti
ca

l D
at

es
S

ta
rt

ed
F

in
is

h
D

ep
en

d
en

cy
1s

t 
L

O
lin

k 
o

ff
ic

er
R

A
G

P
ro

g
re

ss
2.

1
S

el
f 

S
er

vi
ce

F
eb

-1
2

A
p

ri
l -

 g
o

 li
ve

M
C

C
C

/J
M

c/
A

T
2.

1.
1

IE
G

4 
- 

O
nl

in
e 

B
en

ef
it 

F
or

m
 

2.
1.

2
IE

G
4 

- 
O

nl
in

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
or

 
2.

1.
3

C
T

ax
 2

4/
7 

se
lf 

se
rv

ic
e

 
2.

1.
4

C
T

ax
 E

-b
ill

in
g

 
2.

1.
5

C
ta

x 
- 

ch
an

ge
 o

f a
dd

re
ss

 
2.

1.
6

H
B

 e
-n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
 

2.
1.

7
H

B
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s
 

2.
1.

8
N

N
D

R
 2

4/
7 

se
lf 

se
rv

ic
e

 
2.

1.
9

N
N

D
R

 E
-b

ill
in

g
 

2.
1.

10
D

D
 v

ia
 th

e 
w

eb
 

2.
1.

11
P

ub
lic

ity
2.

2
L

yn
c 

T
el

ep
h

o
n

e
Ja

n
-1

2
A

p
ri

l -
 g

o
 li

ve
JM

c
S

Y
2.

2.
1

P
re

 w
or

k 
- 

se
t u

p 
an

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

f c
ha

m
el

eo
ns

M
ar

ch
 

2.
2.

2
T

ra
in

in
g

M
ar

ch
2.

2.
3

G
o 

liv
e

A
pr

il
2.

3
IT

 M
o

d
u

le
s

Ja
n

-1
2

2.
3.

1
P

A
R

IS
 S

po
ol

er
Ja

n
 

 
2.

3.
2

H
B

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

&
 C

T
ax

 b
ill

 m
er

ge
A

pr
i

2.
3.

3
A

ut
o 

R
en

t I
nc

re
as

es
 

2.
3.

4
E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
la

nd
lo

rd
 s

ch
ed

ul
es

 
2.

3.
5

R
en

t O
ffi

ce
r 

R
ef

er
ra

ls
 -

 n
on

 p
rio

rit
y

2.
4

C
T

ax
 R

is
c 

M
o

d
u

le
M

ar
-1

2
M

ay
 -

 g
o

 li
ve

7.
1

JM
c

P
D

2.
4.

1
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 r

is
k 

ca
te

go
rie

s
2.

4.
2

S
ys

te
m

 d
es

ig
n

2.
4.

3
C

or
re

sp
on

de
nc

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
2.

4.
4

T
es

tin
g

2.
4.

5
R

ev
ie

w
2.

4.
6

G
o 

liv
e

2.
5

C
ta

x 
A

rr
an

g
em

en
t 

M
o

d
u

le
Ju

n
-1

2
A

u
g

 -
 g

o
 li

ve
2.

6
JM

c
P

D
2.

5.
1

S
ys

te
m

 d
es

ig
n

2.
5.

2
T

es
tin

g
2.

5.
3

G
o 

liv
e

2.
6

C
ap

it
a 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 V
er

si
o

n
Ju

n
-1

2
A

u
g

 -
 g

o
 li

ve
M

C
C

C
/J

M
c/

A
T

2.
6.

1
S

ys
te

m
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
6.

2
S

ys
te

m
 te

st
in

g
2.

6.
3

T
ra

in
in

g
2.

6.
4

G
o 

liv
e

2.
7

B
ar

co
d

ed
 B

ill
s

F
eb

-1
2

JM
c

2.
7.

1
In

vo
ic

es
 

 
2.

3.
1

2.
7.

2
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 b

ill
s

M
ay

 
2.

7.
3

B
us

in
es

s 
R

at
es

 b
ill

s
M

ay
 

2.
7.

4
D

ev
el

op
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
2.

7.
5

P
ub

lic
ity

2.
8

M
o

b
ile

 W
o

rk
in

g
M

ar
-1

2
Ju

ly
9.

2
A

T
h

K
J

2.
8.

1
D

em
o

M
ar

 
 

2.
8.

2
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
sy

st
em

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
 

2.
8.

3
R

ev
ie

w
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

2.
8.

4
S

ys
te

m
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
8.

5
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

2.
8.

6
G

o 
liv

e
M

ay
2.

9
B

ai
lif

f 
In

te
rf

ac
e

Ju
n

-1
2

Ju
ly

6.
6

JM
c

P
D

2.
9.

1
T

es
tin

g
2.

9.
2

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
2.

9.
3

G
o 

liv
e

F
eb

12
 - 

D
em

o 
of

 C
ap

ita
 b

oo
ke

d 
8 

M
ar

.  
M

ar
12

C
ap

ita
 D

em
o 

- 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f m
od

ul
e 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
s 

pl
an

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

Ja
n

12
- 

B
ar

co
de

d 
in

vo
ic

es
 in

 p
la

ce
  F

eb
12

 -
 In

iti
al

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

on
 b

ar
co

de
d 

bi
lls

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
.

Ja
n

12
 IE

G
4 

be
ne

fit
 fo

rm
 d

ra
ft 

te
m

pl
at

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
.  

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

co
nt

en
t/l

ea
yo

ut
 to

 C
ap

ita
.  

S
el

f S
er

vi
ce

 n
ow

 in
 te

st
 s

ys
te

m
 -

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 te
st

ed
/d

ev
el

op
ed

 -
 p

ic
k 

up
 p

os
t y

ea
r 

en
d.

  
F

or
tn

ig
ht

ly
 u

pd
at

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

F
eb

12
 -

 P
rio

rit
y 

or
de

r 
of

 w
or

kl
oa

ds
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 
ke

y 
of

fic
er

s 
 M

ar
12

 -
 W

or
k 

on
 ta

rg
et

 -
 o

n 
ho

ld
 fo

r 
m

ai
n 

bi
lli

ng
 -

 ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

en
d 

A
pr

il

D
ec

11
 -

 K
ic

k 
of

f m
ee

tin
g 

  J
an

12
 -

 A
gr

ee
d 

da
te

s,
 p

re
 w

or
k 

st
ar

te
d 

to
 c

ol
la

te
 s

ta
ff 

na
m

es
, P

c 
no

's
 

an
d 

te
l. 

no
's

.  
F

eb
12

 -
 C

ha
ng

e 
ch

am
el

eo
ns

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
fu

ll 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 fl

oo
r 

w
al

ki
ng

.  
W

or
k 

st
ar

tin
g 

on
 s

ys
te

m
 s

et
 u

p.
  T

ra
in

in
g 

be
in

g 
bo

ok
ed

  M
ar

/A
pr

il.
  A

pr
il 

go
 li

ve
 c

on
fir

m
ed

.  
M

ar
12

T
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r 
ch

am
el

eo
ns

 b
oo

ke
d 

m
id

 M
ar

ch
 -

 1
st

 g
ro

up
 o

f s
ta

ff 
bo

ok
ed

 fo
r 

en
d 

M
ar

.
Ja

n
12

 -
 P

A
R

IS
 S

po
ol

er
 c

om
pl

et
e.

   
F

eb
12

 - 
on

 h
ol

d 
- 

S
el

f s
er

vi
ce

 p
rio

rit
y

F
eb

12
 In

iti
al

 s
co

pi
ng

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 r

is
k 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s

Page 73



3
W

o
rk

 F
lo

w
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
K

ey
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
S

ta
rt

C
ri

ti
ca

l D
at

es
S

ta
rt

ed
F

in
is

h
D

ep
en

d
en

cy
1s

t 
L

O
lin

k 
o

ff
ic

er
R

A
G

P
ro

g
re

ss
3.

1
S

ca
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 In
d

ex
in

g
F

eb
-1

2
A

p
r-

12
JM

c
S

C
3.

1.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 w
or

kf
lo

w
 

 
3.

1.
2

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

 
3.

1.
3

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 
 

3.
2

P
o

st
F

eb
-1

2
M

ar
-1

2
C

C
C

cu
3.

2.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

os
t -

 c
us

to
m

er
 jo

ur
ne

y
 

3.
2.

2
T

ra
il 

op
tio

ns
 

3.
2.

3
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
3.

2.
4

R
ol

l i
n 

al
l s

ta
f f

3.
3

C
o

u
n

te
r

F
eb

-1
2

M
ar

-1
2

C
C

C
cu

3.
3.

1
T

ria
l o

f t
ria

ge
 s

ys
te

m
 

3.
3.

2
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

3.
3.

3
R

ol
l i

n 
al

l s
ta

f f
3.

4
T

el
ep

h
o

n
es

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

3.
4.

1
R

ev
ie

w
 c

ur
re

nt
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 te

le
ph

on
e 

re
sp

on
se

 
3.

4.
2

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

 
3.

4.
3

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

3.
5

D
W

P
 -

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

te
am

Ja
n

-1
2

Ju
n

-1
2

M
C

C
C

,J
M

c,
A

T
3.

5.
1.

P
ro

je
ct

 In
iti

at
io

n 
D

W
P

N
ov

-1
1

 
 

3.
5.

2
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

iti
on

 
3.

5.
3

W
or

k 
C

le
ar

an
ce

 P
la

ns
 im

pl
em

en
te

d
 

3.
5.

4
W

ee
kl

y 
R

ev
ie

w
s

 
3.

5.
5

P
D

T
 c

om
pl

et
e

Ju
n-

12
3.

6
A

g
en

cy
 S

ta
f f

N
o

v-
11

C
C

3.
6.

1
S

ea
l o

ff 
ba

ck
lo

g
28

-N
ov

-1
1

 
3.

6.
2

P
la

n 
fo

r 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e

 
 

3.
6.

3
C

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

ac
tio

ns
 

 
3.

6.
4

R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ee
kl

y
 

Ja
n

12
 -

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f w

or
kf

lo
w

 b
y 

D
W

P
.  

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 p

la
ns

 a
ro

un
d 

w
or

kf
lo

w
.  

F
eb

12
 -

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f w

or
k 

le
ve

ls
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
 -

 p
la

ns
 to

 c
le

ar
 o

ld
es

t w
or

k 
ac

ro
ss

 s
ta

ff 
w

or
kt

ra
ys

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
- 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ee
kl

y 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 M
ar

ch
 -

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ye

ar
 e

nd

N
o

v1
1 

- 
5 

A
ge

nc
y 

st
af

f i
n 

pl
ac

e 
ba

ck
lo

g 
se

al
ed

 o
ff 

- 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
ne

w
 c

la
im

s 
fir

st
.  

 D
ec

11
 -

 
D

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
re

ta
in

in
g 

ag
en

cy
 s

ta
ff 

du
e 

to
 L

on
do

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 -

 n
ow

 h
av

e 
3 

st
af

f. 
 J

an
12

 -
 N

ot
 a

bl
e 

to
 

se
cu

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ta

ff 
- 

ha
ve

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
3 

go
od

 s
ta

ff 
- 

re
vi

se
d 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
pl

an
s 

to
 ta

ke
 th

is
 in

to
 

ac
co

un
t -

 fi
na

l n
ew

 c
la

im
s 

no
w

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 F
eb

12
A

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f s

til
l m

ak
in

g 
go

od
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

- 
on

 
ta

rg
et

 to
 c

le
ar

 b
y 

en
d 

A
pr

il.
  M

ar
12

- 
ba

ck
lo

g 
st

ill
 o

n 
ta

rg
et

 to
 b

e 
cl

ea
re

d 
en

d 
A

pr
il.

F
eb

12
 -

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

ca
nn

in
g 

an
d 

in
de

xi
ng

 fu
nc

tio
n 

un
de

rw
ay

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 ti
m

e 
of

 
sc

an
ne

d 
cl

ai
m

s.
  V

F
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 o
f d

oc
um

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e.

F
eb

12
 -

 2
 w

ee
k 

of
 in

co
m

in
g 

po
st

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 h
ow

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
w

or
kf

lo
w

s 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
w

or
k 

le
ve

ls
 a

t p
oi

nt
 o

f t
ra

ns
ac

tio
n.

  T
ra

il 
to

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

st
ill

 to
 b

e 
do

ne
 b

ef
or

e 
ro

ll-
in

 o
f m

or
e 

st
af

f. 
 M

ar
12

T
ria

l o
ng

oi
ng

 -
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 tr
ia

ge
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

F
eb

12
 -

 T
ria

l o
f c

ou
nt

er
/c

ub
ic

le
 tr

ia
ge

 s
ys

te
m

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

M
or

e 
st

af
f n

ow
 g

et
tin

g 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
tr

ia
l -

 e
ar

ly
 in

di
ca

tio
n 

sh
ow

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
w

ai
tin

g 
tim

es
 -

 im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
n 

w
or

k 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
s 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

. M
ar

12
 -

 r
es

po
ns

e 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

go
od

 a
nd

 s
ys

te
m

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
el

l -
 

on
 h

ol
d 

2 
w

ee
ks

 M
ar

 d
ue

 to
 m

ai
n 

bi
lli

ng

Page 74



4
Q

A
 &

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 K
ey

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

S
ta

rt
C

ri
ti

ca
l D

at
es

S
ta

rt
ed

F
in

is
h

D
ep

en
d

en
cy

1s
t 

L
O

lin
k 

o
ff

ic
er

R
A

G
P

ro
g

re
ss

4.
1

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 S
ys

te
m

Ja
n

-1
2

Ju
n

-1
2

M
C

4.
1.

1
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 li
nk

ed
 to

 a
ct

iv
ite

s
 

4.
1.

2
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f f
or

w
ar

d 
pl

an
4.

1.
3

A
gr

ee
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

&
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

4.
1.

4
A

gr
ee

 le
ve

ls
 o

f r
ep

or
tin

g 
(w

ith
 S

I, 
(T

R
A

C
S

))
4.

1.
5

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
tin

g
4.

2
S

u
b

si
d

y 
Ja

n
-1

2
D

ec
-1

2
C

C
4.

2.
1

S
ub

si
dy

 s
up

po
rt

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 in
 p

la
ce

Ja
n-

12
 

 
4.

2.
2

S
ub

si
dy

 1
1/

12
 c

he
ck

s
M

ar
-1

2
 

S
ub

si
dy

 1
2/

13
4.

2.
3

R
ep

or
ts

 r
un

 w
ee

kl
y

A
pr

-1
2

 
 

4.
2.

4
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f s
ub

si
dy

 s
tr

at
eg

y
 

 
4.

2.
5

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 ta
rg

et
 a

re
as

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g
 

4.
2.

6
R

ob
us

t c
he

ck
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 p
la

ce
4.

2.
7

C
on

tin
ua

l r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

io
n

 
4.

2.
8

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
st

af
f b

rie
fin

gs
 

4.
2.

9
IT

 s
ys

te
m

 c
or

re
ct

io
n 

or
 w

or
ka

ro
un

ds
 

4.
2.

10
M

on
th

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

ga
in

st
 s

tr
at

eg
y

 
4.

2.
11

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 s

ub
si

dy
 p

os
iti

on
 

4.
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Ja
n

-1
2

Ju
n

-1
2

1.
8,

 1
.9

, 4
.2

(H
B

)
A

T
4.

3.
1

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 r

ob
us

t a
cc

ur
ac

y 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

4.
3.

2
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
s

 
4.

3.
3

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 o

n 
co

un
te

r/
te

le
ph

on
e

 
4.

3.
4

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

av
er

ag
e 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 r

at
es

 
4.

3.
5

C
us

to
m

er
 c

ar
e 

sk
ill

s 
re

vi
ew

4.
3.

6
Li

nk
 to

 In
di

vi
du

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

la
ns

, a
nd

 a
pp

ra
is

al
s

4.
4

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 C
en

tr
es

M
ar

-1
2

A
p

r-
12

JM
c

JS
4.

4.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f k

ey
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
4.

4.
2

C
re

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
or

ne
rs

 
4.

4.
3

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 te
am

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

4.
4.

4
C

re
at

io
n 

of
 te

am
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

en
tr

es
 

4.
5

C
ri

ti
ca

l D
ia

ry
JM

c
4.

5.
1

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
rit

ic
al

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
M

ar
-1

2
A

p
r-

12
 

4.
5.

1
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f c
rit

ic
al

 d
ia

ry
 

4.
5.

2
Id

en
tif

y 
le

ad
/li

nk
 o

ffi
ce

rs
4.

5.
3

P
ub

lic
is

e 
di

ar
y 

(p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
or

ne
r)

 
4.

6
C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 E

xc
el

le
n

ce
A

u
g

-1
2

4.
6.

1
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 C

S
E

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty

Ja
n

12
 S

ki
lls

 b
as

ed
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
du

rin
g 

in
te

rim
 

ap
pr

ai
sa

ls
  M

ar
12

- 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f Q
ua

lit
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

ol
s 

to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

F
eb

 -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f o
ffi

ce
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
fo

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 c

or
ne

r.
  T

ea
m

 b
oa

rd
s 

or
de

re
d 

fo
r 

da
ily

 
ca

tc
h 

up
s.

  M
ar

12
- 

ea
ch

 te
am

 c
re

at
in

g 
ow

n 
bo

ar
ds

 -
 d

ai
ly

 1
0 

m
in

ut
es

 c
at

ch
 u

ps
.  

1s
t r

ev
ie

w
 e

nd
 

M
ar

ch
 fo

r 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

Ja
n

12
 -

 S
up

po
rt

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
be

in
g 

dr
aw

n 
up

 to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 1

1/
12

 c
la

im
.  

F
eb

12
 W

or
k 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 a

nd
 k

ey
 s

ys
te

m
 d

at
a 

ch
ec

ks
 u

nd
er

w
ay

.  
R

ep
or

ts
 fo

r 
m

ai
n 

bi
lli

ng
 b

ei
ng

 w
or

ke
d 

th
ro

ug
h.

  M
ar

12
 -

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
su

bs
id

y 
cl

ai
m

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

eg
in

 c
he

ck
in

g 
fo

r 
12

/1
3 

fr
om

 
A

pr
il.

  W
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
11

/1
2 

cl
ai

m
 u

nt
il 

en
d 

M
ar

ch
.

Ja
n

12
 In

iti
al

 m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 K
P

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
go

al
s.

  M
ar

12
In

iti
al

 w
or

ku
ps

 d
ra

fte
d 

- 
ne

xt
 m

tg
 

A
pr

D
ec

12
 -

 c
ol

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 s

ta
rt

ed
  F

eb
12

 s
til

l i
n 

pr
og

re
ss

D
ep

en
da

nt
 o

n 
w

or
kl

oa
ds

 li
nk

ed
 to

 w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

Page 75



5
W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
o

rm
 K

ey
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
S

ta
rt

C
ri

ti
ca

l D
at

es
S

ta
rt

ed
F

in
is

h
D

ep
en

d
en

cy
1s

t 
L

O
lin

k 
o

ff
ic

er
R

A
G

P
ro

g
re

ss
5.

1
C

o
u

n
ci

l T
ax

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 -
 L

o
ca

lis
at

io
n

Ja
n

-1
2

A
p

r1
3 

- 
g

o
 li

ve
M

C
5.

1.
1

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 d
at

es
Ja

n-
12

 
 

5.
1.

2
P

ro
je

ct
 r

es
ou

rc
es

F
eb

-1
2

 
 

5.
1.

3
P

ro
je

ct
 m

ee
tin

g 
da

te
s

F
eb

-1
2

 
 

5.
1.

4
P

ro
je

ct
 R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r
F

eb
-1

2
 

5.
1.

5
C

as
el

oa
d 

an
al

ys
is

M
ar

-1
2

 
5.

1.
6

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

gr
ou

ps
M

ar
-1

2
 

5.
1.

7
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

al
ys

is
M

ar
12

-S
ep

12
5.

1.
8

F
in

an
ci

al
 im

pa
ct

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
M

ar
12

-S
ep

12
5.

1.
9

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

A
pr

12
-F

eb
13

5.
1.

10
S

ta
ffi

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Ju
n 

12
-O

ct
12

5.
1.

11
IC

T
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

M
ar

12
 -

F
eb

13
 

5.
1.

12
S

ch
em

e 
de

si
gn

M
ar

12
-D

ec
12

5.
1.

13
E

qu
al

iti
es

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
M

ar
12

-S
ep

t1
2

5.
1.

14
T

ra
ns

iti
on

M
ay

12
-F

eb
13

5.
1.

15
D

at
a 

A
cc

es
s

M
ay

12
-D

ec
12

5.
1.

16
C

us
to

m
er

 d
em

an
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

M
ay

12
-D

ec
12

5.
1.

17
D

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

de
si

gn
 &

 te
st

in
g

A
ug

12
-D

ec
12

5.
1.

18
P

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 (
S

ec
tio

n 
13

A
)

S
ep

t1
2-

F
eb

13
5.

1.
19

S
ta

ff 
tr

ai
ni

ng
O

ct
12

-F
eb

13
5.

1.
20

A
pp

ea
ls

O
ct

12
-F

eb
12

5.
1.

21
T

es
tin

g
A

ug
12

-F
eb

12
5.

1.
22

A
ud

it 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
S

ep
t1

2-
Ja

n1
3

5.
1.

23
F

ra
ud

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
Ju

l1
2-

Ja
n1

3
5.

1.
24

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 le

ga
cy

 c
as

es
S

ep
t1

2-
M

ar
13

5.
2

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

ax
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 r

ef
o

rm
s

Ja
n

-1
2

A
p

r1
3-

g
o

 li
ve

M
C

5.
2.

1
P

ap
er

 o
n 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

 
 

5.
2.

2
R

ev
ie

w
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 te

ch
ni

ca
l r

ef
or

m
5.

2.
3

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 c
as

el
oa

ds
5.

2.
4

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

5.
2.

5
E

qu
al

iti
es

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
5.

2.
6

R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r

5.
2.

7
A

gr
ee

m
en

t o
f o

pt
io

ns
O

ct
-1

2
5.

2.
8

P
ub

lic
ity

5.
2.

9
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

A
pr

-1
3

5.
3

B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
at

es
 L

o
ca

lis
at

io
n

Ja
n

-1
2

A
p

r1
3 

- 
g

o
 li

ve
M

C
5.

3.
1

P
ap

er
 o

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

ha
ng

es
 

5.
3.

2
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
n 

bi
lli

ng
 a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
 

5.
3.

3
P

ro
je

ct
 m

ee
tin

g 
da

te
s 

- 
w

ith
 fi

na
nc

e
5.

3.
4

S
ta

ffi
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
5.

3.
5

S
ta

ff 
T

ra
in

in
g

5.
3.

6
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

5.
4

U
n

iv
er

sa
l C

re
d

it
Ja

n
-1

2
M

C
5.

4.
1

A
rr

an
ge

 D
W

P
 v

is
it 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
on

 U
ni

ve
rs

al
 C

re
di

t
M

ar
-1

2
5.

4.
2

R
es

po
nd

 to
 D

W
P

 c
ha

ng
es

 
5.

4.
3

T
ra

ns
iti

on
O

ct
-1

3
5.

5
S

F
IS

Ja
n

-1
2

M
C

5.
5.

1
W

or
ki

ng
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 D
W

P
 

5.
5.

2
T

ra
ns

iti
on

5.
5.

3
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
p

r-
15

F
eb

12
  -

 L
ia

is
on

 w
ith

 D
W

P
 -

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 a

tte
nd

 to
 g

iv
e 

an
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f U

C
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

an
d 

ro
le

 o
f L

A
's

.  M
ar

12
Li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 D

W
P

 o
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

Ja
n

12
 -

 W
or

k 
ha

s 
be

gu
n 

to
 a

do
pt

 D
W

P
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 S
F

IS
.  

M
ar

12
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 w
or

k 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 D
W

P
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

.

O
ct

11
 -R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pa

pe
r.

   
   

   
   

 D
ec

11
 -R

ev
ie

w
 o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

.  
   

   
Ja

n
12

- P
ap

er
 

to
 C

M
T

.  
K

ey
 D

at
es

 -
 S

ep
t d

ra
ft 

sc
he

m
e,

 J
an

 fi
na

l s
ch

em
e 

ad
op

te
d,

 A
pr

il 
go

 li
ve

.  
  F

eb
12

- 
M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 

A
ca

de
m

y 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
IT

 o
pt

io
ns

 -
 r

es
po

ns
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 in
 A

pr
il.

  F
or

tn
ig

ht
ly

 m
ee

tin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 w
ith

 D
ev

on
 

au
th

or
iti

es
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
sc

he
m

e.
  M

ar
12

 -
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

re
gi

st
er

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

- 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

od
el

lin
g 

of
 

ca
se

lo
ad

 o
ng

oi
ng

.

D
ec

11
 -

R
es

po
ns

e 
to

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pa
pe

r.
   

   
   

   
 D

ec
11

 -
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

.  
   

   
F

eb
12

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
  M

ar
12

 -
 Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 k

ey
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

nd
 m

od
el

lin
g 

w
or

k 
be

gi
nn

in
g.

O
ct

11
 -

 R
es

po
ns

e 
to

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

pa
pe

r.
   

  J
an

 1
2 

- 
no

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
   

   
 F

eb
12

 -
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
be

in
g 

gi
ve

n 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

ro
un

d 
re

lie
fs

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
bi

lli
ng

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n.

  

Page 76



6
H

o
u

si
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
 K

ey
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
S

ta
rt

C
ri

ti
ca

l D
at

es
S

ta
rt

ed
F

in
is

h
D

ep
en

d
en

cy
1s

t 
L

O
lin

k 
o

ff
ic

er
R

A
G

P
ro

g
re

ss
6.

1
H

B
 S

tr
at

eg
y

A
p

r-
12

Ju
l-

12
C

C
a

6.
1.

1
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f H
B

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
6.

1.
2

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
fo

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

6.
2

D
H

P
A

p
r-

12
Ju

n
-1

2
5.

4
C

ca
T

K
6.

2.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 li
gh

t o
f W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
or

m
 C

ha
ng

es
6.

2.
2

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

ch
an

ge
6.

2.
3

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 S
oc

ia
l F

un
d 

ch
an

ge
s

6.
2.

4
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

6.
3

H
B

 T
ak

e-
u

p
Ja

n
-1

2
A

p
r-

12
C

C
A

K
H

6.
3.

1
D

ev
el

op
 p

la
n

 
 

6.
3.

2
T

im
et

ab
le

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

 
6.

3.
3

P
ub

lic
ity

 
 

6.
3.

4
Im

pl
em

en
t

 
 

6.
3.

5
W

kl
y 

R
ev

ie
w

 
6.

3.
6

P
ro

ce
ss

 C
la

im
s

M
ar

-1
2

 

6.
4

R
is

k 
B

as
ed

 V
er

if
ic

at
io

n
M

ar
-1

2
M

ay
-1

2
C

C
A

S
Y

6.
4.

1
S

co
pi

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 

6.
4.

2
R

is
k 

ba
se

d 
ve

rif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

ho
p

 
 

6.
4.

3
R

is
k 

gr
ou

p 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n

6.
4.

4
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
6.

4.
5

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
6.

4.
6

R
ev

ie
w

6.
5

C
ri

ti
ca

l B
ir

th
d

ay
s

M
ar

-1
2

C
C

A
S

G
6.

5.
1

Id
en

tif
y 

po
ss

ib
le

 a
ut

o 
up

da
te

s
 

6.
5.

2
T

es
t 

6.
5.

3
Im

pl
em

en
t

6.
6

A
T

L
A

S
 -

 p
h

as
e 

2
Ja

n
-1

2
A

p
r-

12
C

C
A

S
D

6.
6.

1
D

ev
el

op
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n

 
 

6.
6.

2
IT

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

6.
6.

3
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

 
 

6.
6.

4
R

ev
ie

w
 

6.
7

In
te

rv
en

ti
o

n
s

Ju
n

-1
2

A
u

g
-1

2
C

C
a

T
B

A
6.

7.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 r
is

k 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

as
 p

er
 R

B
V

6.
7.

2
In

iti
at

io
n 

of
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

re
vi

ew
s

6.
7.

3
R

ev
ie

w

F
eb

12
 -

 A
tte

nd
ed

 W
or

ks
ho

p 
on

 r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

ve
rif

ic
at

io
n.

  B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

  H
B

 C
irc

ul
ar

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 -

 c
an

 m
ov

e 
to

 r
is

k 
ba

se
d 

ve
rif

ic
at

io
n 

fr
om

 A
pr

il 
12

.  
A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 c

os
ts

 b
en

ef
it 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

  
M

ar
12

  -
 A

tte
nd

ed
 C

ap
ita

 d
em

o 
 -

 s
ys

te
m

 m
od

ul
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t c

ha
ng

es
.  

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f m

an
ua

l o
r 

sy
st

em
 

ba
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
.

F
eb

12
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

re
as

 to
 b

e 
au

to
m

at
ed

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

R
ep

or
ts

 r
un

 d
ai

ly
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

gr
ou

ps
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

pr
io

rit
y 

at
te

nt
io

n.
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 w

or
k 

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

ta
ff.

Ja
n

12
 -

 G
o 

liv
e 

w
ith

 A
T

LA
s 

cl
ai

m
s 

- 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 is

su
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
cl

, d
up

lic
at

io
n 

of
 E

T
D

's
 a

nd
 

no
t a

ll 
ch

an
ge

s 
be

in
g 

re
ce

iv
ed

.  
F

eb
12

 -
 IS

D
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
au

to
m

at
in

g 
up

lo
ad

s.
  P

la
ns

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f A
T

LA
S

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 w

or
kl

oa
ds

.  
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
la

im
s 

by
 8

-1
0%

.

Ja
n

12
- 

P
la

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 k
ey

 ti
m

el
in

es
.  

M
tg

s 
he

ld
 w

ith
 S

oc
ia

l I
nc

lu
si

on
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

ity
 r

ou
te

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

 
F

eb
12

 -
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 fi
na

lis
ed

 a
nd

 p
rin

te
d.

  L
ea

fle
ts

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
es

 (
In

cl
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c)
 to

 k
ey

 g
ro

up
s.

  M
ar

12
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 ta
ke

-u
p 

un
de

rw
ay

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 c

la
im

s 
by

 e
nd

 o
f M

ar
ch

Page 77



7
C

o
u

n
ci

l T
ax

 K
ey

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

S
ta

rt
C

ri
ti

ca
l D

at
es

S
ta

rt
ed

F
in

is
h

D
ep

en
d

en
cy

1s
t 

L
O

lin
k 

o
ff

ic
er

R
A

G
P

ro
g

re
ss

7.
1

R
ec

o
ve

ry
 S

tr
at

eg
y

D
ec

-1
2

Ju
l-

12
4,

7,
8,

9,
10

 
JM

c
P

D
7.

1.
1

In
iti

al
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n
 

7.
1.

2
D

ev
el

op
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 
7.

1.
3

C
on

si
de

r 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

7.
1.

4
C

on
si

de
r 

im
pa

ct
 o

f W
el

fa
re

 R
ef

or
m

 m
ed

iu
m

 to
 lo

ng
 te

rm
7.

1.
5

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y

7.
2

D
eb

t 
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 P
o

lic
y

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

JM
c

P
D

7.
2.

1
R

ev
ie

w
 &

 U
pd

at
e

 
 

7.
2.

2
S

ig
n 

of
f 

7.
2.

3
P

ub
lis

h
7.

3
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 &
 O

ve
rp

ay
m

en
t 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

Ja
n

-1
2

M
ar

-1
2

JM
c

P
D

7.
3.

1
D

ev
el

op
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n

 
7.

3.
2

S
ta

ff 
T

ra
in

in
g/

M
en

to
rin

g
 

7.
3.

3
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

7.
4

W
ri

te
 O

ff
 P

ro
ce

ss
F

eb
-1

2
M

ar
-1

2
JM

c
S

Y
7.

4.
1

S
ig

n 
of

f w
rit

e-
of

fs
 

7.
4.

2
C

on
si

de
r 

co
rp

or
at

e 
po

lic
y

 
7.

4.
3

F
in

al
is

e 
P

ol
ic

y
7.

5
B

ai
lif

f 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t
D

ec
-1

1
A

p
r-

12
JM

c
P

D
7.

5.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 C
on

tr
ac

t
 

7.
5.

2
T

en
de

r 
pr

oc
es

s
7.

6
E

ar
ly

 B
ill

in
g

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
l-

12
JM

c
P

D
7.

6.
1

R
ev

ie
w

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 in

 li
gh

t o
f t

ec
hn

ic
al

 r
ef

or
m

 c
ha

ng
es

7.
6.

2
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
7.

6.
3

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

7.
6.

4
P

ub
lic

ity
7.

6.
5

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
7.

7
D

D
 &

 B
ac

s 
T

ak
e-

u
p

M
ar

-1
2

 
 

7.
6

JM
c

7.
7.

1
R

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
gr

es
s

Ju
n

-1
2

 
7.

7.
2

A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

7.
7.

3
Im

pl
em

en
t

7.
8

C
o

m
m

it
ta

ls
M

ay
-1

2
Ju

l-
12

JM
c

P
D

7.
8.

1
F

in
al

is
e 

pr
oc

es
s

 
7.

8.
2

R
ev

ie
w

 c
os

t/b
en

ef
it 

an
al

ys
is

7.
8.

3
T

ria
l c

ou
rt

 &
 e

va
lu

at
e

7.
8.

4
Im

pl
em

en
t

7.
9

S
P

D
  R

ev
ie

w
 (

D
is

co
u

n
ts

 &
 e

xe
m

p
ti

o
n

s)
M

ar
-1

2
Ju

l-
12

JM
c

S
C

h
7.

9.
1

S
P

D
 R

ev
ie

w
 -

 c
on

si
de

r 
op

tio
ns

 
7.

9.
2

D
ev

el
op

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

7.
9.

3
Im

pl
em

en
t r

ev
ie

w
7.

9.
4

In
te

gr
at

e 
in

to
 b

us
in

es
s 

as
 u

su
al

7.
9.

5
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

th
er

 r
ev

ie
w

s
7.

10
M

ai
n

 B
ill

in
g

D
ec

-1
1

M
ar

-1
2

JM
c

7.
10

.1
C

T
ax

 B
as

e 
R

ep
or

t
 

 
7.

10
.2

D
ev

el
op

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
 

7.
10

.3
T

im
et

ab
le

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

 
7.

10
.4

C
om

m
ún

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
 

7.
10

.5
M

ai
n 

B
ill

in
g

 
7.

10
.6

F
in

al
is

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

7.
11

S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

3A
S

ep
-1

2
F

eb
-1

3
5.

1
JM

c
P

D
7.

11
.1

R
ev

ie
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
dr

af
t p

ol
ic

y
7.

11
.2

M
em

be
r 

si
gn

 o
ff

7.
11

.3
Im

pl
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y

M
ar

12
D

/D
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f m

ai
n 

bi
lli

ng
 -

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. I
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f p

ay
m

en
t. 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
tiy

 o
f m

or
e 

jo
in

ed
 u

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 S

un
dr

y 
de

bt
.

M
ar

12
 -

 C
om

m
en

ce
 N

F
I r

ev
ie

w
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

cu
st

om
er

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 w

ith
 e

le
ct

or
al

 r
eg

is
te

r.

D
ec

12
 -

 C
T

B
 R

ep
or

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

.  
 J

an
12

 K
ic

k 
of

f m
ee

tin
g 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
de

ad
lin

es
, r

ol
es

 a
nd

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
  L

ea
fle

ts
 in

 d
es

ig
n.

  S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
to

 p
rin

te
rs

 fo
r 

qu
ot

es
  F

eb
12

 L
ea

fle
ts

 s
ig

ne
d 

of
f a

nd
 s

en
t 

to
 P

A
D

S
   

M
ar

12
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 p
rin

iti
n g

 a
nd

 b
at

ch
 p

os
tin

g 
w

ith
 e

ffe
ct

 fr
om

 1
2 

m
ar

ch
.  

F
in

al
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

to
 b

e 
dr

aw
n 

up

F
eb

12
 -

 Id
en

itf
ic

at
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
   

M
ar

12
A

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 1
6 

M
ar

.

F
eb

12
 -

 W
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

up
da

te
d.

   
 M

ar
12

 -
 F

ur
th

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 b

ei
ng

 in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

.

Ja
n

12
 -

 C
on

tr
ac

t t
o 

go
 o

ut
 to

 fo
rm

al
 te

nd
er

.  
E

xi
st

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 fo

r 
4 

m
on

th
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

th
is

.  
 

M
ar

12
 -

E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 c

on
tr

ac
t s

ta
nd

in
g 

or
de

rs
 s

ig
ne

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

F
eb

12
 -

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

 M
ar

12
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
to

 r
e-

en
fo

rc
e 

a 
m

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

M
ar

12
 -

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

id
en

iti
fic

at
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 s

im
ila

rit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a.

Page 78



8
B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

at
es

 K
ey

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

S
ta

rt
C

ri
ti

ca
l D

at
es

S
ta

rt
ed

F
in

is
h

D
ep

en
d

en
cy

1s
t 

L
O

lin
k 

o
ff

ic
er

R
A

G
P

ro
g

re
ss

8.
1

D
is

cr
et

io
n

ar
y 

R
at

e 
R

el
ie

f 
P

o
lic

y
Ja

n
-1

2
Ju

n
-1

2
JM

c
C

J
R

ev
ie

w
 e

xi
st

in
g 

po
lic

y
 

 
D

ra
ft 

po
lic

y 
 

P
ol

ic
y 

au
th

or
is

ed
P

ol
ic

y 
im

pl
em

en
te

d
8.

2
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 S
tr

at
eg

y
Ja

n
-1

2
F

eb
-1

3
5.

3
JM

c
C

J,
 P

D
R

ev
ie

w
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h

 
Id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

D
ev

el
op

 o
f a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 p

la
n

8.
3

D
is

cr
et

io
n

ar
y 

D
is

co
u

n
t 

P
o

lic
y 

-S
ec

ti
o

n
 4

4A
Ja

n
-1

2
M

ay
-1

2
JM

c
C

J
R

ev
ie

w
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 p

ol
ic

y
 

D
oc

um
en

t d
es

ig
n

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

U
pd

at
e 

W
eb

si
te

8.
4

R
ev

ie
w

 N
N

D
R

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

A
p

r-
12

Ju
n

-1
2

JM
c

C
J

R
ev

ie
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 d
at

a
 

C
on

si
de

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
D

ev
el

op
 r

ep
or

ts

Ja
n

12
 -

 C
ur

re
nt

 p
ol

ic
y 

un
de

r 
re

vi
ew

.  
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

  
F

eb
12

 In
iti

al
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 p

ro
po

se
d 

- 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 d
es

ig
n 

Ja
n

12
 -

 n
o 

pr
og

re
ss

  M
ar

12
 O

ve
ra

rc
hi

ng
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 fo
cu

s 
th

en
 

m
ov

in
g 

to
 N

D
R

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 fu

tu
re

 lo
ca

lis
m

 c
ha

ng
es

.

Ja
n

12
 -

 W
or

k 
st

ar
te

d 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 N
D

R
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
  B

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 in

iti
al

 d
at

a 
su

ch
 a

s 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

da
ta

.  
F

eb
12

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ite

s 
no

w
 b

ei
ng

 m
ap

pe
d 

an
d 

lin
ke

d 
to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 b

an
di

ng
 

et
c.

Ja
n

12
 -

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
re

vi
ew

. W
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
no

w
 b

ei
ng

 d
ra

w
n 

up
.  

F
eb

12
 -

 D
ra

ft 
pr

ac
tic

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
.  

M
ar

12
- 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

ap
pe

al
s 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

fo
rm

 d
es

ig
n.

Page 79



9
F

ra
u

d
/V

is
it

in
g

 K
ey

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

S
ta

rt
C

ri
ti

ca
l D

at
es

S
ta

rt
ed

F
in

is
h

D
ep

en
d

en
cy

1s
t 

L
O

lin
k 

o
ff

ic
er

R
A

G
P

ro
g

re
ss

9.
1

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

N
o

v-
11

N
o

v-
11

A
T

K
J

9.
1.

1
B

eg
in

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 V
is

iti
ng

, f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 o

/p
m

ts
 

 

9.
1.

2
C

on
si

de
r 

st
af

f r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t
 

 
9.

1.
3

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 s

ta
ff

 
 

9.
1.

4
P

ar
ki

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
 

9.
1.

5
P

ar
ki

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 

 

9.
2

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
P

la
n

N
o

v-
11

A
T

K
J

9.
2.

1
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

ie
s

 
 

9.
2.

2
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f F
or

w
ar

d 
P

la
n

 
9.

2.
3

D
is

cu
ss

 Is
su

es
 w

ith
 S

ta
ff

 
9.

2.
4

D
ev

el
op

 a
ct

io
ns

 p
la

ns
 

9.
2.

5
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 p

la
ns

9.
2.

6
A

gr
ee

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s 
&

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
9.

2.
7

B
ui

ld
 in

 R
ev

ie
w

s
9.

3
P

ro
se

cu
ti

o
n

 P
o

lic
y

Ja
n

-1
2

M
ar

-1
2

A
T

K
J

9.
3.

1
In

te
rim

 P
ro

ce
ss

 to
 a

gr
ee

d
 

 
9.

3.
2

R
ev

ie
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
po

lic
y

 
 

9.
3.

3
R

ev
ie

w
 J

oi
nt

 W
or

ki
ng

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

 
9.

3.
4

D
ra

ft 
po

lic
y 

 
9.

3.
5

P
ol

ic
y 

au
th

or
is

ed
9.

3.
6

P
ol

ic
y 

im
pl

em
en

te
d

A
pr

-1
2

9.
4

R
et

en
ti

o
n

 P
o

lic
y

N
o

v-
11

M
ar

-1
2

A
T

K
J

9.
4.

1
R

es
ea

rc
h 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
9.

4.
2

R
ev

ie
w

 J
oi

nt
 W

or
ki

ng
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
9.

4.
3

D
ra

ft 
po

lic
y 

9.
4.

4
P

ol
ic

y 
au

th
or

is
ed

9.
4.

5
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

F
eb

-1
2

9.
4.

6
 S

to
ra

ge
 o

f F
ra

ud
 F

ile
s 

M
ar

-1
2

6
A

T
K

J
9.

5
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

ra
u

d
 

M
ar

-1
2

Ju
l-

12
A

T
K

J
9.

5.
1

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 fr
au

d 
ar

ea
s 

- 
In

cl
. b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 
9.

5.
2

E
va

lu
at

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 w
or

k
 

9.
5.

3
C

on
si

de
r 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
/o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

9.
5.

4
P

ro
du

ce
 b

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

 w
ith

 d
et

ai
le

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

ge
s

9.
5.

5
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
n

9.
5.

6
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

N
ov

12
 -

 c
om

pl
et

e 
- 

st
af

f v
ac

at
ed

 B
al

la
rd

 a
nd

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 C

iv
ic

D
ec

12
 -

 W
or

k 
st

ar
te

d 
on

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 o

th
er

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 c

ur
re

nt
 r

ep
or

te
d 

da
ta

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
an

ct
io

n 
et

c.
 J

an
12

 -
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

ng
oi

ng
  F

eb
12

F
or

w
ar

d 
pl

an
 in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 s

ta
ff 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 lo

ok
 a

t h
ow

 d
at

a 
ca

n 
be

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
 le

ss
 m

an
ua

l i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n

Ja
n

12
 -

 In
te

rim
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

gr
ee

d.
  F

eb
12

 In
te

rim
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

ev
ei

w
ed

 &
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

in
 

20
12

/1
3.

  J
oi

nt
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t r

ev
ie

w
ed

 &
 S

LA
 d

ra
fte

d.
 A

w
ai

tin
g 

si
gn

 o
ff.

  M
ar

12
 -

 N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
un

til
 m

or
e 

in
fo

 o
n 

S
F

IS
 is

 k
no

w
n.

F
eb

12
 -

 W
or

k 
ha

s 
no

w
 s

ta
rt

ed
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 fr
au

d 
fil

es
.  

F
eb

12
 -

 A
re

as
 o

f c
or

p 
fr

au
d 

id
en

itf
ie

d,
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
&

 o
th

er
 d

ep
ts

 -
 L

eg
al

 &
 A

ud
it.

  
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
be

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
  M

ar
12

 A
re

as
 fo

r 
tr

ia
l i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 r
ol

l o
ut

 to
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
te

am
 w

he
n 

ca
se

 w
or

k 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

of
 fr

au
d.

Page 80



S
h

u
td

o
w

n
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
R

ev
ie

w
T

ra
in

er
s

T
ra

in
in

g
 P

la
n

W
kB

eg
 5

/1
2/

11
 1

2/
12

/2
01

1
 1

9/
12

/2
01

1
 2

6/
12

/2
01

1
 0

2/
01

/2
01

2
 0

9/
01

/2
01

2
 1

6/
01

/2
01

2
 2

3/
01

/2
01

2
 3

0/
01

/2
01

2
 0

6/
02

/2
01

2
 1

3/
02

/2
01

2
 2

7/
02

/2
01

2
 0

5/
03

/2
01

2
 1

2/
03

/2
01

2
 1

9/
03

/2
01

2
 2

6/
03

/2
01

2
 0

2/
04

/2
01

2
 0

9/
04

/2
01

2
 1

6/
04

/2
01

2
 2

3/
04

/2
01

2
 3

0/
04

/2
01

2
 0

7/
05

/2
01

2
 1

4/
05

/2
01

2
 2

1/
05

/2
01

2
 2

8/
05

/2
01

2
 0

4/
06

/2
01

2
 1

1/
06

/2
01

2
18

/0
6/

12
 2

5/
06

/2
01

2
02

/0
7/

12
 0

9/
07

/2
01

2
 1

6/
07

/2
01

2
 2

3/
07

/2
01

2
 3

0/
07

/2
01

2
 0

6/
08

/1
2

13
/0

8/
12

 2
0/

08
/1

2
27

/0
8/

12
 0

3/
09

/1
2

 1
0/

09
/1

2
 1

7/
09

/2
01

2
 2

4/
09

/1
2

 0
1/

10
/1

2
 0

8/
09

/1
2

 1
5/

10
/1

2
 2

2/
10

/1
2

 2
9/

10
/1

2
05

/1
1/

12
 1

2/
11

/1
2

 1
9/

11
/1

2
26

/1
1/

12
03

/1
2/

12
C

o
u

n
ci

l T
ax

K
im

 C
oo

k
N

ew
 S

ta
rt

er
s 

- 
G

ra
de

 C
-E

P
au

l D
ea

n
T

ra
ce

y 
B

ra
ck

st
on

e
H

B
 In

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 t

o
 N

ew
 C

la
im

s
C

hr
is

 A
ng

le
G

rp
 1

G
rp

1
G

rp
1

G
rp

1
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
S

te
ve

 D
ay

m
on

d
T

re
vo

r 
K

en
w

ar
d

G
rp

 2
G

rp
 2

G
rp

 2
G

rp
 2

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

D
eb

bi
e 

P
er

ry
G

rp
 3

G
rp

 3
G

rp
 3

G
rp

 3
G

rp
 3

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

G
rp

 4
G

rp
 4

G
rp

 4
G

rp
 4

G
rp

 4
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m

G
rp

 5
G

rp
 5

G
rp

 5
G

rp
 5

G
rp

 5
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m

G
rp

 6
G

rp
 6

G
rp

 6
G

rp
 6

G
rp

 6
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m

G
rp

 7
G

rp
 7

G
rp

 7
G

rp
 7

G
rp

 7
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m

G
rp

 8
G

rp
 8

G
rp

 8
G

rp
 8

G
rp

 8
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m

G
rp

 9
G

rp
 9

G
rp

 9
G

rp
 9

G
rp

 9
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m

G
rp

 1
0

G
rp

 1
0

G
rp

 1
0

G
rp

 1
0

G
rp

 1
0

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

G
rp

 1
1

G
rp

 1
1

G
rp

 1
1

G
rp

 1
1

G
rp

 1
1

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

T
ea

m
T

ea
m

B
A

C
S

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

K
ar

en
 H

ol
m

es
M

ic
ha

el
 D

oy
le

Ja
ne

 d
ay

Ja
m

ie
 C

un
ni

ng
ha

m
R

ec
o

ve
ry

 In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
P

au
l D

ea
n

C
ha

m
pi

on
s

L
yn

c 
T

el
ep

h
o

n
es

S
ar

ah
 Y

ar
dl

ey
G

ro
u

p
1

G
o

 li
ve

C
ha

m
el

eo
ns

G
o

 li
ve

G
ro

u
p

 3
G

o
 li

ve
F

ra
u

d
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 
&

 D
P

A
A

nn
 T

ho
rp

C
ap

it
a 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 M
o

d
u

le
S

ar
ah

 Y
ar

dl
ey

C
ha

m
pi

on
s

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

ax
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

ch
em

e
tb

c
S

ta
ff

 T
ra

in
in

g
 in

 n
ew

 s
ch

em
e

H
B

 In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 C
h

an
g

e 
o

f 
C

ir
cs

C
hr

is
T

B
C

S
te

ve
T

re
v

T
B

C
H

B
 C

o
m

p
le

x 
C

as
es

T
re

v
T

B
C

N
ei

l
S

te
ve

T
B

C
C

T
ax

 R
ec

o
ve

ry
 &

 C
O

A
's

P
au

l D
ea

n
T

B
C

K
im

 C
oo

k
T

B
C

T
ra

ns
iti

on
al

 p
ha

se
 in

 o
f n

ew
 s

ta
rt

er
s

A
ll 

st
af

f

T
el

ep
ho

ne
s 

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

in
to

 te
am

s

G
ra

de
 C

 -
 E

T
ra

in
in

g 
al

l s
ta

ff 
ov

er
 6

 w
ee

ks
 -

 h
al

f h
ou

r 
se

ss
io

ns

G
ra

de
 C

-E
C

h
am

p
io

n
s 

B
es

t 
S

ta
ff 

T
ra

in
in

g 
- 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 a
nd

 H
B

 O
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
C

he
ck

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
s 

on
 te

am
s

G
ra

de
 D

-E
 

A
ll 

S
ta

ff

A
ll 

st
af

f

G
ra

de
 D

-E

G
ra

de
 E

A
ll 

S
ta

ff

G
ro

u
p

 2

T
ra

in
in

g
 in

 t
ea

m
s 

- 
to

 b
e 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
G

o
 li

ve
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
fi

rm
ed

S
ta

ff 
br

ie
fin

gs

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD  
28 MARCH 2012 
 
TRACKING DECISIONS 
Grey = Completed 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 2011/12 DECISIONS 
 
Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

63 
(1) 

 
 
 
 

(2) 
 
 

(3) 
 
 

(4) 
 

Lord Mayoralty Briefing Paper 
a task and finish group is set up to look at the overall 
budget provision for the Lord Mayoralty service, the 
criteria for attending events and engagements and to 
undertake a review of how this had been working since 
the criteria had been introduced; 
Membership of the task and finish group will comprise 
Councillors James, Nicholson, Stark, Mrs Aspinall, Coker 
and McDonald; 
approval of the Project Initiation Document is delegated 
to the Lead Officer, in consultation with Chair and Vice-
Chair; 
additional information relating to the number invitations 
received for events out of the City, how many had been 
attended and how this compared to previous years be 
circulated to Members in writing after the meeting. 

14/12/11  
OSBM T&F 
Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lead Officer 
 
 
Democratic 
& Member  
Support 
Manager 

 
Task and Finish Group took place on 2 
March 2012.  Report submitted to 
OSMB on 28 March 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information circulated via e-mail on 
02/02/12. 
 

 

83 
 

(1) 

Scrutiny Performance 

a provisional meeting of the Board is used to informally 
consider the findings of the report, and to discuss 
proposals for the future operation/structure of scrutiny; 

01/02/12   
Meeting took take place on 14 February 
2012.  Proposals considered at OSMB 
on 29 February 2012, see minute 98 
below. 

 

(2) the Leader is recommended to review the timeline of 
the Forward Plan to enable more pre-decision scrutiny 
in light of Mr Russell’s findings and recommendations. 

  Chair wrote to Leader on 15/02/12, see 
also minute 87(1) below. 

 

A
genda Item

 11
P

age 83



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

84 
 
 

(1) 

Scrutiny of Budget Priorities and Corporate Plan 
2012 

the minutes of the meetings held on 11, 16 and 18 
January and the Budget Priorities and Corporate Plan 
2012 report, subject to the following changes – 

• R4 to be removed and attached to R55 so that 
the library related issues are covered by one 
recommendation – amended R55 to read 
“Libraries review to include consideration of 
other engagement work with the community and 
voluntary sector and to be made available for 
pre-decision scrutiny; 

• R8 to be deleted; 

• R14 to be amended to read “Cabinet assurance 
is sought that plans are in place to ensure a 
smooth and seamless transition for children in 
care to adult social care”; 

• R16 to be amended to read “Information to be 
provided into the impact of the adult social care 
transformation programme on the adult care 
sector”; 

• R17 – delete the word “sufficient” and replace 
with “appropriate and effective”; 

• R21 – “changes to health provision to the health 
workforce” be amended to read “changes to 
health provision on the health workforce”; 

01/02/12   
 
 
Report amended to take changes on 
board and submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration on 7 February 2012.  
Cabinet response to be considered at 
OSMB meeting on 28 March 2012. 
 

 

P
age 84



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(2) 

• the inclusion of an additional recommendation 
after R21 to read “A report is produced detailing 
the demographic impact of Plymouth’s ageing 
population”; 

• moving R38 to the ‘wrap up’ session at end of 
the report and delete the words “in 
Environmental Services”; 

• R39 – insert the words “over and above the 
grant allocation” immediately after “additional 
resources”; 

• the inclusion of an additional recommendation 
after R50 to read “A review is undertaken into 
the procurement, shared services and location 
risk assessment arrangements of the data 
centre”; 

• R59 to be amended to read “An appropriately 
funded plan be put in place to mitigate the likely 
impact on voter numbers of the proposed 
electoral reforms”; 

• the inclusion of an additional recommendation 
after R59 to read “Any decision to use the Life 
Centre for the count at the local elections is 
informed by cost and value for money 
implications”; 

that a review of the budget scrutiny process is added to 
the Board’s work programme for 2012/13. 

01/02/12   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Added to work programme. 

 

P
age 85



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

87 
(1) 

Forward Plan 
on behalf of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Board, the Chair writes to the Leader of the City 
Council reiterating Members’ concerns over the 
insertion of late items into the Forward Plan leaving little 
or no opportunity for scrutiny involvement; 
 

01/2/12   
 
Letter sent to the Leader on 15/02/12. 

 

(2) pre-decision scrutiny of the Library Service Review is 
added to the Customers and Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel; 

  Decision fed back to panel.  

(3) Cabinet is recommended to delay its decision in respect 
of the Adult Social Care Personal Budget Policy in order 
to allow for pre-decision scrutiny by the Health and 
Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel; 

  Cabinet agreed to defer the decision 
and referred item to Health and Adult 
Social Care OSP on 8 March 2012.   
Recommendations arising from that 
meeting are to be considered by 
Cabinet on 27 March 2012. 

 

(4) subject to (3) above, should pre-decision scrutiny not be 
facilitated, a cross-party call-in of the Cabinet decision 
would be supported; 

  This was not necessary in light of (3) 
above. 

 

(5) in conjunction with (2) above, the Constitutional Review 
Panel is recommended to look at the Forward Plan 
arrangements. 

  This item will be considered at the next 
meeting of the Constitutional Working 
Group. 

 

88 
 
 
 

(1) 

Recommendations 
Children & Young People OSP – Progress 
Update on Previous Tracking Resolutions 

that the Youth Service task and finish group is deferred 
to the next municipal year; 

01/02/12   
 
 
 
 
Decision fed back to panel. 

 

P
age 86



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

 
 
 

(2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(3) 
 
 

(4) 
 
 
 

(5) 
 
 
 
 

(6) 
 
 
 
 
 

(7) 

Growth & Prosperity OSP – Article 4 Direction 
for Houses in Multiple Occupation 

that the Cabinet Member for Planning, Strategic Housing 
and Economic Development, taking into account the 
consultation responses received, should confirm the 
Direction; 
 
Customers and Communities OSP – Task and 
Finish Group – Anti-Social Behaviour in 
Compton Ward 

that Cabinet be recommended to consider – 

the installation of lockable bollards at either end of the 
lane, to prevent general vehicle access; 

a general clean up of the area is undertaken, working in 
partnership with Plymouth Community Homes and 
residents; 

that Plymouth Community Homes are asked to work 
together with Plymouth City Council and community 
groups to identify a way forward for the use of the 
derelict garage site in Channel Park Avenue; 

to establish the boundaries of the properties in Carlton 
Close and to notify the land owners and outline their 
legal duties. 
 
Health and Adult Social Care OSP – Chair’s 
Urgent Business 

the appointment of Sue Kelly, member of the Local 
Involvement Network Stewardship Group, as a co-
opted member. 

01/02/12   
 
 
Decision fed back to panel. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendations submitted to 
Cabinet for consideration on 27 March 
2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Decision fed back to panel. 
 

 

P
age 87



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

90 
 

 
 

Task and Finish Group Reports / Updates 
Agreed that, with regard to the Youth Unemployment in 
Plymouth Task and Finish Group – 
 

01/02/12    

(1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(2) 

the following representatives be co-opted – 

• David Parlby, Chamber of Commerce 

• Ashley Beare, South West TUC and PABC 
Executive 

• Jacki Williams, Job Centre Plus 

the scope of the PID be expanded to include the age 
range of 16-24 year olds. 

  Approval fed back to the Growth and 
Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel. 

 

91 
 
 

Work Programmes 
 
Agreed as submitted, subject to removal of the following 
task and finish items – 

• Driving Speeds on the Hoe item from the 
Growth and Prosperity Work Programme; 

• Social Media from the Customers and 
Communities Work Programme. 

01/02/12   
 
Decisions fed back to respective panels. 

 

97 
 
 
 

(1) 

Task and Finish Group Report – Impact of the 
Restructure in Revenues and Benefits, Customer 
Services, Cashiers and Incomes and Creditors 
Agreed 
to amend recommendation R11 contained within the 
report so that it contains a footnote linking the 
recommendation to the recent Health and Adult Social 
Care Task and Finish Group on Safeguarding Vulnerable 
Adults; 

29/02/12   
 
 
 
Task and Finish Group report to be 
considered by Cabinet on 27 March 
2012. 

 

P
age 88



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

(2) that in light of (1) above and the number of abandoned 
calls, an additional recommendation is included in the 
Health and Adult Social Care Task and Finish Group 
report on Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults proposing 
installation of a dedicated phone line to enable 
customers to ring directly through to the Adult Social 
Care department; 
 

29/02/12  Recommendation fed back to Health 
and Adult Social Care OSP for inclusion 
in the report. 

 

(3) to recommend to Cabinet all of the recommendations 
contained within the report, subject to the amendment 
in (1) above, and the introduction of a hierarchy within 
the recommendations to reflect the most important 
being listed first; 
 

    

(4) with regard to (3) above, organisation of the hierarchy 
of the recommendations is delegated to Pete Aley, Lead 
Officer in consultation with Councillor James, Chair, 
Councillor Stark, Vice-Chair and Councillor Aspinall; 
 

    

(5) the report is amended so that minute 4.3 Site Visit 
Observations (1e) reads ‘the service had a high number 
of abandoned calls, in total 80 on the day of the site visit 
with a maximum call waiting time of 21 minutes, in the 
Adult Social Care / Proof of Concept Teams’; 
 

    

(6) to include an additional recommendation to Cabinet, 
that the circulation and implementation of the Action 
Plan be implemented with immediate effect; 
 

    

(7) the Action Plan is submitted to the next meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board on 28 March 
2012 for further scrutiny; 
 

  Agenda item for the meeting on 28 
March 2012. 

 

P
age 89



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

(8) that relevant Cabinet Members and Officers are invited 
to attend meetings  of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board when task and finish group reports 
are being discussed; 
 

29/02/12  Noted  

(9) to thank all the councillors and officers involved in the 
task and finish group. 
 

    

99 
(1) 

Delegated Authority  
Agreed – 
that in order to expedite the decision-making process 
outside of the normal business meeting process, 
approval of work programme related matters be 
delegated to the Board’s Lead Officer, in consultation 
with Chair, Vice-Chair and opposition lead member. 
Work programme related matters include, but are not 
limited to – 
 

• Project Initiation Documents / Work Programme 
Requests;  

• Task and Finish Group Reports;  
• Panel Recommendations;  
• Forward Plan items. 

29/02/12    

(2) any future scrutiny training should be discussed with all 
scrutiny chairs prior to training being arranged; 

 JS Information fed back to Judith Shore, 
Democratic and Member Support 
Manager, as person with overall 
responsibility for member training and 
development. 

 

(3) that in future scrutiny training sessions should be 
organised with more flexibility to allow members with 
other commitments the option to attend training 
sessions. 

  As above.  

P
age 90



Minute 
number 

Decision Date 
agreed 

Action by Progress Target 
date 

100 Minutes 
Agreed the minutes of 1 February 2012 subject to the 
amendment to minute 90, to include the following 
additional co-opted representatives – 
 

• Richard Smith – Plymouth Chamber of 
Commerce 

• Cherly Ward – Job Centre Plus 
• A further nominated representative from South 

West TUC and PABC Executive 

  Decision fed back to Growth and 
Prosperity OSP. 

 

 

P
age 91



P
age 92

T
his page is intentionally left blank



�

�


��������(������&*���%������(�
��������&�
������		�
&�%�
��*5�
��������(��������
5�
��������(����5���%	�����3�
��6�&(&�&�
�������(���

���!������� � ����"�����	�����-./-�

�


������������� ���!�����

1����(�������
��� �������
����6����������2����������2�2�
��������2
���
�4�7�
����
���
�����2�4� ������
��G���������/�������
��8��2���
�5��4�����������
�������
������
��
8��2���
�0������$�

���������#�,������ ���!���)�� �����
�����
�����������4�
������� ���������2�F�7����
��4�
��4��!�

��#��+�������� ���!���)��.��������	����

���������������!���� ��� ����)�

8��2��2�
��������2��
�4�7�
�#�

0��������2��2���4������2��2$�� ������
������'����
�)����

8����22�
������2�4#�

J��2
��������2���4��������'�

&����#���������������!� ��� ��$����� ���!����#�,��!��

����
� �����
������
$�


���#���!����������!� ��� ���������� ���!�����!���,���

 �����
������
�

��"��!��������!��3��7��
��'����+��������	���
��H�
�$�
��������
������� ������
�����(���2�
�$� ����������F�7����� �����
�������!�
�$� ����������
��4���� �����
�������!�
�

 ��
��
�4�
���2��(�������������8�����
�� �
�� �������)��#�	�*+��..-			�
�
���
�����������
����:�1(��������
������������
2#��
�������
�����������
�������
��
#�� ���2�)��(�

9�G��4���� ���
�����4�122�
2���
"����#������2$
��(�

&������
�$'�($�%��)��#��	�*+�!��	+,,��

Agenda Item 12Page 93



�

�

(�����(���7�
���*�
1���-./-9/2��

���!������� � ����"�����	�����-./-�

�


������������� ���!�����

)�������(��
������������4��'���
��4���'������
���������
�������
�����4���
�4�������2�
@���
������	��=�����4�����'�2�
��
���������2�����2����4��'��������������1������	��$����

���� ����� #�,�� ����  ���!���)� �  �����
� ���� 
��� ��������4�
���� ���  ���������� ����
0��(�2!�

��#��+�������� ���!���)��.��������	����

���������������!���� ��� ����)�

8��2��2�
��������2��
�4�7�
�#�

8�����
��������2�

8����22�
������2�4#�

)��� ����������2��
2�7�
��
���������2������������������������2�����2$�

&����#���������������!� ��� ��$����� ���!����#�,��!��

������5����
������

��'�
���������2�F�4'�
������	��=���


���#���!����������!� ��� ���������� ���!�����!���,���

������5����
������

��'�
���������2�F�4'�
������	��=���

��"��!��������!��3��7��
��'����+��������	���
��H��
�$�
��������
�������8������
�$� ��������������0��(�2�� �����
�������!�
�

 ��
��
�4�
���2��(�������������8�����
�� �
�� �������)��#�	�*+��..-			�
�
���
�����������
����:�1(��������
������������
2#��
�������
�����������
�������
��
#��1��
�����
��9�@�����1�����
��
��������2!���
"����#�����
�$���
��&������
�$'�($�%��)��#�	�*+���	*,���

Page 94



�

�

���&�%����	����'�&��	�����(&
1����
�-./-�3�-./:��

���!������� � ����"�����	�����-./-�

�


������������� ���!�����

)�����2�4�����4������(��
���G��2��'�8�����	���:��	�*�7��������2�4��2������%������2��'�

����2��2�
�����2�2����2
��
�'������2��'���
�(�
��
��
����
����
�2�
��4���(����'�
���2����4�
(�2������4�������
��2����
��� �
����4� ������$�
�
���������	
�	����	
���
������������	�	��������������������������������	
	���	
��������������	
	����

���������#�,������ ���!���)�� �
�� �������� �����
�������#� �������������!�

��#��+�������� ���!���)���.�1������	����

���������������!���� ��� ����)�

8��2��2�
��������2��
�4�7�
�#�

1����2��
�
����4���
����
���G��2��'�8����7�2�4�(�����4������
���G��2��'��
��
�'��
 ���������9�7��%2���2���4��22����
�4�
�2%���4�����2��'����29�7�������2���4���7�4�����'��
������
�����'�������4�%���2
�%����4�����(��(����
�����
2�4�(�������
$��
)��2�4���
�4�
����4�
���G��2��'�8���;2����2���4�%�����C��
�(�29���4�7�2������(�4���� �����
�
����+���(�������	�������7�4���2
�%����4�����4�����������2��
�
���9�4���
�����������
�4�
�����������$�
)���@��7
����4�8��2����
���(��(��7���4�����
����8�������2���2����������2��
�4����
���
4���
�����$�
)��� ������ 4���
� ����� 7���� ��� 2����

�4� 
��  �����
� ��� �*� ������ �	��� 
�� ��%�� ��
��������4�
����
��
��� �
�� ������$��

8����22�
������2�4#�

)������������4��
����2
�%����4��2���(���������'�'�4�
����'�����2��
�
���2���4��/�2
��'�
���%2�7�
��'����2���4����
���2���2$�
D����(���2�4���������������2��
�
�������
��9�����7��2�
����4���4�����4������2�7�
��
���2��
�
����6��2
��������2��(���������
���������2���4����2��'�������2$�
)�������2���������2�4����������22���(���'�����2��'����
����
��������������
���G��2��'�8����
��4������
���
��2�
��������
$��

&����#���������������!� ��� ��$����� ���!����#�,��!��

����
�G��2��'�8�����	���H��	�*�
 �����
���������4�
��������*��������	���


���#���!����������!� ��� ���������� ���!�����!���,���

����
�G��2��'�8�����	���H��	�*�

��"��!��������!��3��7��
��'��������������	���
��H�
�$�
���122�2
��
������
��������
��
�'���G��2��'�
�$� ��������������� �����
�������!�
�

 ��
��
�4�
���2��(�������������8�����
�� �
�� �������)��#�	�*+��..-			�
���
�����������
����:�1(��������
������������
2#��
�������
�����������
�������
��
#�����%� ��
��9�G��2��'��
��
�'����4���(�������
�����'����
"����#�����%$���
��&������
�$'�($�%��)��#�	�*+���	*+-��

Page 95



�

���&�%����	����'�&��	��������
�7����	�
�����	����'��
(�*	&((&�
��������
���&���
��

�(����
���������&�
����
��

���!������� � ����"�����	�����-./-�

�


������������� ���!�����

)��2��%������(�������
���2����22�������
�����������4���4����
���1����1�
����8����
��
���
�����
��������
�
�9������4��'��������
�������
�����(�2�4����H2����22����(��2�������
���1����
1�
����8��������
��������2�2�������2��
�
���$�
�
���������	
�	����	
���
������������	�	��������������������������������	
	���	
��������������	
	����

���������#�,������ ���!���)�� �
�� �������� �����
�������#� �������������!�

��#��+�������� ���!���)��F�
7�������
�����	�����4����1�'�2
��	����

���������������!���� ��� ����)�

8��2��2�
��������2��
�4�7�
�#�

8�����9����(�
����4�
���4H2��
�����'���2�
���2���4�'����2�
8�����
���G��G�2��
��2�)��2
�
0������������
�$����4��7���2���4���2���22�2�������4��'������2��
�
�(��'����2!�
3�(�2
�����4�4�(�������
���
���2
2�
�
����2
�%����4���'����2$�

8����22�
������2�4#�

5��'��������2��
�
������
��429������4��'�2
�
�
������
���29���������4�����7�
��
���
�
�
����
���� ������
��3�(��(����
���4�2
�
�
������6�������
2$�

&����#���������������!� ��� ��$����� ���!����#�,��!��

1������2��
�
���2���4��(�4�������2�������
2�����
��'�
��
���1����1�
����8����
��4�
��


���#���!����������!� ��� ���������� ���!�����!���,���

5����
�
�� �����
�
M� ��������4�?����
���118�:�4������
2���4����2��
�
������2���2�2� ����
��'� 
�������

2
�'�����
�������H�������
���������22�
M� 0��� �����
��
�'��
M� 5���(��
�0�����4��
�����(�4�������2�������
2�����2��'9����������
9���
���9�(�2�
���

�������9�
���2���
9�'�����2����9�����
�'���
�!�
M� 0�������(�������
��������
M� 8�����
��3����2
���
�������42�122�22���
�
M� 0�����)���2���
�8������
M� 0�����G��2��'��
��
�'��
M� 0�����"���������
��
�'��

��"��!��������!��3��7��
��'�����+������	���
��H�
�$�
��������
�������8�����
�$� ��������������� �����
�������!�

 ��
��
�4�
���2��(�������������8�����
�� �
�� �������)��#�	�*+��..-			�
���
�����������
����:�1(��������
������������
2#��
�������
�����������
�������
��
#��
���
����F���9�G��4������(�������
�8������'���
"����#��C���
���$����&������
�$'�($�%��)��#�	�*+���	,�+��

Page 96



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 1 of 13 

SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE 
ADULTS 
Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel Task and Finish Group 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13Page 97



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 2 of 13 

CONTENTS 
 
1. Introduction 
 
2. Executive Summary 
 
3. Scrutiny Approach 
 
4. Key Issues Arising from the Evidence 
 
5. Findings 
 
6. Recommendations   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 3 of 13 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 
The Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel scrutinises matters relating to 
health and public health and hears the views of local residents, with a view to improving health 
services, reducing health inequalities and improving the health of local residents. The panel also 
scrutinises the impact of the Council’s own services and of key partnerships on the health of its 
population.  
 
Following the debate at the Council meeting of 20 June 2011 of the Motion on Notice No. 2 
(11/12) regarding the care of vulnerable adults, the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel agreed to commence a Task and Finish Group investigation into reporting 
processes for whistle-blowers and those wishing to raise adult safeguarding alerts. 
 
The Council is required to take account of the recommendations contained within this report 
when making its decisions with regard to safeguarding vulnerable adults.  
 
I would like to extend thanks to the members of the Health and Adult Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel for their commitment in conducting this review. I would also like to 
thank the witnesses who represented the public, private and community and voluntary sectors 
who took part in the review process. 
 
 

  Councillor Sue McDonald, Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 4 of 13 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

The ‘No Secrets’ guidelines issued by the Department of Health in 2000, recommended the 
establishment of multi-agency partnerships to co-ordinate the safeguarding of vulnerable adults 
across agencies. Although these do not provide statutory powers, they are recognised as strong 
guidance, and form the main basis for judicial determination of adult safeguarding matters. They 
have helped to drive forward the safeguarding adults’ agenda. In particular they have brought 
together the main stakeholders and have helped to improve co-ordination, policy, practices and 
data gathering.  

 
Abuse is defined in ‘No Secrets’ as a violation of an individual’s human or civil rights by any other 
person or persons. Abuse may consist of a single act or repeated acts. It may be physical, verbal or 
psychological, an act of neglect or an omission to act, or it may occur when a vulnerable person is 
persuaded to enter into a financial or sexual transaction to which he or she has not consented, or 
cannot consent. It may also occur through deliberate targeting or grooming of vulnerable people 
and may be carried out by individuals or groups of individuals. Abuse can occur in any relationship 
and may result in significant harm to, or exploitation of, the person subjected to it.  
 
Abuse may occur in any setting for example where a vulnerable person:  
 

 Lives alone, with a relative, or other(s);  
 Attends nursing, residential or day care settings;  
 Is in hospital or custodial situations;  
 Is receiving support services in their own home; 
 Is in other places previously assumed safe;  
 Is in a public place;  
 Is in education, training or a work place setting.  

 
An individual, a group or an organisation may perpetrate abuse. Most often the perpetrator is 
someone who is known to the vulnerable person, such as a partner, family members, a neighbour, 
care provider or another service user.  

It is important to recognise that with an ageing population, health and social care agencies, 
individuals, carers and the voluntary sector will need to work together to prevent abuse, especially 
in light of new initiatives such as personalisation and direct payments. Raising awareness and 
protecting vulnerable adults from abuse will be vital as services adapt to the needs of the 6,700 
people who are in receipt of Adult Social Care funded services in the City. 
 
During the course of the review members met with a number of witnesses from across the care 
sector, the information provided by the witnesses has provided the basis for the recommendations 
within this report.  
 
Members of the group expressed frustration at being unable to meet with service users and those 
who had experienced the safeguarding process.  Members of the group therefore expect the issue 
of safeguarding to remain under review by the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel. 
 
 
 
 

Page 100



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 5 of 13 

3. SCRUTINY APPROACH 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approved in principle on 21 September 2011, the 
establishment of a Task and Finish Group to review the safeguarding adults policies and 
procedures with membership drawn from the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel. 
 
3.1 Task and Finish Group Objectives 
 
The group was asked to: 
 

 Consider guidance and procedures and to be assured that care services are protecting 
vulnerable adults in a range of care settings; 

 Understand the triggers for raising an alert; 
 Examine multi-agency alerting procedures for reporting alleged cases; 
 Ascertain the follow up procedures once an alert has been raised; 
 Ascertain how vulnerable adults are treated once an alert has been raised; 
 Ascertain what support is available to the alerter, particularly employees in a range of care 

settings; 
 Review the impact of recent care quality commission policy changes; 
 Review what role commissioning and contract monitoring of services has in safeguarding 

adults; 
 Raise awareness of safeguarding processes for a range of stakeholders;  
 Review and assess the adequacy of policies relating to the protection of whistleblowers; 
 Review and assess the adequacy of the current unannounced inspections; 

 
The issue of safeguarding vulnerable adults and how to make a safeguarding alert had been 
identified by members as a key issue through activity in their wards. Members felt strongly that the 
Council should not be seen to be failing in its duty to provide an appropriate mechanism for 
safeguarding issues to be raised and by conducting a task and finish group felt they would be able 
to make recommendations, which would provide sufficient awareness of safeguarding issues 
throughout partner agencies and across the wider public.  
 
3.2 Task and Finish Group Membership 
 
The Task and Finish Group had cross party membership comprising the following Councillors – 
 

 Councillor McDonald (Chair) 
 Councillor Penberthy 
 Councillor Dr. David Salter 
 Councillor Mrs Bragg 
 Councillor Browne 
 Councillor Tuffin 

 
For the purposes of the review, the Task and Finish Group was supported by - 
 

 Giles Perritt and Claire Oatway - Policy, Performance and Partnerships  
 Ross Jago, Democratic Support Officer 

 
 
 

Page 101



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 6 of 13 

3.3 Task and Finish Group Methodology 
 
The Task and Finish Group convened over three days on 6 December 2011, 10 January 2012 and 
the 22 February 2012 to consider evidence and hear from witnesses, review background 
information and undertake observations by way of a visit. 
 
Witnesses invited: 
 

 Kerrie Todd, Safeguarding Adults Manager, Plymouth City Council 
 Pauline Luxton, Plymouth Age Concern 
 Detective Constable Karen Anderson, Devon and Cornwall Police Safeguarding Team 
 Natalie Self, Care time Services (Domiciliary Care Provider) 
 Debbie Butcher, Commissioning Manager, Plymouth City Council 
 Lesley Browne, Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
 Maria Mills, Oasis Project 
 Michelle Thomas and Dawn Slater, Plymouth Community Healthcare 

 
In order to assist with their deliberations members of the Task and Finish Group were provided 
with the following background material and documentation: 
 

 Project Initiation Document 
 Raising a concern with CQC: A quick guide to health and care staff about whistle blowing 
 CQC Enforcement Policy 
 CQC Safeguarding Protocol  
 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults – Annual Report April 2010 – March 2011 
 Safeguarding Adults – Plymouth’s multi agency policy and procedures for Safeguarding 
Adults: A complete working guide 

 
Members of the group also visited a care home where they met a vulnerable service user who had 
experience of the Safeguarding Procedure.  
  
4. KEY ISSUES ARISING FROM THE EVIDENCE 

The group heard from a number of witnesses from across the public, private and voluntary care 
sector. The following is a summary of the evidence received by the group. 

 
4. 1Plymouth City Council, Safeguarding Adults Manager 
 
Kerrie Todd, Safeguarding Adults Manager, provided the group with an overview of the policies 
and procedures for making and dealing with a safeguarding alert. Kerrie advised the group that –  
 

(a) a document detailing all of the policies and procedures within the city had been produced 
and provided comprehensive guidance for all providers and detailed what processes would 
be undertaken should an alert be raised; 

 
(b) the guidance and procedures were reviewed and updated every year; 

 
(c) all anonymous alerts would be assessed and investigated but because of their nature it was 

impossible for anonymous alerters to receive feedback;  
 

(d) the Safeguarding Manager outlined five stages to the alert procedure, detailed in the “Multi 
agency policy and procedures for Safeguarding Adults a complete working guide”; 

Page 102



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 7 of 13 

 
i. Alert – The safeguarding team would evaluate the risk and make a triage decision 

on what action was required immediately. A referral would be made to Adult Social 
Care (ASC) within one working day. 

ii. Referral received – Once the referral was received by ASC an evaluation of risk 
would take place. ASC would consider whether the referral is about a person who 
is or could be an adult at risk under the definition of “No Secrets”. This initial 
evaluation would take place on the day the referral was received. 

iii. Gather information – An intelligence gathering exercise would take place where 
information from all statutory agencies about the individual would be gathered. The 
exercise may identify further risks to the individual and the risk assessment would 
be adjusted to reflect the new information. 

iv. Decision – Information gathered would be used to determine whether abuse 
could be ruled out. If risk of abuse was identified interim protection plans would be 
put in place and the police would decide whether a criminal investigation would be 
required. If abuse could be ruled out then the case would be referred for 
alternative action / services. 

v. Strategy Meeting – The risk would be further evaluated at a strategy meeting 
where an investigation would also be planned. Any changes or extension to interim 
protection plans would take place and the responsible manager would feed back to 
the alerter. If the adult at risk was identified as lacking mental capacity the 
Independent Mental Capacity Advocate would be involved. Following the strategy 
meeting an action plan would be produced and sent within 24 hours. 

 
(e) when an alert was raised there was an immediate triage assessment which would take 

into account current knowledge of the home, whether there had there been any recent 
concerns and assess whether the manager was capable. An audit would also be undertaken 
to look for triggers such as whether service users’ behaviour was affected when particular 
members of staff were on duty. If a suspect was identified as an abuser that person or 
persons would be suspended, police would be contacted, conduct an investigation and pass 
evidence to the Crown Prosecution Service who would decide whether to prosecute; 

 
(f) free alerter training was offered to all care homes; it was a full day and was not an e-

learning package. Attendees discussed value and belief systems and brave, courageous steps 
taken by those who report safeguarding issues when their jobs were on the line.  In 2010-
11 791 people attended the full day alerters training and 36 received half day refresher 
training.  In 2011-12 to date 636 people have received full day alerters training with 170 
receiving a half day refresher, there would be a further 100 places available for alerters 
training by year end. 

 
(g) it was difficult to embed the procedures in care settings not used by the local authority. 

Local Authorities outside Plymouth commissioned care settings not used by Plymouth City 
Council (PCC) but PCC had responsibility for safeguarding those residents. It was difficult 
to assure safeguarding in these settings as the PCC did not send clients to those homes;  

 
(h) personal budgets were beyond the reach of the safeguarding team, the team did however 

provide guidance on safeguards, criminal record bureau (CRB) checks and alerters training. 
However if service users did not want to insist on CRBs or train their staff there is no legal 
recourse, although PCC remained responsible for safeguarding issues. 

 
 
 
 

Page 103



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 8 of 13 

4.2 Plymouth Age Concern 
 
The group heard from Pauline Luxton of Plymouth Age Concern who advised the group that – 
 

(a) day guests were referred to the day service through Adult Social Care, through self 
referrals or family referrals. Some guests were not in receipt of social care services; 

 
(b) Plymouth Age Concern had encountered many instances of financial abuse by clients own 

families, for example Plymouth Age Concern were aware of clients who were charged by 
their own family for the collection of pensions, shopping and housework;  

 
(c) Plymouth Age Concern provided informal contact away from social services and many 

clients felt more comfortable talking to workers at the service rather then social services;  
 

(d) all staff at the day centre had received the free alerter training provided by the PCC and 
although the day centre was not officially regulated but there were regular visits by social 
care commissioners; 

 
(e) Plymouth Age Concern worked closely with the Citizens Advice Bureau and the Police to 

provide advice on a variety of issues;  
 

(f) Plymouth Age Concern had always received feedback on the safeguarding alerts they had 
raised;  

 
(g) Pauline was confident that if Plymouth Age Concern employees and volunteers had a 

safeguarding concern they were aware of the policy and procedures and would alert the 
safeguarding team via the published route. 

 
4.3 Devon and Cornwall Police 
 
Detective Constable Karen Anderson of Devon and Cornwall Police provided evidence to the 
group and reported that – 
 

(a) the Safeguarding Team at Devon and Cornwall police worked within the Public Protection 
Unit. It was made up of three Detective Constables and a Detective Sergeant who were 
responsible for safeguarding alerts that had a criminal aspect; 

 
(b) generally cases that were accepted by the team focused on professionals who had abused, 

although the team also took on cases of family and domestic abuse where workloads 
allowed;  

 
(c) Plymouth was the first area in the region to have identified officers for this kind of work 

and there were 12 officers force wide;  
 

(d) alerters would remain anonymous for as long as possible It was often the case that initially 
an alerter would be reluctant to talk to the Police and did not wish to progress with 
criminal proceedings. Despite this reluctance the Police had made a number of successful 
prosecutions; 

 
(e) the personalisation agenda was a great opportunity for people to have control over their 

own care but it was important that there was a safe place a service user could go to get 
independent advice this would require improved advocacy across the City as it was 

Page 104



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 9 of 13 

important that service users were aware of all of the routes available to them to make 
themselves safe.  

 
4.4 Caretime Services 
 
The group heard from Natalie Self, Deputy Manager of Caretime Services, a company 
commissioned by the local authority to provide domiciliary care. Natalie advised the group that –  
 

(a) Caretime Services employed 230 full time equivalent staff, it was mandatory that staff 
undertook a number of training sessions and courses before commencing employment;  

 
(b) if a service user, friend or family member raised a safeguarding concern the deputy 

manager would look at the history of the user and direct a field coordinator to make 
contact with the service user and gain further information on the concern. Spot checks 
also highlighted issues, these were mainly in reference to quality of care;  

 
(c) Caretime Services staff found that the alerter’s training was very useful, particularly as the 

training highlighted other issues then just physical abuse;   
 

(d) if a safeguarding issue was raised it was reported to the Care Quality Commission and 
PCC Safeguarding Adults Team; 

 
(e) Natalie was confident that the safeguarding processes were well embedded in the 

organisations and that staff were confident that they would be supported when raising a 
safeguarding concern. 

 
4.5 Adult Social Care, Plymouth City Council 
 
The group heard from Debbie Butcher, Commissioning Manager.  Debbie reported that – 
 

(a) the department commissioned over 200 contracts in regulated services for adult social 
care. These contracts included over 150 care homes and several domiciliary care 
providers. The level of domiciliary care provided equated to 10,000 care hours a week 
distributed between four block providers; 

 
(b) commissioners used a tendering process within which safeguarding was a top priority. 100 

per cent of employees in commissioned services would be expected to attend the alerters 
training and all services used by PCC were registered with the Care Quality Commission; 

 
(c) social workers monitored and provided the department with information on how 

appropriate care services were and raised any safeguarding concerns and a review team 
was in place to monitor the quality of care home settings and due to the number of 
safeguarding alerts which were raised, the department was confident that staff knew the 
process for making an alert; 

 
(d) Personal Assistants (PAs) employed via direct payments were subject to induction 

standards which must be achieved before employment. A separate organisation delivered 
training for PAs and Alerters Training was a major component; 

 
(e) personal budget holders have advice from social workers during the development of the 

personal budget. If there was safeguarding issues there were processes in place so that 
Adult Social Care could retain control of the budget. 

Page 105



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 10 of 13 

 
4.6 Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
 
The group heard from Lesley Browne, Regional Manager of CQC who reported that –  
 

(a) a team of 13 inspectors covered Torbay, Devon and Plymouth and inspected a mix of 
services the CQC conducted two types of reviews, responsive and scheduled; 

 
(b) the CQC reported on compliance or non-compliance of the care setting to regulations but 

did not inspect the quality of care; 
 

(c) the CQC were involved in safeguarding strategy meetings and held regular meetings with 
commissioners from across the sector in Plymouth. 

 
4.7 The Oasis Project (micro provider) 
 
The group heard from Maria Mills from the Oasis Project. The Oasis project is based within the 
Crown Centre in the Stonehouse area of Plymouth which provided a number of services to 
vulnerable adults. Maria advised the group that the project had dealt with a number of vulnerable 
people which had led the project to contact social services.  Workers at the project had 
experienced different response times from Adult Social Care which varied from very quick 
response to very slow.  
 
The project had very recently received policies and procedures, preceding the information being 
received the project had not been aware of the safeguarding alerts process, who to call if they 
needed to make an alert or that alerters training was available free to voluntary and community 
groups. 
 
4.8 NHS Devon, Plymouth and Torbay Primary Care Trust Cluster 
 
The group heard from Carol Green, NHS Commissioner for continuing Healthcare Manager, NHS 
Devon, Plymouth and Torbay Cluster.  It was reported to the group that – 
 

(a) Carol was responsible for commissioning the continuing care process and all contracts had 
safeguarding clauses built within them which were written by the safeguarding manager 
within the cluster; 

 
(b) Nursing homes across the city were reviewed by clinicians on a regular basis and worked 

closely with the Local Authority should any alerts be raised; 
 

(c) safeguarding was embedded within the services contracted by the Commissioner and as a 
result a number of alerts were received on a weekly basis. Alerts often related to poor 
practice and quality of service. The threshold between abuse, neglect and poor practice 
were clear;  

 
(d) Safeguarding policies within the city were clear and worked and Carol was confident that 

the safeguarding processes in place were understood and staff knew how to raise an alert; 
 

(e) in the last two years two care homes had been closed and there were currently three 
nursing homes which had placements suspended. Commissioners were able to take robust 
action to tackle care settings which risked the safety of clients. 

 

Page 106



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 11 of 13 

4.9 Plymouth Community Healthcare 
 
The group heard from Michelle Thomas and Dawn Slater from Plymouth Community Healthcare 
who reported that –  
 

(a) Plymouth Community Healthcare employed 2,100 staff and the changes in the healthcare 
system and the creation of the community interest company had provided the opportunity 
to deliver services in a different way; 

 
(b) All staff were scheduled to receive alerters training and compliance currently stood at 

100% for practitioners. Plymouth Community Healthcare followed the multi agency 
safeguarding procedure and it was felt that the policy was well embedded in the 
organization; 

 
(c) named adult protection leads provided support to those who raised alerts and adult 

protection leads worked within localities. 
 
4.10 Visit to User  
 
Two councillors visited a care home and met with a service user who had experience of the 
safeguarding procedure. The councillors reported back the group and the information received 
help to inform the findings and recommendations made by the group.   
 
4.11 Other Witnesses 
 
The group had booked a number of other witnesses to talk about their experience of the 
safeguarding process and whistle blowing. It had not been possible for the witnesses to attend and 
the requirement to provide this report before the end of the municipal year had not facilitated 
further meetings.  
 
5. FINDINGS 
 
In reviewing the evidence and analysing all of the data provided the group identified the following 
points of concern which included: 
 
5.1 Training 
 
A common theme across all sectors dealing with the care was the availability of free safeguarding 
training provided by the local authority.  Members were informed that practitioners who had 
experienced the training found it informative and useful.  However, members expressed concern 
that there was little knowledge of the availability of free training outside of the professional care 
system. In particular the voluntary and community sector who provided a large number of services 
to vulnerable adults were not benefiting from a valuable resource which was available free of 
charge. 
 
Recommendations – R1, R2, R6. 
 
5.2 Communication 
 
The overriding objective for the Task and Finish group was to understand the level of awareness 
of the safeguarding process, not only within care providers and commissioners but also the wider 
community. 
 

Page 107



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 12 of 13 

It was highlighted that there was much more work to be done in order to convey the safeguarding 
message to the general public.  Highlighted was the need for messages to be clear and consistent 
with clear lines of communication and access for those who wished to make a safeguarding alert.  
 
Considered of upmost importance was the need for alerters to feel supported and identities 
protected where appropriate, the group felt that whistle blowers in particular needed to feel that, 
at least in the early stages of an alert, their anonymity was protected.  
 
Recommendations –  R1, R2, R3, R4, R5, R6, R7. 
 
5.3 Other Findings  
 
Members felt that there was not adequate oversight of the safeguarding process. Whilst aware 
that there was an Adults Safeguarding Board in operation it was felt  that the Health and Adult 
Social Care overview and Scrutiny Committee could play a role in ensuring that the issue is 
monitored by a committee which had a statutory footing and could make recommendations to 
which the Local Authority and Health services must pay regard. 
 
Recommendations – R8, R9, R10, R11. 
 
6. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The task and finish group recommends to Cabinet that - 
 

R1 all councillors take up the role of corporate carers, that key safeguarding adult messages 
are communicated during the councillor induction process and alerters training is made 
available to elected members. 

R2 all neighbourhood liaison officers should be offered alerters training and information 
regarding the alerter’s process should be provided at all neighbourhood meetings. 

 
The task and finish group recommends to Cabinet member for Health and Adult Social Care  
that - 
 
R3 adequate resources are made available to the Safeguarding Adults Manager, so that the 

key safeguarding messages can be brought together in a communications plan and are 
received and understood by the general public. 

R4 services commissioned by the Council should have it made explicit within contracts that 
safeguarding publications are made available to all clients and their carers, the 
information provided should include a clear route for reporting alerts and provide 
information on the protection of anonymity. 

R5 subject to changes to advocacy proposed in the Health and Social Care Bill, Adult Social 
Care will commission improved independent advocacy across the city which is 
underpinned by consideration of safeguarding issues. The Assistant Director of Joint 
Commissioning and Adult Social Care will report to the Health and Adult Social Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel during the development of the services. 

 
The task and finish group recommends to the Safeguarding Adult Manager that – 
 
R6 that ‘Churches Together’ and the ‘Senior Citizens Forum’ along with other voluntary 

and community sector organisations, are offered the free alerters training and provided 
with clear information on the safeguarding process including how alerter’s anonymity  
can be protected if required. 

Page 108



SAFEGUARDING VULNERABLE ADULTS Page 13 of 13 

 
The task and finish group recommends to the Cabinet Member for Customer Services - 
 
R7 that when calling the Council’s switchboard alerters should be offered an automated 

option to be transferred directly to the safeguarding team. 
 
The task and finish group recommends to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board that – 
 
R8 safeguarding vulnerable adults should remain as a standing item on the Health and Adult 

Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel and the panel should receive regular reports 
from the chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board and suggest that regular reports to 
include a regular update on numbers and types of safeguarding alerts. 

R9  the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel receive a comprehensive 
report on safeguarding issues are addressed in the new personalised system and to 
assure the panel that personal budget holders are fully protected at a future meeting of 
the panel. 

R10 at a future meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel a 
report is provided on how safeguarding issues will be addressed in the new personal 
budget model. 

R11 the Local Involvement Network and, subject to the passage of the Health and Social 
Care Bill, Local Healthwatch are strongly compelled to use the powers given to them to 
visit care homes, make regular contacts with users and provide a regular  report on 
their activities  to the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 

R12 A further review is carried out by the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny panel in the next municipal year to review the impact of recommendations, this 
review would include meetings with service users. 

 
At the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board meeting of the 29 February 2012 it was agreed 
that the following recommendation be added to the report –  
 
R13 to recommend to the Cabinet Member for Customer Services that a dedicated 

telephone line is provided for Adult Social Care and  ublicised accordingly. 
 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD – 28 MARCH 2012 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Date/Min 
Number 

Resolution / Recommendation Explanation (if required) 

Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Minute 78 
5/3/12 
 

Work Programme 
Agreed that –  
approval be sought from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board to 
include on the Growth and Prosperity OSP work programme for 2012/13 
the ‘relationship of Plymouth Community Homes with ward Councillors’ 
 

 

Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Minute 76 
01/03/12 
 
 

Work Programme 
Recommended to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board that the 
following items be included on the Children and Young People OSP work 
programme: 
 
• Free schools; 
• Joint Commissioning (transition into adulthood); 
• Children and Young People’s Trust; 
• Buy Back of services and consequences; 
• Child Poverty Plan. 
 

 

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Minute 69(2) 
7/3/12 
 
 
 

Minutes 

Agreed to recommend to the Management Board that the constitution is 
amended to allow minutes to be considered at the start of the meeting. 

 

 

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 111



P
age 112

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2011/12 

 

Work programme 
 J J A S O N D J F M A 

 

Policies 

Sex Establishment Policy  18          

Culture, Sport and Leisure 

Plymouth Life Centre and Leisure Related 
Project Programme including Leisure 
Management Contract (Staff Transfer), Equality 
of Accessibility, Pricing Structure 

 18  12  21  23  12  

Library Modernisation            

Customer Services 

Universal Credits          12  

Supporting People            

Safer Communities 

Locality Working (Update)            

Police and Crime Commissioner/Panels 
(Update)            

Strategic Framework for Information and 
Advice Services Framework     24       

Serious Acquisitive Crime Figures     24     12  

Reporting of Police Authority Meetings (Chief 
Constable’s Report)    12  21  23  12  

Localities and Neighbourhood Working 
Review 2012 

(referred to the Panel from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board 27 July 2011) 

           

Agenda Item 15Page 113



 
 

Work programme 
 J J A S O N D J F M A 

Review into role of Community Infrastructure 
and Community Anchor 

(referred to the Panel from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board 27 July 2011) 

         12  

Review of Communications Methods around 
Neighbourhood Working 

(referred to the Panel from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board 27 July 2011) 

         12  

Task and Finish Group 

Councillor Call for Action – Anti Social 
Behaviour in Compton Vale       28      

Social Media  

(removed by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board on 1 February 2012 

           

Other 

Bi Annual Scrutiny Reports 
   

 
 

21 
    

12 
 

Appeal Against Council’s Response to Petition 
 

   
12 

 
 

     

Joint Finance and Performance Monitoring  
   

 
 
 21 

  
23 

  
12 

 

City and Council Priorities 

Reduce Inequalities 
   

 
 

 
   

 
  

Value for Communities  
   

 
 

 
     

 
* This/These items appear on the Work Programme for the first time. 

Page 114



 

 

 
Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2011/12 
 

 
 Topics  

 

 
J 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

Commissioning, Policy and 
Performance 

            

Performance and Budget 
- Delivering growth 
- Raising Aspiration 
- Reducing Inequalities 
- Value for Communities 

 14   13   5  1   

Learner and Family 
Support 

            

Hospital School (Review July 
2011) 

   8         

School Transport (under 
regular review) 

       5     

Locality Review        5     

Lifelong Learning             

Commission on School 
Libraries (Written Report) 

   8         

Primary School Attainment  
(Written Report) 

       5     

Work Experience  14           

Adult Learning             

Children’s Social Care             

Independent Foster Placement 
Costings/Recruitment of Foster 
Carers (Under regular review) 

     10       

Adoption Inspection    8         

Children’s Health 
 

            

Child Poverty      10       

Page 115



 

 

 
 

 
Key: 

 
 

 
 Topics  

 

 
J 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

Task and Finish Groups             

Young Carers Task and Finish 
Group – review of 
recommendations (Sept 2011) 

   8         

Apprenticeships (New Year)             

Children’s Mental Health to inc 
Emotional Wellbeing and 
Mental Health Strategy and  
Emotional Health of Children 

    11 & 12   5     

Youth Service #             

Updates             

Policy Updates/Legislative 
Changes 

 14  8  10  5  1   

Quarterly Scrutiny Reports 
 

         1   

Update from Children and 
Young People’s Trust 

 14  8  10  5     

Update from Corporate 
Parenting Group 

     10    1   

Update from Local Safeguarding 
Children’s Board 

 14  8    5     

Update from relevant LSP 
Theme Groups 

 14    10    1   

Strategies and Plans 
 

            

Children and Young People’s 
Plan (Action Plan) (July 2011) 

    13        

Youth Justice Action Plan 
(Review July 2011) 

     10       

Training and Development             

Development Session for panel 
members 

            

New Item = # 

Page 116



Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny 

Work Programme 2011/12 

 

Work programme 
 J J A S O N D J F M A 

            

Growth & Regeneration             

Departmental verbal updates (as required)            

Connectivity (road/rail/digital)  as part of 
Growth Report in September 2011 
 

   5        

Written update on Government Policy 
changes  11  5 17 14  9  5  

Localism Bill (impact on 
planning/transport/housing)        9  5  

GOSW and SWRDA exit strategy     17       

Local Economic Partnerships and Growth 
Governance    5        

Strategic Housing            

Local housing allowance and its impact on 
private sector housing and homelessness 
(briefing paper) 

 

         5  

Plymouth Community Homes – progress 
report on delivery of transfer 
promises.(GPOSP host presentation to all 
members of the council) 

 11        5  

Private sector Housing Stock Condition and 
Assistance Policy (briefing paper)          5  

Plymouth Housing Plan (as part of 
consultation) (presentation)        9    

Article 4 HMO        9    

Economic Development            

Page 117



 
 

Work programme 
 J J A S O N D J F M A 

Inward investment Status report (briefing 
report and presentation)    5        

Job Creation Status report (briefing paper and 
presentation)    5        

Worklessness Update (briefing paper and 
presentation) 

 

   5        

Visitor Plan (briefing report)     17       

Waterfront BID      17     5  

City Centre BID Key issues/challenges 
(presentation)        9    

Transport & Highways            

Highways Maintenance Review Update 
(Briefing Paper)  11   17       

Community Events and Road Closure Policy 
Update (Briefing Paper) 

 

Invest to Save BID – Footway Maintenance 

    

17 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5 
 
 
 
5 

 

Subsidised bus 
routes/ticketing/patronage/accessibility 
(possible T+F group) 

   5        

Highway Coordination (briefing paper)  11          

On street parking review (briefing paper and 
presentation)     17       

Winter maintenance regime (verbal discussion)  11          

Page 118



 
 

Work programme 
 J J A S O N D J F M A 

*Tamar Bridge 5 week programme of works        9    

Direct rail links from/to Plymouth (National 
Rail Network)        9    

Corporate Preparation for non HMPE Land        9    

Planning Services 
 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Local Development Framework Annual 
Monitoring Data (web based presentation) 
 
 

   

 

 

 

 

9 

 
 

  

Plymouth Plan - provisional 

   
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 
5 

 

City and Council Priorities 

   

 

 

 

 

 

   

• Delivering Growth            

• Raising Aspiration 
           

• Reducing Inequalities            

• Value for Communities 
   

 
 

 
 

 
   

Other Topics  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

Joint Finance and Performance Monitoring 
including LAA Performance Monitoring 
(subject to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board referring issues to the 
Panel) 

   

 

 

 

 

9 

   

Quarterly Scrutiny Reports (now bi-annual) 
   

 
 

 
 
 9 

  
 

 

Task and Finish Groups 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 119



 
 

Work programme 
 J J A S O N D J F M A 

Winter Maintenance 
   

8/ 
15 

 
 

 
 

   

Youth Unemployment 
   

 
 

 
 

 
  
7 

 

 
Key 
 
* New item 
 
 

Page 120



Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Draft Work Programme 2012/13 

 

 
Topics 

 

J J A S O N D J F M A 

Health and Social Care Bill 

 
Healthwatch 
 

           

Health and Wellbeing Board            

Public Health 

Alcohol Harm Reduction & Tobacco Control 
Strategy            

NHS Devon Cluster Primary Care Trust Services 

NHS Plymouth - Quality Improvement 
Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) Update 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Plymouth City Council 

Access to Services – Gypsies and Travellers, 
Report of the LINk. 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Personalised Budgets and Safeguarding 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Report of the Safeguarding Adults Board 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Plymouth NHS Hospitals Trust 

Quality Accounts 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Foundation Trust Status Business Plan 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Plymouth Community Healthcare 

Quality Accounts            

Task and Finish Groups 

Page 121



 
 

 

 
Topics 

 

J J A S O N D J F M A 

Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults – Review             

 
Key: 
 
* = New addition to Work Programme 
 

Page 122



 

 

verview and Scrutiny Management Board 

Work Programme 2011/12 

Topics J J A S O N D J F M A M 

Budget Scrutiny  
 

  

     

11,  
16 
& 
18 

    

Cabinet response to budget 
scrutiny recommendations 

  
 21      28   

Performance and Finance Report 29 
 

 21  30    28   

Medium Term Financial Strategy          28   

Scrutiny Bi Annual / Annual 
Scrutiny Report 29 

 
 21      28   

Leader and Chief Executive 29 
 

 21  30    28   

Review of Progress on the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment (min 
67(2) refers) 

          
28 

  

Devonport Regeneration Company 
Partnership (DRCP) Succession 
Strategy – Review of Succession 
Arrangements 
(Mins- 53 and 116 refers) 

  

       28   

Localities and Neighbourhood 
Working Task and Finish Group 

 11 
& 
12 

          

Capital Programme Approvals 
(referred from City Council) 

     
30 

      

Lord Mayor T&F          2   

Review 2011 Interim Staff Survey 
Results (Minute (70 (8) refers) 

     
 

      

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 123



 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 

Draft Work Programme 2012/13 

 

Topics J J A S O N D J F M A M 

 
Budget Scrutiny  
 

  
          

Cabinet response to budget 
scrutiny recommendations 

  
          

Budget Scrutiny Review (Min 84 (2) 
refers) 

  
          

Performance and Finance Report  
 

          

Medium Term Financial Strategy             

Scrutiny Bi-Annual / Annual 
Scrutiny Report  

 
          

Leader and Chief Executive  
 

          

Review 2011 Interim Staff Survey 
Results (Minute (70 (8) refers) 

     
 

      

 
 

Page 124


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY OF BUDGET PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE PLAN 2012/13
	7 PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT
	8 REVENUES AND BENEFITS ACTION PLAN
	11 TRACKING DECISIONS
	12 FORWARD PLAN
	13 TASK AND FINISH UPDATES / REPORTS
	14 RECOMMENDATIONS
	15 WORK PROGRAMMES
	CYPOSP Work Programme
	GPOSP Work Programme
	HASCOSP Work Programme
	MB work programme 11-12


